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Vishnu Chemicals Limited epitomises manufacturing 

of high-performance speciality chemicals, with strong 
market leadership and an intelligent symphony of 

forward and backward integration to produce world-class 
products that are focused on diverse needs and aspirations 
of its customers.

Disclaimer:  Some information in this report may contain forward-looking statements. We have based these forward looking statements on our current 
beliefs, expectations and intentions as to facts, actions and events that will or may occur in the future. Such statements generally are identified by 
forward looking words such as “believe,” “plan,” “anticipate,” “continue,” “estimate,” “expect,” “may,” “will” or other similar words. A forward-looking 
statement may include a statement of the assumptions or basis underlying the forward-looking statement. We have chosen these assumptions or 
basis in good faith, and we believe that they are reasonable in all material respects. However, we caution you that forward looking statements and 
assumed facts or bases almost always vary from actual results, and the differences between the results implied by the forward-looking statements 
and assumed facts or bases and actual results can be material, depending on the circumstances.
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` 545.04 Cr
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The Future 

The world is evolving at a spectacular pace. 

Vishnu Chemical’s organisational structure has evolved 
to unlock greater synergy across the entire value chain, 
making it agile and efficient to an even higher level.

The Company is accelerating its planning and execution 
to achieve greater operational excellence. 

What worked for Vishnu Chemicals in the past is rooted 
in the present and will continue to be relevant in the 
future. In doing so, the Company aspires to optimise its 
entire value chain aligned to tomorrow’s needs.

PerseVeranCe

The journey over the past 
three decades reflects 
the persistence with 
which the Company has 
been built brick-by-brick. 
Key attributes such 
as attention to detail, 
minute understanding of 
chemistry and following 
a logical approach has 
always been at the 
forefront of business' 
operations.

COmmITmenT

at all times, Vishnu 
Chemical’s leadership 
has remained committed 
and always believed 
that the Company would 
create value through 
dedicated efforts towards 
manufacturing, enabling the 
Company to keep marching 
on its chosen path.

This sanskrit quote has inspired the Company 
to stay the course and not to give up on 
its convictions. The result of this strategic 
consistency is the ability to capitalise extensively 
on sectoral crests and adequately resist industry 
downturns to emerge as a responsible and 
resilient organisation.

accomplishments of 2021-22

Better Operating Levels

Higher Gross Asset Turn

Improved ROCE

Talent Retention

Procurement Planning

Customer Service

National and Global Recognition to 
Our Chemistry
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VIshnu ChemICals  
AT A GlANCE

how we do it

By imbibing global competencies, 
improved design and integration, 
trained and confident workforce 
and adding capabilities that allow  
customers to keep pace with changing 
preferences, the business achieves 
consistency in manufacturing chemicals 
that can stand the test of time.

DrIVIng
sustainability at the centre 
of everything we do.

DelIVerIng
delight to the customers 
across the world. 

Who we are
vishnu chemicals is a specialty chemicals 
company with a work force of 1,000+ people 
and operating through four dedicated 
manufacturing plants across india and selling 
across 50+ countries. established in 1989, and 
is listed on the bse and nse.

What we do
vishnu chemicals manufactures specialty 
chemicals and is a dependable supplier for 
customers across industries like pharmaceutical, 
coatings, automobile, glass, refractory and tiles, 
among others. the company's products and 
processes conform to global standards, which is 
a testimony of product quality and reliability.
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Chromium Chemicals

The Company manufactures and supplies high-quality 
chrome chemicals across the globe. Chromium 
chemistry is proven to be of high-value as it possesses 
properties of high corrosion resistance, colours, 
uniformity, thereby improving the performance and 
life of industrial components, timber treatment, 
pharmaceuticals, pigments and dyes.

` 65.23 Cr

PAT

` 913.28 Cr

Sales

` 132.84 Cr

EBITDA

Barium Chemicals

The Company manufactures and supply industry-
grade Barium Carbonate that finds applications 
in the manufacture of a plethora of ceramic, 
tiles, glass and enamel products. Infrastructural 
development, increasing urbanisation and expansion 
in construction industry has fuelled the demand for 
barium chemicals.

` 16.15 Cr

PAT

` 175.33 Cr

Sales

` 29.87 Cr

EBITDA

30+ 
Years Expertise

15+ 
User Application Industries

1,000+ 
Workforce

150+ 
Customers across India and Abroad

50+ 
Countries Export Presence

What we offer Vision
To be among the global leaders in specialty 
chemical manufacturing by bettering 
the best in process, technology, quality 
and through unending commitment to 
customers and environment.

Philosophy
Vishnu Chemicals values ‘being consistent’ in 
every aspect of its business. Be it dealing with 
stakeholders or the environment in which 
the Company operates. Vishnu Chemicals 
takes pride in its people for their true and 
unwavering selves at work. 

• Accountability in every action

• Transparency in every transaction

• Dedication in every decision

• Collective in every concern

Values
Upholding business relationships, ethics, 
transparency and commitment to the 
stakeholders.

Long
standing 

Customer 
Relations Value-drivers

Experienced 
Management

Well-diversified  
Board

Deep Process 
Knowledge

Reliable  
Product  
Quality

Greater 
Portfolio 

Coherence

Flexible 
Product Mix

Strong Global 
Presence

Diversified 
Applications
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glOBal PresenCe –  
MAkING IN INDIA, lEADING GloBAlly!

ChennaI

Marketing & Sales

Manufacturing

mumBaI

ahmeDaBaD

DelhI

KanPur

BhIlaI

hYDeraBaD VIZag

srIKalahasTI

OCeanIa

eurOPe

aFrICa

usa

laTIn 
amerICa

Visakhapatnam
Hyderabad
Srikalahasti
Bhilai

4 
State-of-the-art 
Manufacturing Facilities

This map is a generalised illustration only for the ease of the reader to 
understand the locations, and it is not intended to be used for reference 
purposes. The representation of political boundaries and the names 
of geographical features/states do not necessarily reflect the actual 
position. The Company or any of its directors, officers or employees, 
cannot be held responsible for any misuse or misinterpretation of 
any information or design thereof. The Company does not warrant or 
represent any kind of connection to its accuracy or completeness.

ePITOmIsIng VErSATIlITy 
From acting as strong oxidants in pharmaceuticals  
to creating a shining & reflective surface in tiles 
and ceramics or the silver finish on faucets, towel 
holders, hardware – door knobs or handles.

They add to aesthetic appeal of any vehicle. Be 
it the shining logo, stylish front grills, premium 
leather seats or sturdy engines and pistons.

Or be it colours, that don’t fade away!

The properties of products make the industrial 
parts more versatile and indispensable, making 
them resistant to corrosion, oxidation & reducing 
wear and galling.

Versatality enables speciality base 
products to be developed and variants 
offering exceptional properties to be 
manufactured for alternative applications. 
The Company's diversification into flexible 
derivative mix has allowed it to explore 
versatile applications across different 
industries. Vishnu Chemicals has an 
impeccable track record of selling to 
various industries across the globe.

Application Areas

Pharmaceuticals

Construction equipments

Decorative Plating

Textiles

Pigments & sport surfaces

Roofing & Ceramic tiles

Functional Plating

refractory Bricks

leather

automobiles

Detergents

Timber Treatment
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Given below are few noticeable outcomes:

• Balanced geographical mix

• Achieved greater portfolio coherence 

• Domestic and exports sales grew by 57 percent 
and 60 percent respectively, in the last 12 months, 
despite pandemic-induced disruptions.

ePITOmIsIng MANUFACTUrING EXCEllENCE ePITOmIsIng IMProVEMENT

The Company's improvisation 
strategy is underpinned by a strong 
commitment to research, development 
and innovation. It has built a world-
class infrastructure and emerged as 
‘a company of choice’ in the industry  
owing to constant learning and 
continuous improvement. 

Flexible and Integrated 
at Vishnu Chemicals, the business' key 
differentiator is the scale and operational 
flexibility that allows the Company to 
switch between different products and 
derivatives as per industry demand. an 
integrated manufacturing plant further 
protects the Company from inflationary 
pressures, ensures consistent supply and 
controls inventory needs.

The Company epitomise manufacturing of high-
performance speciality chemicals, with strong market 
leadership and an intelligent symphony of forward 
and backward integration to produce world-class 
products that are focused on diverse needs and 
aspirations of its customers. 

hIghesT leVels OF 

TeChnOlOgICal 

KnOWhOW

DeDICaTeD 

FaCIlITIes

FInesT InDusTrY 

OPeraTIng leVels

DeeP PrOCess 

KnOWleDge

over the years, Vishnu Chemicals 
has nurtured the chemistry and 
mastered in complex chemical 
processes by overcoming gestation 
period of stabilisation. Deep process 
knowledge enables the Company 
to track how a reaction unfolds and 
speeds up execution to achieve 
greater operational excellence.
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The Board and the leadership at Vishnu Chemicals 
conducts itself with integrity and honesty, setting the 
tone for an ethical organisational culture.

As a performance-driven company, Vishnu Chemicals 
believes in creating a culture of meritocracy that 
provides all the employees with equal opportunities 
to excel, learn and progress and create a place of 
positivity and joy to work at.

With an organisational strength of 1,000+ people, we 
Vishnu Chemicals treated its people with dignity & 
compassion, leading to steadfast loyalty.

With safety at workplace being paramount, health 
and safety standards, are continuously assessed, 
identified and uplifted. 

The fore vision and enterprising efforts of Vishnu’s 
leadership has created an atmosphere where all the 
people have a strong bond and a sense of ownership 
because of the respect and responsibilities that are 
accorded to one and all.

ePITOmIsIng GooD GoVErNANCE ePITOmIsIng PEoPlE CUlTUrE

Sustaining an ‘enduring edge’ requires a 
deeply ingrained corporate culture that 
places a premium on good governance, 
compliance, integrity and collaborative 
approach. At Vishnu Chemicals,  core 
cultural values define the way it 
does  business globally and treat its 
stakeholders.

A people-centric work culture 
within the organisation encourages 
innovative thinking, focuses on 
excellence, instils a sense of 
ownership and builds confidence in 
employees to make a difference.
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KeY PerFOrmanCe TrENDS
(on a consolidated basis)

The result of the several strategic initiatives taken over the past few 
years is visible in the way we have created value for our shareholders. 
Here’s a glimpse of our yoy trends of key performance indicators:

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22
26.09

25.97

35.77

43.88

45.94

Finance Cost                                            (` in Cr)

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22
1,074.76

681.50

680.83

772.46

660.65

Revenues                 (` in Cr)

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22
1.31

1.71

2.05

2.42

3.42

Debt-to-Equity 

ROCE= EBIT ÷ Average (Total Assets − Total Current Liabilities)
roE = PAT ÷ Average (Equity Share Capital + other Equity)

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22
28

14

17

22

21

ROCE                                                        (%)

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22
81.39

34.49

22.23

24.36

14.42

PAT                                    (` in Cr)

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22
161.41

80.26

86.27

102.22

86.84

EBITDA                                            (` in Cr)

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22
68.13

28.88

18.61

20.40

12.07

EPS                                                                         (`)

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22
34

19

15

19

14

ROE                                                           (%)

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22
2.25

4.18

3.80

3.37

4.39

Debt-to-EBITDA

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22
15

12

13

13

13

EBITDA Margin                                       (%)

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22
8

5

3

3

2

PAT Margin                                              (%)

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22
5.3

2.3

1.8

1.8

1.4

Interest Coverage Ratio
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CmD’s MESSAGE 

dear shareholders,

India is the largest democracy in the 
world. It is a moment of pride that 
we have entered into our 75th year 
of independence. In 2014, India was 
the 11th largest economy in the world. 
Today, it is 6th behind the US, China, 
Japan, Germany and the Uk. It took us 
nearly 60 years after independence 
to achieve USD 1 Tn mark and now 
we are on track to become a USD 
5 Tn economy in a few years. Soon, 
we will have the largest productive 
workforce in the world. Even in the 
past, India has always had the skills 
but today, we have started focusing 
on self-reliance which has led to self-
confidence in our country's ability. 
So, Atmanirbharta (self-reliance) is the 
best asset of our country.

'Make in India', selling globally is a 
real thing today. Manufacturing is 
the engine of growth. The world is 
looking at Indian manufacturers to 
supply. In 2000, Indian manufacturing 
constituted 15 percent to India’s GDP, 
and at present, is 17.4 percent. In the 
next few years Indian Manufacturing 
sector has the potential to reach USD 
1 Tn, ~20  percent of GDP. Domestic 
manufacturing units have played a 
key role in improving their quality 
of operations and scaling to make 
products made in India, compete and 
stand out globally. Global customers 
are looking to move their global supply 
chains to trusted nations and trusted 
partners. our costs have become 
very competitive. Public and private 
spending on infrastructure will further 
boost growth in India.

2021-22 was a successful and 
eventful year at Vishnu Chemicals 
as we crossed an important 
milestone of ` 1,000 Cr sales. It 
is even more satisfying that we 

2021-22 was a successful and 
eventful year at Vishnu Chemicals 
as we crossed an important 
milestone of ` 1,000 Cr sales. It 
is even more satisfying that we 
delivered good growth in both 
Indian and International markets. 
Our performance is an outcome of 
simple yet effective changes made 
over the years. 

delivered good growth in both 
Indian and International markets. 
our performance is an outcome of 
simple yet effective changes made 
over the years. First of all, we decided 
to integrate our processes as much 
as possible while maintaining a 
transparent, well-organised and 
well-controlled manufacturing line. 
Secondly, we focused on the business 
as a whole not only the production 
assets but also the logistics, sales and 
talent development.

Manufacturing is our core focus. The 
chemistry we operate is an essential 
engine for change and innovation. 
We epitomise manufacturing of 
unique range of speciality chemicals 
and have evolved as a global name 
to recon with. We have established 
long-standing relationships with our 
customers as they trust us for our 
quality offerings.

We are committed to promoting a 
positive culture supported by our 
core values. These values define the 
way we do business globally, treat our 
stakeholders and set the leadership 
behaviours that are embedded in 
our culture. We are committed to 
making a positive contribution to 
the society, acting with integrity for 
the benefit of all our stakeholders. 
We are committed towards building 
sustainable and environment-friendly 
business practices in our day-to-day 
operations.

People are at the heart of our 
business and we are proud of our 
colleagues who went above and 
beyond, rising to every challenge in 
the most exceptional circumstances. 
Their health, safety and well-being 
have been and continue to be a 
top priority for us. As we uphold 
our commitment to fostering an 

inclusive culture, with values that 
support our promises to our people, 
our stakeholders and our planet, we 
recognise our duty to act sustainably 
to leverage our enhanced scale and 
capabilities. Together, we are well-
positioned to seize the unbelievable 
opportunities ahead of us and deliver 
sustainable growth for years to come. 

Finally, our performance would not 
have been possible without the 
enduring trust of our customers, 
suppliers, bankers, regulators and 
shareholders. on behalf of the Board, 
I remain very grateful for your ongoing 
support and hope to continue on our 
journey for years to come. 

regards,  
mr. ch. Krishna murthy 
chairman & managing director
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JmD’s MESSAGE 

dear shareholders, 

This financial year was rewarding in 
more than one way. Crossing the  
` 1,000 Cr sales is a milestone for 
the Company and a true validation of 
perseverance and commitment.

our focus on manufacturing gives 
us the clarity of purpose. Stable 
execution, consistent supply and 
quality has helped the Company 
create a long sustainable relationship 
with its clients, which is not easy to 
establish. 

our revenues during the year 
increased 58 percent from ` 682 Cr 
in 2020-21 to ` 1,075 Cr in 2021-
22. Domestic and exports  sales 
witnessed 57 percent and 60 percent 
growth, respectively. We reported 
101 percent growth in EBITDA and 
317 bps improvement in the EBITDA 
margins. This was the result of our 
scale, paramount quality, operational 
flexibility, emphasis on supply chain 
and stronger procurement planning. 
our PAT improved from ` 34 Cr 
in 2020-21 to ` 81 Cr in 2021-22, 
growing by 136 percent annually.

at Vishnu Chemicals, we are collectively 
dedicated to improve the existing, 
execute the present and timely pivot 
into the future. Therefore, inspiring the 
best of talent to take up manufacturing 
as a career of choice.

on the operational front, we have 
been effectively implementing our 
expansion strategies, and the key 
themes we identified have been 
strengthened and proven to be the 
right ones. I am happy to report our 
exciting venture into a new Barium 
chemical. Apart from enjoying strong 
synergies with existing chemistry, 
it also acts as an import substitute. 
our incremental expansions during 
the year will allows us to generate 
additional volumes to meet the 
demand, penetrate deeper into the 
international markets and strengthen 
our domestic market share. Besides, it 
will further lead to operating leverage 
and drive better profitability. 

Going ahead, we shall build upon 
our ability to deliver industry-leading, 
purpose-led growth with a long-term 
perspective. With the completion of 
our on-going capex in 2022-23, we 
shall deliver higher volumes in both 
existing and new speciality chemicals 
amid an expected surge in demand. 
With no major capacity additions 
globally, we are well-positioned to cater 
to the incremental global demand. 

At Vishnu Chemicals, we are 
collectively dedicated to improve the 

existing, execute the present and 
timely pivot into the future. Therefore, 
inspiring the best of talent to take up 
manufacturing as a career of choice. 
We are optimistic about our chemistry 
and positive about delivering value 
accretive growth for our stakeholders.

I am pleased to look back at a year 
of good achievements, in pursuit of 
delivering sustainable value-creation 
for all our stakeholders as we continue 
to respond with agility to the ongoing 
impact of the global pandemic, turning 
headwinds into opportunities. I’d like 
to thank our colleagues, customers, 
partners and suppliers for their great 
collaboration and commitment for all 
that we achieved. I’d also like to thank 
you for your commitment and faith in 
Vishnu Chemicals. 

regards,  
mr. ch. siddartha 
Joint managing director
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aPPrOaCh TOWarDs  
ENVIroNMENTAl SUSTAINABIlITy

FulFIllIng Our  
SoCIAl rESPoNSIBIlITy

Sustainability is at the centre of everything the Company does. 
Over the years, Vishnu Chemicals has been a growth catalyst to 
customers across diversified applications embracing changing 
preferences and sustainability. At Vishnu Chemicals, the 
commitment to conservation of environment and contribution to 
people's health, remains constant.

The Company believes in the health and welfare of its people, 
the community and society, as a whole, is intrinsic to business' 
long-term sustenance. With concerted efforts, the Company 
undertake initiatives that help uplift lives.

environment

• Vishnu Chemicals is committed to the conservation of the 
environment. The Company’s operations are in line with 
environment, health and safety policies.

• Stabilisation & waste residue, using an automated 
treatment plant and disposal as per hazardous waste rules.

• Awareness programs on safety and environment is 
regularly conducted for the staff and workers.

health

• Imparted health education through programmes and 
initiatives and created awareness among employees about 
the pandemic.

• Organised frequent medical checkups for all employees 
and contract workers, at all locations of the Company.

• Availability of first aid boxes in every department/section 
and maintenance site.

• Availability of fully equipped ambulance, at all times, to 
take patients to the nearest hospital.

• Arrangement of hospitalisation facilities for employees 
suffering from severe Covid-19 infection.

safety

• Maintaining a hygienic working environment by promoting 
self-hygiene among personnel.

• Ensured strict adherence to Covid-19 protocols across 
the sites and offices.

• Conducted equipment audits at regular intervals with the 
help of internal and external agencies.

• Conducted on-site emergency programmes, regular mock 
drills and evacuation programs.

• Installed fire extinguishers at appropriate places.

Our Priorities

• Promoting education.

• Supporting healthcare, including 
preventive healthcare.

• Ensuring environmental sustainability and 
fostering an ecological balance.

• Setting up old-age homes and other 
such facilities for senior citizens through 
measures that reduce inequalities 
faced by socially and economically 
disadvantaged groups.

• Contributing for rural development and 
infrastructure, with an endeavour to 
benefit the community in the long-run, in 
2021- 22 the Company has spent it's CSr 
obligation to construct old-age homes to 
provide housing to the elderly along with 
provision for meals, recreational activities 
and appropriate healthcare facilities.
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BOarD OF DIrECTorS COrPOraTe INForMATIoN

mr. Ch. Krishna murthy 
Chairman & Managing Director

Mr. Ch. Krishna Murthy is a first generation entrepreneur 
and is a founder, promoter and one of the key architects 
in developing & transforming the organisation from single 
product to multi products manufacturing unit through 
his commitment. He has over three decades of rich 
experience in manufacturing of Speciality Chemicals.

He holds Master’s Degree in Business and Administration 
specialised in Marketing.

mr. Ch. siddartha 
Joint Managing Director

Mr. Ch. Siddartha being at helm of the Company for 
more than a decade, is playing a vital role in formulating 
business strategies and effective implementation of 
the same, also spearheaded expansion and focused on 
developing  flexible  product mix among various speciality 
chemicals. His leadership abilities have been instrumental 
in leading the core team of the Company.

He holds MS in Biotechnology from Northumbria 
University & MBA from Saginaw University.

mrs. Ch. manjula 
Non-Executive Director

Mrs. Ch. Manjula is one of the promoters of the Company 
and a guide and support to the organisation for last three 
decades with her rich organisation skills. She plays a 
pivotal role in welfare policies of the Company. She keenly 
believes in serving the community and made a significant 
contribution in spheres of education, health and rural 
development. She is one of the Trustees of philanthropic 
trust, krishna Foundation.

mr. Tirthankar mitra 
Independent Director

Mr. Tirthankar Mitra is a Chemical Engineer from the 
prestigious Indian Institute of Technology, kharagpur in the 
year 1978 and was honoured with Silver Medal for getting 
first rank in Chemical Engineering. He has around four 
decades of  professional expertise in design, operation & 
management, process engineering, project management, 
innovation, cost -saving and business turnaround plans, 

BOarD OF DIreCTOrs

mr. ch. Krishna murthy 
Chairman & Managing Director

mr. ch. siddartha 
Joint Managing Director

mrs. ch. manjula 
Non-Executive Director

mr. tirthankar mitra 
Independent Director

mr. chetan navinchandra shah 
Independent Director

mr. veeramachaneni vimalanand   
Independent Director 
(w.e.f. 31st December, 2021)

dr. sita vanka 
Independent Director 
(W.e.f. 16th May, 2022)

mr. Pradip saha 
Independent Director 
(till 9th November, 2021)

ChIeF FInanCIal OFFICer

Mr. P. Anjaneyulu

COmPanY seCreTarY

Mr. kishore kathri

regIsTereD OFFICe

Plot No. C-23, road No. 8, Film Nagar, 
Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad – 500 096 
Tel: +91-40-23396817, 23327723/ 29, 
Fax: +91-40-23314158 
Web Site: www.vishnuchemicals.com; 
Email: vishnu@vishnuchemicals.com 
com CIN: l85200TG1993PlC046359

auDITOrs

M/s. Jampani & Associates  
Chartered Accountants, Hyderabad

seCreTarIal auDITOrs

M/s. L.D.Reddy & Co., 
Company Secretaries, Hyderabad

COsT auDITOrs

M/s. Sagar & Associates Cost Accountants, 
Hyderabad

BanKers

State Bank of India 
Union Bank of India 
Indian overseas Bank

regIsTrar anD share  
TransFer agenTs

Bigshare Services Pvt. ltd 
306, right Wing, 3rd Floor, 
Amrutha Ville, opp.yashoda Hospital, 
Somajiguda, rajbhavan road,  
Hyderabad – 500082, India 
Phone No: +91-40 4014 4582 
Mail id: bsshyd1@bigshareonline.com  
Web: www.bigshareonline.com

PlanT lOCaTIOns

vizag Plant:
Plot No.29, J.N.Pharma City, 
IoCl road, Visakhapatnam (Dist.),  
Andhra Pradesh – 531019

bhilai Plant:
Survey No.18-26, Nandini road,  
Bhilai, Chattishgarh - 490026

Kazipally Plant:
Survey No.15,  
Gaddapotharam Medak District,  
Telangana - 502319

vishnu barium Plant:
Survey No.27/1A, Uranduru-Village, 
Maddiledu (P.o.), Srikalahasti (Mandal), 
Chittoor (Dist), Andhra Pradesh - 517 640

of Chemical units. During his tenure, he worked in various 
capacities including Executive Director, Director in Charge 
of various speciality chemicals manufacturing companies.

mr. Chetan navinchandra shah 
Independent Director

Mr. Chetan Navinchandra Shah is academically an 
MBA from University of Paisley, Scotland, Uk. He is an 
alumnus of IIM–Ahmedabad, NM College of Commerce & 
Economics, Mumbai. He has an experience of over three 
decades in Finance. He has worked in various capacities at 
BNP Paribas.

mr. V. Vimalanand 
Independent Director

Mr. V. Vimalanand (DIN: 02693721) is a graduate in 
Commerce and law. He is one of the leading advocates in 
State of Telangana with over three decades of experience 
in the field of Civil and Criminal Law matters. With vast 
experience in dealing with corporate suits, arbitration and 
other legal cases under Civil & Criminal law, he acts as an 
advisory to several corporate houses & individuals.

Dr. sita Vanka 
Independent Director

Dr. Sita Vanka (DIN: 07016012) is currently a Professor 
at the School of Management Studies, University of 
Hyderabad, Hyderabad, India. Prior to that, she served as 
the Dean of the School of Management Studies for the 
years 2012-2015. She also served on the Board of APIIC, 
a Public Sector undertaking during the years 2012-2014 
on behalf of the University. She is a member in several 
National bodies for accreditation and a subject expert in 
India–NAAC, AMDISA, NBA, UGC, AICTE, UPSC, DrDo, CSIr, 
among others. She won several awards in academia both 
in India and International.
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ManageMent Discussion and analysis

economy
The global economy is still in the early phase of the 
recovery from the the Covid-19 pandemic. The global 
inflation rate has accelerated to levels not seen in 
recent decades, setting in strong possibilities of 
aggressive monetary tightening by most countries. 

india remained the fastest-growing major economy of 
the world during 2021 and according to iMF estimates' 
india will continue to remain the torchbearer of growth 
in 2022 and 2023. india achieved an all-time high 
annual merchandise export of Usd 417 Bn in Fy22, an 
increase of 43 percent over Usd 291 Bn in Fy21 and an 
increase of 33 percent over Usd 313 Bn in Fy20. strong 
Government spending, robust demand outlook and 
continued tractions in foreign trade are some of the 
prominent factors propelling growth.

Despite some hardening, the inflation levels in India 
are relatively low compared to peer developed and 
emerging nations. With public revenues increasing 
at a robust pace, there is a boost in infrastructure 
development, manufacturing and centres of innovation. 
Government finances are in much better shape versus 
most of the peers. The banking system remains stable 
with signs of modest acceleration in credit growth. With 
close to Usd 600 Bn foreign exchange reserves, india’s 
external sector also remains resilient.

(Source: World Economic Outlook (imf.org))

industry review
The indian Chemical industry is one of the largest 
worldwide and ranked fifth in the world in terms of 
revenue, in 2020. it has over 80,000 products and is 
also one of the most diversified sectors in the country. 
india ranks 14th in exports and 8th in imports at global 
level (excluding pharmaceuticals). With earnings of 
almost Usd 28 Bn, the Chemical sector is a key part 
of the indian economy. it accounts for 6.7 percent of 
india's GdP and 10 percent of all exports.

The indian Chemicals Export registered a growth of 
106 percent in Fy22 compared to Fy14. For Fy22 these 
exports hit a record at Usd 29,296 Mn, whereas, in 
Fy14 india’s Chemical exports were Usd 14,210 Mn. 

BRiCs countries (Brazil, Russia, india, China and south 
africa) accounted for 50.2 percent of global chemical 
sales in 2020. among the top 10 countries in terms of 
chemical sales, China dominates the world with a major 
share of nearly 45 percent. indian manufacturers have 
recorded a CaGR of 11 percent in revenue between 
Fy15 and Fy21, increasing india's share in the global 
specialty Chemicals market to 4 percent from 3 percent, 
according to a Crisil report, and is expected to double 
its share to nearly 6 percent by 2026.

in Fy20, the specialty Chemicals market in india was 
valued at ` 2,441.66 Bn. it is expected to reach  
` 6,995.86 Bn by Fy27, expanding at a CaGR of 
16.6 percent during the Fy21- Fy27 forecast period. 
The speciality Chemicals market in india is highly 
fragmented, with only a few scaled-up firms in most 
sub-sectors. Scale of operations is a key differentiator 
across categories as it helps to earn higher revenues 
while also generating economies of scale.

inorganic chemicals is the third-largest segment in the 
Chemicals industry in india and accounted for about  
9 percent of the total chemicals output during the 
period Fy20 and Fy21 as per the department of 
Chemicals and Petrochemicals. india largely relies on 
imports of inorganic chemicals for meeting domestic 
requirements as the consumption needs have 
exceeded production by around 1 Mn tonnes on an 
average during the five year period, FY16 to FY21.

While the production of inorganic chemicals witnessed 
a CaGR of 1.5 percent from 10,02,000 tonnes in Fy16 to 
10,63,000 tonnes in Fy20, consumption increased at a 
much faster CaGR of 6.7 percent from 18,55,000 tonnes 
in Fy16 to 23,99,000 tonnes in Fy20. as a result, india is  
mainly dependent on inbound shipments of inorganic 
chemicals to meet the domestic consumption needs.

World chemicals Market share country-wise
Share (%)

(Source: Cefic Chemdata International)
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Import  |  Export

it is important to note that even while the output of 
inorganic chemicals has increased at a slower pace on 
an average over the five year period, the production 
did not see a fall on a yoy basis in any of these years 
barring Fy21when the output of inorganic chemicals 
declined by 12.7 percent to 9,29,000 tonnes due to 
disruptions caused by the pandemic.
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India’s strategic location, manufacturing capabilities, effective process engineering expertise, and highly skilled workforce 
supply have made it a preffered manufacturing destination for global businesses. India’s specialty chemicals market is 
establishing itself as an export powerhouse.

growth rate of speciality chemicals — end-user industry FY10 - FY15  |  FY15 - FY20

13
.3

%

17
%

Home Care

13
.2

%

15
.8

%

Personal Care

15
% 15

.9
%

Food Processing

10
.2

%

11
%

Real Estate

6.
8% 8%

Textile

5% 7.
5%

Automobiles

9.
2% 14

.5
%

Consumer Durables

outlook
Global customers, engaging with india at economic 
level, are looking at the country to make a larger 
contribution going forward. Even though the indian 
Chemical industry has witnessed robust growth in 
the past decade, the potential for future growth is 
significant. The per capita consumption of chemicals in 
india is much lower than the western countries. despite 
the Chemical industry’s significant GDP contribution, the 
industry represents only around 2.7 percent of global 
Chemicals industry. 

The consumption and imports of inorganic chemicals 
has witnessed at a CaGR of 6.7 percent and 11 percent, 
respectively, over the five year period (FY16 to FY20). 
The upward momentum in demand is estimated to  
continue going ahead backed  by volume uptick across 
end-user industries led by rising domestic consumption, 
the push for self-sufficiency leading to potential import 
substitution and higher exports.

in coming years, india is expected to rise as both, 
a manufacturing capital for valued goods and a 
consumer-driven economy from a broader perspective. 
The industry is likely to benefit from the improvement 
in investment climate, speedy approval of projects and 
proposed reform measures that would translate into 
higher industrial activity, in turn increasing demand for 
chemicals. 
(Source: Netscribe report, Chemical Industry in India: Chemical 
Companies, Manufacturers & Exporters | IBEF)

opportunities and Risks
opportunities
• Attractive long-term opportunities to grow in  

asia and america, to increase the market share  
in high- value industrial applications.

• Revenue and volume growth opportunities 
supported by structural megatrends. The Company 
is well-positioned to serve the growth and demand 
across consumer, industrial and pharmaceutical 
applications. 

• New geographic markets for consumer and industrial 
products that require premium performance and 
long-lasting products.

• Opportunity to minimise social and environmental 
impact of production throughout supply chains 
and contribute positively to the health and  
well-being of society.

• Expected growth in higher disposable income and 
change in lifestyle will support demand for the 
consumer and industrial applications, thus auguring 
well for the growth of Chemicals industry. 

• Demand from e-commerce business, increasing 
applications, technological advancements pose  
as future growth drivers for the industry.

operational
On consolidated basis, revenue for the financial year 
2021-22 grew by 58 percent to ` 1,07,475.93 lakhs 
compared to ` 68,150.39 lakhs of previous year. 
EBiTda grew by 101percent to ` 16,141.30 lakhs as 
against ` 8,027.21 lakhs for previous year. PaT is  
` 8,139.27 lakhs, higher by 136 percent over the 
previous year’s PaT ` 3,449.46 lakhs.

On standalone basis, revenue for the financial year 
2021-22 grew by 58 percent to ` 91,328.66 lakhs 
compared to ` 57,708.97 lakhs of previous year. 
EBiTda grew by  107 percent, to ` 13,284.36 lakhs  
as against ` 6,415.23 lakhs for previous year. PaT is  
` 6,523.90 lakhs, higher by 187 percent over the 
previous year’s PaT ` 2,275.33 lakhs.

details of substantial changes in key standalone 
financial ratios, along with extensive explanations:

(i) Debtors Turnover: Increased by 5 percent compared 
to previous financial year.

(ii) Interest Coverage Ratio: Improved by 144 percent from 
1.9 times in Fy21 to 4.6 times in Fy22 due to margin 
enhancement and optimum utilisation of finances.

(iii) Current Ratio: Increased by 6.48 percent due to 
reduction in working capital requirement. 

(iv) Debt Equity Ratio: Reduced by 33 percent YoY due 
to disciplined repayments.

(v) Net Profit: Increased by 187 percent YoY driven by 
holistic improvement.

(vi) Return on Net Worth: Increased by 115 percent YoY due 
to prudent business planning and efficient execution.

Risk Management 
Vishnu Chemicals assesses risks on a regular basis and 
develops new strategies when market conditions change. 
The Company thinks that risk should be mitigated early 
on so that activities can continue without interruption. 
The audit committee and management are collaborating 
to identify and mitigate risks. some of the Company's 
risks and mitigation methods are listed below.

stagnant economy
a slowdown in india's economy could result in downfall 
in revenue for the organisation, lowering profitability.

Response 

Vishnu provides its products domestically and 
worldwide to a number of industries lowering risk.

Raw Material 
Global raw material price volatility is also a major 
challenge for the Chemical industry. lack of raw 
resources or a sudden price increase can stymie 
manufacturing and have a negative impact on the 
bottom line. 

Response 
as a major player in the industry, the Company keeps 
enough inventory on hand to avoid being affected 
by raw material shortages. The Company maintains 
sufficient safety stock of strategic raw materials and 
completed commodities to mitigate any potential risks. 
as a result, both domestic and foreign activities is 
expected to function smoothly.

environmental sustainability 
The Company's environmental effect is due to the 
industry in which it operates. Chemical accidents pose 
a threat to environment, health and safety in society, 
and viability of businesses. Chemical companies are 
held accountable not only for following environmental 
standards, but also for adding value to society.

Response 

The Company complies with all environmental rules and 
regulations laid by the Government. individual facilities 
have robust safety procedures and practices in place 
to counteract this threat. Furthermore, in accordance 
with rules, the Company handles risky materials in a 
safe manner. It has also made significant expenditures 
in environmentally-friendly projects that will help the 
Company improve sustainability levels consistently.

threat of competition
The Chemical industry is very competitive due to its 
large number of producers. The Company's profitability 
gets impacted when it does act fast enough to capitalise 
on the underlying opportunities.

Response

The Company is always on the lookout for new 
opportunities in the chemical business and responds by 
adding new products to its portfolio. 

internal control 
Internal financial control systems of the Company 
are commensurate with its size and the nature of its 
operations. These have been designed to provide 
reasonable assurance with regard to recording 
and providing reliable financial and operational 
information, complying with applicable accounting 
standards and relevant statutes, safeguarding assets 
from unauthorised use, executing transactions with 
proper authorisation and ensuring compliance of 
corporate policies. The Company has a well-defined 
delegation of authority with specified limits for 
approval of expenditure, both capital and revenue. 
The Company uses an established ERP system to 
record day-to-day transactions for accounting and 
financial reporting. The Audit Committee deliberated 
with the members of the management, considered the 
systems as laid down and met the internal auditors 
and statutory auditors to ascertain, their views on the 
internal financial control systems. 

The Audit Committee satisfied itself as to the adequacy 
and effectiveness of the internal financial control system 
as laid down and kept the Board of directors informed. 
However, the Company recognises that no matter how the 
internal control framework is, it has inherent limitations 
and accordingly, periodic audits and reviews ensure that 
such systems are updated on regular intervals.

Human Resource
The Company considers its human capital to be the 
most important asset and treats its people with respect 
and dignity in all situations. The team is a balanced 
mix of experience and youth which allows a holistic 
approach to varied situations. Employee knowledge 
enrichment is a core value of the organisation, and 
focus has been placed on training and development of 
the Company's human capital. The Company organises 
team building exercises through sports and recreation 
and encourages work-life balance which leads to 
improved productivity and longetivity. The enhancement 
of human resources' skill sets has led to better 
execution, communication and best-in-class customer 
service for our global clientele.

outlook 
Execution leads to optimism. india inc. is walking the talk 
consistently. The global market is absolutely open to trade 
and partner with indian suppliers. The world is looking at 
india to make a larger contribution going forward.

Vishnu Chemicals has achieved the historic milestone 
of ` 1,000 Cr sales. The year gone by has given 
the Company a sense of accomplishment in terms 
of output, sound financial health and national & 
global recognition to its chemistry. The Company’s 
established market position, wide product range, 
diversified end-user industries, and strong distribution 
network with marquee client base will help bolster 
future growth.
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To the Members,

The Board of Directors are pleased to present the Company’s Twenty Ninth Annual Report and the Company’s audited financial statements 

(standalone and consolidated) for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022.

Financial Results

The Company’s financial performance for the year ended 31st March, 2022, is summarised below:

  ` in Lakhs
Particulars Standalone Consolidated

2021-22  2020-21 2021-22 2020-21
Revenue from operations 90668.70 57310.23 106900.18 67868.09
Other income 659.96 398.74 575.75 282.30
Total income 91328.66 57708.97 107475.93 68150.39
Earnings before finance cost, depreciation & amortisation and taxes 

(EBITDA)*

13284.36 6415.23 16141.30 8027.21

Earnings before finance cost and taxes (EBIT)* 11357.69 4699.09 13842.86 5997.44
Finance cost 2452.00 2472.93 2609.52 2597.15
Profit Before Taxation 8905.69 2226.16 11233.34 3400.29
Less: Tax expense 2381.79 (49.17) 3094.07 (49.17)
Profit After Taxation 6523.90 2275.33 8139.27 3449.46
Other comprehensive income/ (expenses) (net of taxes) (40.92) 20.30 (56.43) 15.83
Total comprehensive income for the year 6482.98 2295.63 8082.84 3465.29
EPS (of ` 10/- each)
Basic 54.61 19.05 68.13 28.88
Diluted 54.61 19.05 68.13 28.88

*including other income

BOARD’S REPORT

Performance Review & Company’s State of Affairs

On consolidated basis, revenue for the financial year 2021-22 grew by 58% to ` 1,07,475.93 Lakhs compared to ` 68,150.39 Lakhs of previous 

year. Also growth in EBITDA recorded 101% to ` 16,141.30 Lakhs as against ` 8,027.21 Lakhs for previous year. PAT is ` 8,139.27 Lakhs, higher 

by 136% over the previous year’s PAT ` 3,449.46 Lakhs.

On standalone basis, revenue for the financial year 2021-22 grew by 58% to ` 91,328.66 Lakhs compared to ` 57,708.97 Lakhs of previous 

year. Also growth in EBITDA recorded over 107% to ` 13,284.36 Lakhs as against ` 6,415.23 Lakhs for previous year. PAT is ` 6,523.90 Lakhs, 

higher by 187% over the previous year’s PAT ` 2,275.33 Lakhs.

Geography-wise performance:

Particulars Standalone Consolidated
2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21

Domestic 47,194.47 52.18%  28,760.22 50.67% 52,084.01 48.86%  33,118.75 49.30%
Overseas 43,251.93 47.82%  27,997.61 49.32% 54,503.60 51.14%  34,057.40 50.69%

90,446.40 100%  56,757.82 100% 1,06,587.61 100%  67,176.15 100%

For the first time the Company has achieved a historic milestone 
of ` 1,000 Crores in sales during the financial year 2021-22 marking 
the best ever annual performance of the Company since inception. 
The performance for 2021-22 was satisfactory with the growth in 
domestic as well as export sales by 57% and 60% respectively. 
Indeed, the demand environment was good throughout the 
year. During the year, apart from the growth in revenues the 
consolidated EBITDA margin has improved to 15.0% compared  
to 11.8% in 2020-21, which is an increase of 317 basis points 
year-on-year. The said growth in EBITDA is aided by multiple 
factors, some of which were scale, quality of products, operational 
flexibility, focus on supply chain and better procurement planning. 

Also, the Company achieved the best ever PAT in 2021-22 at ` 
8,139.27 Lakhs compared to ` 3,449.46 Lakhs in 2020-21. During 
the year, PAT margins also increased by 251 basis points.

Further we are confident that robust demand environment 

continue to drive enquiries for Company’s products as they are 

essential to extending the life, impart colours and improving the 

performance of many consumer and industrial components such 

as construction equipment, wind turbines, engine pistons etc; we 

are positive and confident of continuing the growth momentum 

in 2022-23 and deliver industry leading value accretive growth.
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Outlook

Outlook is covered in Management Discussion and Analysis 
forming part of this Annual Report.

Management Discussion and Analysis

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’), 
the Management Discussion and Analysis is presented in a separate 
section forming part of this Annual Report. As required under the 
provisions of the Listing Regulations, the Audit Committee of the 
Company has reviewed the Management Discussion and Analysis 
report of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2022.

Dividend

The Board at its meeting held on 16th May, 2022 has recommended 
Dividend of ` 2.00 (i.e. 20%) per equity share of ` 10/- each for the 
financial year 2021-22, (previous year ` 1/- per equity share of  
` 10/- each i.e. 10%) amounting to ` 238.92 Lakhs. The dividend 
pay-out is subject to the approval of the shareholders at ensuing 
Annual General Meeting. The dividend will be paid to the members 
whose names appear in register of members before the day of 
Closure of Register of Members and Share Transfer Books i.e. as on  
Friday, 8th July, 2022.

As far as Preference Dividend is concerned, on request of the 
Company, the preference shareholders holding 100% preference 
share capital i.e. 7,66,37,500 (Seven Crore Sixty Six Lakh Thirty 
Seven Thousand Five Hundred only) 7% Cumulative Redeemable 

Preference Shares (CRPS) of ` 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each, 

consented to accept reduced rate of dividend i.e. 1% per annum 

instead of 7% per annum for the financial year 2021-22.

Dividend Distribution Policy

The Company has adopted the Dividend Distribution Policy 

in accordance with the Regulation 43A of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

(“Listing Regulations”) to determine the distribution of dividends 

on equity shares of the Company. The Dividend Distribution Policy 

is available on the Company’s website, at https://vishnuchemicals.

com/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/VCL-Dividend-Distribution-

Policy-dt-16052022.pdf.

Transfer to reserves

The Board of Directors has decided to retain the entire amount of 

profits for 2021-22 in the Retained Earnings.

Share capital

During the year under review there were no changes in authorised 

and paid-up share capital of the Company. The authorised share 

capital of the Company is ` 95,00,00,000/- divided into 1,50,00,000 

Equity Shares of `10/- each and 8,00,00,000 Preference Shares of  

` 10/- each; and total paid-up share capital of the Company as on 

financial year ended 31st March, 2022 is ` 88,58,35,200/- divided 

into 1,19,46,020 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each and 7,66,37,500 7% 

Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of `10/- each.

Promoters of the Company

The promoters of the Company continued to reinforce their confidence in the long term prospects of the Company. The following is the 

promoter’s shareholding as on 31st March, 2022:

S.no. Promoters Equity shares Preference Share
no. of shares Percentage no. of shares Percentage

1 Mr. Ch. Krishna Murthy 6219790 52.07 71121750 92.80
2 Mrs. Ch. Manjula 1614048 13.51 5271250 6.88
3 Mr. Ch. Siddartha 1125668 9.42 244500 0.32
Total 8959506 75.00 76637500 100.00

Change in the nature of the business, if any

There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company or 

any of its subsidiaries during the year under review.

Material changes and commitments, affecting the financial 
position of the Company

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the 

financial position of the Company that have occurred between the 

end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial 

statements relate and the date of the report i.e. between 31st 

March, 2022 to 16th May, 2022.

Deposits

The Company did not accept any deposits within the meaning of 

section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year. As such, no 

amount on account of principal or interest on deposits from public 

was outstanding as on the date of the Balance Sheet.

listing at Stock Exchanges

The equity shares of your Company continue to be listed and 

traded on the BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India 

Limited. The Annual Listing fee for the year 2021-22 has been paid 

to both the Stock Exchanges. There was no suspension on shares 

of the Company during the year.

Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates

The Company has two wholly-owned subsidiaries (WOS) namely: 

(i) Vishnu Barium Private Limited (VBPL) is a material subsidiary w.e.f. 

1st April, 2019, as per the amended definition given under the Listed 

Regulations, as amended from time to time, read with the policy 

BOARD’S REPORT (COnTD.)
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for determining material subsidiaries as approved by the Board. 

A copy of the policy can be accessed on the Company’s website 

at the link: https://www.vishnuchemicals.com/investors/#Policies  

(ii) Vishnu South Africa (Pty) Limited (VSAL) which is yet to 

commence its operations. The Company doesn’t have any joint 

ventures or associate companies.

A report on the financial position of each of the subsidiaries as per 

the Act is provided in Form AOC-1 attached as ‘Annexure A’.

During the year, the Company has complied with the applicable 

corporate governance requirements as prescribed under 

Regulation 24 of Listing Regulations with respect to its subsidiaries 

and Secretarial Audit for its material subsidiary viz. VBPL was carried 

out by M/s. L.D Reddy & Co., Company Secretaries, Hyderabad in 

terms of Regulation 24A of the Listing Regulations and a copy of 

the report is annexed to this Board’s Report as ‘Annexure B’. The 

Secretarial Audit Report of VBPL does not contain any qualification, 

reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer.

Consolidated Financial Statements

During the year, the Board of Directors reviewed the affairs of 

the subsidiaries and prepared consolidated financial statements 

(CFS) of the Company and its subsidiaries for the financial year 

2021-22 in compliance with the provisions of Section 129(3) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and as stipulated under Regulation 33 

of the Listing Regulations as well as in accordance with Indian 

Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. The consolidated 

financial statements have been prepared on the basis of audited 

financial statements of the Company, its subsidiaries as approved 

by the respective Board of Directors. The audited CFS together with 

the Auditor’s Report thereon forms part of this Annual Report.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act the audited 

financial statements including consolidated financial statements 

and related information of the Company and audited accounts 

of the each of its subsidiaries are available on Company’s 

website www.vishnuchemicals.com. The annual accounts of 

the subsidiaries and related detailed information will be made 

available to investors seeking information till the date of the AGM.

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments

Particulars of loans, guarantees, security and investments covered 

under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 forms part of the 

notes to the financial statements (please refer Note No. 3, 4 & 7). 

During the financial year, the Company has not given any loans 

and advances to the firms/ Companies where directors of the 

Company are interested except to its subsidiaries.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Directors

The Board received a declaration from all the directors under 

section 164 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 

Companies Act, 2013 that none of the directors of the Company is 

disqualified under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) 

or under the Listing Regulations.

i. Appointment

  Based on the recommendations of Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee (NRC), Mr. Veeramachaneni 

Vimalanand (DIN: 02693721) and Mrs. Sita Vanka 

(DIN:07016012) were appointed as Additional Directors (for 

Independent Director category) of the Company by the 

Board at its meeting held on 31st December, 2021 and 16th 

May, 2022 respectively, with immediate effect under the 

provisions of section 161 (1) and other applicable provisions, 

if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and are entitled to hold 

office up to the date of 29th Annual General Meeting  

of the Company.

  The Company has received consent from Mr. Vimalanand 

and Mrs. Sita Vanka in writing to act as a director in Form 

DIR-2 pursuant to Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment 

& Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended from 

time to time along with a declaration that they are eligible 

for appointment as Independent Director and confirming 

the criteria of Independence as prescribed under Section 

149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and under the Regulation  

16(1)(b) of Listing Regulations. As per the declarations received, 

Mr. Vimalanand and Mrs. Sita Vanka are not disqualified from 

being appointed as Directors in terms of Section 164 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. In opinion of the Board, they both fulfill 

the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 & Listing 

Regulations and are independent of the management.

  The Board recommends the Special Resolutions set out at 

Item No. 4 & 5 of the Notice for approval of the Members.

ii. Re-appointment

  In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Act 

and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mrs. Ch. 

Manjula, Non-Executive Director of the Company, retires by 

rotation at the ensuing AGM and being eligible, has offered 

herself for re-appointment.

  Based on the recommendations of NRC, the Board at its 

meeting held on 16th May, 2022 approved re-appointment 

of Mr. Tirthankar Mitra (DIN: 02675454) and Mr. Chetan Shah 

(DIN: 08038633) as Independent Directors of the Company 

for a second term of three (3) years i.e. from August 14, 2022 

to 13th August, 2025 and two (2) years i.e. 12th February, 

2023 to 11th February, 2025 respectively, subject to 

approval of the shareholders under section 149 and all other 

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

Listing Regulations at ensuing annual general meeting of 

the Company. Accordingly, resolutions are being proposed 
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in the notice of 29th AGM along with explanatory statement 

thereof, for approval of the members of the Company by 

passing a special resolutions.

  Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 36 of the Listing 

Regulations and Secretarial Standard - 2 (SS-2) on General 

Meetings issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of 

India (ICSI), brief particulars of the directors proposed to be 

appointed/ re-appointed are provided as an annexure to the 

notice convening the AGM.

  The Board recommends the Special Resolutions set out at 

Item No. 6 & 7 of the Notice for approval of the Members.

iii.  Change in terms & conditions of appointment/  
re-appointment:

  During the year under review, Mr. Ch. Siddartha was re-

appointed as a Joint Managing Director of the Company 

for a further term of five (5) years w.e.f. 2nd May, 2021 up 

to 1st May, 2026 on such terms and conditions including 

remuneration of ` 48.00 Lakhs (Rupees Forty Eight Lakhs 

only) per annum and the said re-appointment was approved 

by the shareholders of the Company by passing special 

resolution under section 196, 197 and 203 and all other 

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

Listing Regulations at 28th Annual General Meeting of the 

Company held on 12th July, 2021.

  Further, as per approved terms and conditions of his re-

appointment and based on the recommendations of NRC, 

the Board at its meeting held on 16th May, 2022 revised 

the terms & conditions of his re-appointment to increase 

remuneration from ` 48.00 Lakhs (Rupees Forty Eight Lakhs 

only) per annum to ` 72.00 Lakhs (Rupees Seventy Two 

Lakhs only) per annum w.e.f. 1st June, 2022 which is within 

the limits as approved by the shareholders at their 28th 

AGM of the Company held on 12th July, 2021 by way of  

special resolution.

  Further, based on the recommendations of NRC, the 

Board at its meeting held on 16th May, 2022 revised the 

terms of appointment of Mr. Ch. Krishna Murthy, Chairman 

& Managing Director of the Company to increase the 

remuneration payable to him from ` 96.00 Lakhs (Rupees 

Ninety Six Lakhs only) per annum to ` 192 Lakhs (Rupees 

One Crore Ninety Two Lakhs only) per annum in line with 

the performance of the Company subject to approval of 

the shareholders at ensuing AGM in terms of the provisions 

of section 197 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of 

the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder 

and Regulation 17 and all other applicable provision, if any, 

of the Listing Regulations. In this regard, a special resolution 

is being proposed in the notice of 29th AGM along with 

explanatory statement thereof, for approval of the members 

of the Company.

iv. Cessation

  During the year Mr. Pradip Saha (DIN: 07677683), Independent 

Director of the Company retired on 9th November, 2021 on 

completion of his term of appointment and ceased to be 

Director of the Company. The Board placed on record its 

appreciation for his invaluable contribution and guidance 

during his tenure as Independent Director of the Company.

Independent Directors

In terms of Section 149 of the Act, Mr. Tirthankar Mitra  

(DIN: 02675454), Mr. Chetan Navinchandra Shah (DIN: 08038633), 

Mr. V. Vimalanand (DIN: 02693721) and Mrs. Sita Vanka  

(DIN: 07016012) are the Independent Directors of the Company. 

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent 

Directors confirming that they meet the criteria of independence 

as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 

16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations and are independent from the 

management. The Independent Directors of the Company hold 

office till the end of their term of appointment or until completion 

of 75 years, whichever is earlier. They are not liable to retire by 

rotation in terms of Section 149(13) of the Act. The Independent 

Directors have also confirmed that they have complied with the 

Company’s Code of Conduct for Board members and Senior 

Management and Codes under SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015.

The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors of the 

Company possess requisite qualifications, experience and expertise 

in chemicals/ manufacturing industry, strategy, auditing, tax and 

risk advisory services, financial services, corporate governance, etc. 

and that they hold standards of integrity.

The Independent Directors of the Company got included their 

names in the data bank of Independent Directors maintained 

with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs in terms of Section 

150 of the Act read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment & 

Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors

The Members of the Board of the Company have been provided 

opportunities to familiarise themselves with the Company, its 

management and its operations. The Directors are provided with 

all the documents to enable them to have a better understanding 

of the Company, its various operations and the industry in which 

it operates.

All the Independent Directors of the Company are made aware 

of their roles and responsibilities at the time of their appointment 

through a formal letter of appointment, which also stipulates 

various terms and conditions of their engagement. Executive 

Directors and Senior Management provide an overview of the 
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operations and familiarise the new Non-Executive Directors on 

matters related to the Company’s values and commitments. They 

are also introduced to the organisation structure, constitution 

of various committees, board procedures, risk management 

strategies, etc.

Strategic Presentations are made to the Board where Directors 

get an opportunity to interact with Senior Management. Directors 

are also informed of the various developments in the Company 

through Press Releases, emails, etc. Senior management personnel 

of the Company make presentations to the Board Members on a 

periodical basis, briefing them on the operations of the Company, 

plans, strategy, risks involved, new initiatives, etc., and seek their 

opinions and suggestions on the same. In addition, the Directors 

are briefed on their specific responsibilities and duties that may 

arise from time to time. The Board is provided with the summary of 

critical regulatory changes from time to time.

The familiarisation programme along with terms and conditions 

of appointment of Independent Directors is disclosed on 

the Company’s website https://www.vishnuchemicals.com/

investors/#Policies.

Committees of the Board

The Board of Directors has the following Committees:

1. Audit Committee

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

3. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

5. Finance Committee of Directors

6. Risk Management Committee

The details of all the above Committees (except for Risk 

Management Committee) along with their composition, number of 

meetings and attendance at the meetings are provided in detail in 

the Corporate Governance Report annexed to this Board’s Report.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee consists of the following 

Directors and Senior Management of the Company:

a. Mr. Ch. Krishna Murthy, Chairman & Managing Director

b. Mr. Ch. Siddartha, Joint Managing Director

c. Mr. Tirthankar Mitra, Independent Director

d. Mrs. Ch. Manjula, Non-Executive Director

e. Mr. CPC Kamalakara Rao, Director (Operations)

f. Mr. P. Anjaneyulu, Chief Financial Officer

g. Mr. T. Ramakrishna, Director (Commercial & Corporate Affairs)

Mr. Ch. Krishna Murthy, Managing Director is the Chairman of 

the Committee; Mr. P. Anjaneyulu, Chief Financial Officer of the 

Company is designated as Chief Risk Officer and Mr. Kishore Kathri, 

Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee.

The Committee had formulated a Risk Management Policy for 

dealing with different kinds of risks which it faces in day-to-

day operations of the Company. Risk Management Policy of the 

Company outlines different kinds of risks and risk mitigating 

measures to be adopted by the Board. The Company has adequate 

internal control systems and procedures to combat risks. The Risk 

management procedures are reviewed by the Audit Committee 

and the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis at the time of review 

of the Quarterly Financial Results of the Company.

Brief description of terms of reference of the Committee, inter alia, 

includes the following:

1.  To formulate a detailed risk management policy which shall 

include:

 a.  A framework for identification of internal and external 

risks specifically faced by the listed entity, in particular 

including financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability 

(particularly, ESG related risks), information, cyber 

security risks or any other risk as may be determined by 

the Committee.

 b.  Measures for risk mitigation including systems and 

processes for internal control of identified risks.

 c.  Business continuity plan.

2.  To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and 

systems are in place to monitor and evaluate risks associated 

with the business of the Company;

3.  To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk 

management policy, including evaluating the adequacy of 

risk management systems;

4.  To periodically review the risk management policy, at least 

once in two years, including by considering the changing 

industry dynamics and evolving complexity;

5.  To keep the board of directors informed about the nature 

and content of its discussions, recommendations and actions 

to be taken;

6.  The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the 

Chief Risk Officer (if any) shall be subject to review by the Risk 

Management Committee.

7.  The Risk Management Committee shall coordinate its 

activities with other committees, in instances where there 

is any overlap with activities of such committees, as per the 

framework laid down by the board of directors.

During the year, no meetings were held by the Committee.

Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Ch. Krishna Murthy, Chairman & Managing Director; Mr. Ch. 

Siddartha, Joint Managing Director; Mr. P. Anjaneyulu, CFO and 

Mr. Kishore Kathri, Company Secretary & AGM-Legal, are Key 
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Managerial Personnel of the Company in accordance with the 
provisions of Section(s) 2(51) and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. There has been no change in 
the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) during the financial year.

Board Meetings

During the year under review, six Board Meetings and four Audit 
Committee Meetings were convened and held, the details of 
which are given in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms 
part of this report. The intervening gap between the Meetings was 
within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Listing Regulations.

Procedure for nomination & Appointment of Directors and 
Remuneration Policy

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) is 
responsible to set the skills/ expertise/ competencies of the Board 
Members based on the industry and strategy of the Company and 
to formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive 
attributes and independence of Directors in terms of provisions of 
Section 178 (3) of the Act and the Listing Regulations. The Board 
has, on the recommendations of the Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee framed a policy for Remuneration of the Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of the Company.

During the financial year 2021-22, the Board had also identified 
the list of core skills, expertise and competencies of the Board of 
Directors as are required in the context of the business and sector 
applicable to the Company and those actually available with the 
Board. The Company has also mapped each of the skills, expertise 
and competencies against the names of the Board Members 
possessing the same.

The objective of the Company’s remuneration policy is to attract, 
motivate and retain qualified and expert individuals that the 
Company needs in order to achieve its strategic and operational 
objectives, whilst acknowledging the societal context around 
remuneration and recognizing the interests of Company’s 
stakeholders.

The Non-Executive Directors (NED) are remunerated by way of 
sitting fee for each meeting attended and are also reimbursed 
out of pocket expenses incurred by them in connection with the 
attendance of the Company’s Meetings.

A copy of the Nomination & Remuneration Policy is available on 
the website of the Company https://vishnuchemicals.com/wp-
content/uploads/2022/06/NRC-Policy-dt-09022018.pdf

Mechanism for Evaluation of the Board

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out an annual evaluation 
of its own performance and that of its Committees as well as 
performance of the Directors individually. Feedback was sought 

by way of a structured questionnaire covering various aspects 

of the Board’s functioning such as adequacy of the composition 
of the Board and its Committees, Board culture, execution and 
performance of specific duties, obligations and governance and 
the evaluation was carried out based on responses received from 
the Directors.

The evaluation is performed by the Board, Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and Independent Directors with 
specific focus on the performance and effective functioning of the 
Board and Individual Directors.

In line with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2017/004, 
dated 5th January, 2017, the Company has adopted the criteria 
recommended by the SEBI. The Directors were given Six Forms for 
evaluation of the following:

a. Evaluation of the Board;

b. Evaluation of Committees of the Board;

c. Evaluation of Independent Directors;

d. Evaluation of Chairperson;

e.  Evaluation of Non-Executive and Non-Independent Directors; 
and

f. Evaluation of Managing Director.

The Directors were requested to give following ratings for each 
criteria:

1. Could do more to meet expectations;

2. Meets expectations; and

3. Exceeds expectations.

A report on the above evaluation has been prepared and submitted 
to the Chairman with feedback for continuous improvement.

In a separate meeting held on 16th May, 2022, the Independent 
Directors evaluated the performance of Non-Independent 
Directors and performance of the Board as a whole. They also 
evaluated the performance of the Chairman taking into account 
the views of Executive Director and Non-Executive Directors. The 
NRC reviewed the performance of the Board, its Committees and 
of the Directors. The same was discussed in the Board Meeting 
that followed the meeting of the Independent Directors and 
NRC, at which the feedback received from the Directors on the 
performance of the Board and its Committees were also discussed.

Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors and Senior 
Management Personnel

The Directors and members of Senior Management have affirmed 
compliance with the Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and 
Senior Management Personnel of the Company. A declaration to 
this effect has been signed by the Chairman & Managing Director 
forms part of the Annual Report.

Particulars of Employees and Remuneration

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as 
required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of 
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the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (‘Rules’) are enclosed as ‘Annexure C’ to  
this Report.

The statement containing particulars of employees as required 

under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the 

Rules does not form part of this Report however the same shall be 

kept open for inspection in terms of Section 136 of the Act and any 

member can obtain a copy of the said statement by writing an email 

to the Company Secretary at investors@vishnuchemicals.com

Internal Financial Controls

Internal financial control systems of the Company are 

commensurate with its size and the nature of its operations. These 

have been designed to provide reasonable assurance with regard 

to recording and providing reliable financial and operational 

information, complying with applicable accounting standards 

and relevant statutes, safeguarding assets from unauthorised use, 

executing transactions with proper authorisation and ensuring 

compliance of corporate policies. The Company has a well-

defined delegation of authority with specified limits for approval 

of expenditure, both capital and revenue. The Company uses an 

established ERP system to record day-to-day transactions for 

accounting and financial reporting.

The Audit Committee deliberated with the members of the 

management, considered the systems as laid down and met the 

internal auditors and statutory auditors to ascertain, their views 

on the internal financial control systems. The Audit Committee 

satisfied itself as to the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 

financial control system as laid down and kept the Board of 

Directors informed. However, the Company recognises that no 

matter how the internal control framework is, it has inherent 

limitations and accordingly, periodic audits and reviews ensure 

that such systems are updated on regular intervals.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and 

compliance systems established and maintained by the 

Company, work performed by the internal, statutory, cost and 

secretarial auditors and external consultant(s), including audit 

of internal financial controls over financial reporting and the 

reviews performed by the Management and the relevant Board 

Committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of 

the opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls were 

adequate and effective during 2021-22.

Accordingly, pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of 

Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, confirm that 

for the year ended 31st March, 2022:

a.  in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable 

accounting standards have been followed and that there are 

no material departures;

b.  they have selected such accounting policies and applied 

them consistently and made judgments and estimates 

that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 

fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end 

of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for  

that period;

c.  they have taken proper and sufficient care for the 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 

with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of 

the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 

other irregularities;

d.  they have prepared the annual accounts on a going  

concern basis;

e.  they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed 

by the Company and that such internal financial controls are 

adequate and are operating effectively; and

f.  they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with 

the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems 

are adequate and operating effectively.

Auditors

i. Statutory Audit

  M/s. Jampani & Associates, Chartered Accountants (FRN - 

016581S), Hyderabad were re-appointed as statutory auditors 

of the Company for second term of five (5) years i.e. from the 

date of 28th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 

33rd AGM to be held in year 2026 in terms of Sections 139, 

142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 

Rules, 2014 (the Rules) and the same was approved by the 

members at 28th AGM held on 12th July, 2021.

  The Company received a certificate from the auditors 

confirming that they have not attracted any disqualifications 

as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and the 

Chartered Accountant Act, 1949 read with rules made 

thereunder.

  Further, the report of the Statutory Auditors along with notes 

to accounts is a part of the Annual Report. There has been no 

other qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer 

given by the Auditors in their Report except below:

 Auditor’s Observations:

  The Statutory Auditors have mentioned in their report at 

point no. (iii) of Annexure – ’B’ to the Independent Auditors 

Report regarding interest free unsecured loans of ̀  989 Lakhs 

(with a value at amortised cost of ` 951.59 Lakhs) to wholly-

owned subsidiary (WOS) i.e. Vishnu Barium Private Limited 

(VBPL). Further, they also mentioned in their report at point 

no. (a) of (vii) of Annexure – ‘B’ that the Company has generally 
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been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues except 

instances of payment of income tax and they also mentioned 

that there are no dues outstanding for a period of more 

than six months from the date they became payable as at  

31st March, 2022.

 Management Replies:

  The above said interest-free unsecured loan was infused by 

the Company in WOS Company i.e. VBPL, to comply with the 

conditions stipulated by the Banker for sanction of term loan 

and working capital facilities to VBPL and such infusion of 

unsecured loan is for the ultimate benefit of the Company; 

During the year, the Company has paid all its statutory dues 

pertaining to the previous years and efforts are being made 

to comply with the provisions of advance tax during the 

financial year 2022-23.

ii. Cost Auditors

  As per Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Cost 

Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Company is required to 

prepare, maintain as well as get its cost records audited by 

a Cost Accountant and accordingly such cost accounts and 

records are being maintained by the Company.

  During the year, there occurred a casual vacancy in the 

office of Cost Auditor due to the sudden demise of Mr. N.V.S. 

Kapardhi, Cost Auditor and such causal vacancy was filled by 

the Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, 

at its meeting held on 14th February, 2022 by appointing 

M/s. Sagar & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration 

No. 000118) as the Cost Auditors of the Company to conduct 

audit of the cost records of the Company for 2021-22 under 

section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the Act.

  Further, on the recommendations of the Audit Committee, 

the Board at its meeting held on 16th May, 2022 has re-

appointed M/s. Sagar & Associates, Cost Accountants (FRN: 

000118) as the Cost Auditors of the Company to conduct 

audit of the cost records of the Company for 2022-23 at such 

terms & conditions as approved by the Board.

  M/s. Sagar & Associates, Cost Accountants (FRN: 000118) has 

confirmed that they are free from disqualification specified 

under Section 141(3) and proviso to Section 148(3) read with 

Section 141(4) of the Act and that the appointment meets 

the requirements of Section 141(3) (g) of the Act. They have 

further confirmed their independent status and an arm’s 

length relationship with the Company.

  In terms of the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and 

Auditors) Rules, 2014, (as amended from time to time), the 

remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors is required to be 

placed before the Members in a General Meeting for their 

ratification. Accordingly, a resolution for seeking Members’ 

ratification for the remuneration payable to M/s. Sagar & 

Associates, Cost Accountants (FRN: 000118) for the 2021-22 

and 2022-23 is included at Item Nos. 10 & 11 of the Notice 

convening the AGM.

iii. Secretarial Audit

  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, 

the Board has appointed M/s. L.D.Reddy & Co., Company 

Secretaries, Hyderabad to undertake the Secretarial Audit 

of the Company for 2021-22. The Secretarial Audit Report of 

2021-22 is annexed herewith as ‘Annexure D’.

  There has been no other qualification, reservation, adverse 

remark or disclaimer given by the Auditors in their Report 

except the concern about delay in deposit of some of the 

tax dues. In this regard, the management explained that 

the Company has deposited all its pending taxes during the 

2021-22 and has assured that the same will be given priority 

hereinafter.

Secretarial Standards

The Board has devised proper systems and processes for complying 

with the requirements of applicable Secretarial Standards issued 

by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) and that such 

systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Energy conservation, technology absorption and foreign 
exchange earnings and outgo

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption 

and foreign exchange earnings and outgo stipulated under 

Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is annexed herewith as 

‘Annexure E’.

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related 
Parties

All related party transactions that were entered into during the 

financial year were on an arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary 

course of business. There are no materially significant related party 

transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, 

Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which 

may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at 

large. All the transactions with related parties were approved by 

the Audit Committee and the Board, as may be applicable; and the 

same are reviewed by the Audit Committee on quarterly basis. Also 

prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for 

related party transactions which are of repetitive in nature entered 

in ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. The 

transactions entered into pursuant to the omnibus approval are 

reviewed by the internal audit team and the Audit Committee on 

quarterly basis.

BOARD’S REPORT (COnTD.)

L.D.Reddy


36Vishnu ChemiCals limiTeD

The Company has developed a Policy on Related Party Transactions 

for the purpose of identification and monitoring of such 

transactions. The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved 

by the Board is uploaded on the website of the Company and the 

web link is https://www.vishnuchemicals.com/investors/#Policies.

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties 

referred to in sub section (1) of Section 188 entered by the Company 

during the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2022 is annexed to this 

Board’s Report in prescribed Form AOC-2 as ‘Annexure F’.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) initiatives

The brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 

policy of the Company, details regarding CSR Committee and the 

initiatives undertaken by the Company on CSR activities during 

the year are set out in ‘Annexure G’ of this report in the format 

prescribed in the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 

Policy) Rules, 2014. CSR Policy is available on the Company’s 

website on https://www.vishnuchemicals.com/wp-content/

uploads/2021/03/CSR-Policy-updated-on-12022021.pdf

Whistle blower policy/ Vigil mechanism

In terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations, the Company has a vigil 

mechanism to deal with instances of fraud and mismanagement, if 

any, including reporting instances of leak of UPSI or suspected leak 

of UPSI by employees, anti-bribery & anti-corruption and taking 

appropriate actions on such reporting. The Audit Committee 

reviews the functioning of the vigil / whistle blower mechanism 

from time to time. There were no allegations / disclosures / 

concerns received during the year under review in terms of the 

vigil mechanism established by the Company. The details of the 

vigil mechanism are displayed on the website of the Company 

https://www.vishnuchemicals.com/investors/#Policies

Prevention of Insider Trading

Pursuant to SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 

as amended, the Company has adopted the Code of Internal 

Procedures and Conduct for Regulating, Monitoring and Reporting 

of Trading by Designated Persons and their Immediate Relatives 

along with Code of Fair Disclosures and a copy of the same are 

available on company’s website https://www.vishnuchemicals.

com/investors/#Policies.

Environment, Health and Safety

The Company considers it is essential to protect the Earth and 

limited natural resources as well as the health and wellbeing of 

every person especially employees/ workers of the Company.

The Company strives to achieve safety, health and environmental 

excellence in all aspects of its business activities. Acting responsibly 

with a focus on safety, health and the environment to be part of 

the Company’s DNA.

In line with the ‘Go Green’ philosophy, the Company is continuously 

adopting new techniques to eliminate and minimise the 

environmental impact. Various projects have been implemented 

by the Company to use alternate sources of energy wherever 

possible.

The Company does not just talk about ‘Sustainability’, it follows 

in true letter and spirit; Sustainability is about how VCL operates. 

VCL strives to promote Circular Economy and deliver Societal 

Value. VCL’s approach is to innovate, collaborate and educate 

communities.

With an intensive focus on safety, we have achieved decline in 

our total recordable injury rate (TRIR). We firmly believe that we 

can progress only as fast as the successful implementation and 

acceptance of our safety programmes and initiatives.

Our aim is to build a more mature and sustainable safety culture 

that will allow us to increase our productivity and operational 

discipline and facilitate highly competitive organic growth.

Occupational health is a key aspect of VCL’s safety activities. 

Currently, there are several health programmes initiated at each 

site and location, including global health days with dedicated 

initiatives.

Process safety is an integral part of our mission to operate in the 

safest manner possible by increasing the efficiency and reliability 

of our operations.

Prevention of Sexual Harassment (‘POSH’)

In order to comply with provisions of the Sexual Harassment of 

Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 

2013 and Rules framed thereunder, the Company has formulated 

and implemented a policy on prevention, prohibition and 

redressal of complaints related to sexual harassment of women 

at the workplace. All women employees permanent, temporary 

or contractual are covered under the above policy. The said policy 

has been circulated to all employees by hosting on notice board 

and a copy of the same has been uploaded on the website of the 

Company. An Internal Complaint Committee (ICC) has been set up 

in compliance with the said Act. To build awareness in this area, 

the Company has been conducting awareness sessions during 

induction. During the year under review, no complaints pertaining 

to sexual harassment of women employees were reported.

Annual Return

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, 

the Annual Return as on 31st March, 2022 is available on the 

Company’s website on https://vishnuchemicals.com/wp-content/

uploads/2022/05/VCL_Form_MGT_7-dt31032022-draft-pdf.pdf

Corporate Governance

A detailed report on Corporate Governance forms part of this 

Report as ‘Annexure H’. The Secretarial Auditors of the Company 

BOARD’S REPORT (COnTD.)

https://www.vishnuchemicals.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/CSR-Policy-updated-on-12022021.pdf
https://www.vishnuchemicals.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/CSR-Policy-updated-on-12022021.pdf
https://vishnuchemicals.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/VCL_Form_MGT_7-dt31032022-draft-pdf.pdf
https://vishnuchemicals.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/VCL_Form_MGT_7-dt31032022-draft-pdf.pdf
https://vishnuchemicals.com/investors/#Policies
https://vishnuchemicals.com/investors/#Policies
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have examined the Company’s compliance and have certified 

the same as required under the Listing Regulations. A copy of the 

certificate on corporate governance is reproduced in this Annual 

Report.

Business responsibility report

The ‘Business Responsibility Report’ (BRR) of your Company for the 

year ended 31st March, 2022 forms part of this Annual Report as 

required under Regulation 34(2)(f ) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as ‘Annexure I’.

transfer of unpaid and unclaimed amounts to Investor 
education and protection Fund (IepF)

As per section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, 

Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 and subsequent amendments 

thereto (“the Rules”), all shares in respect of which dividends has 

not been paid or claimed for seven consecutive years or more shall 

be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF).

In line with the aforesaid provisions, during the year, unclaimed 

interim dividend declared for the FY 2014-15 along with the 

underlying shares on which dividend has not been claimed for 

seven consecutive years have been transferred to IEPF.

The procedure for claiming such unclaimed dividend/ shares 

from IEPF has been made available on website of the Company 

https://vishnuchemicals.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/04/

Procedure-for-claiming-shares-unclaimed-dividend.pdf. Also, the 

List of shareholders whose shares have been transferred to IEPF is 

available on the website of the Company https://vishnuchemicals.

com/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/List-of-shareholders-whose-

shares-are-being-transferred-to-IEPF-along-with-Unclaimed_

Unpaid-dividend-for-seven-consecutive-years.pdf.

Significant and material orders passed by the regulators or 
courts

During the year under review, there were no significant material 

orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which would impact the 

going concern status of the Company and its future operations.
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FORM AOC. 1

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

[Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

(i) Part “A”: Subsidiaries 

` in Lakhs
S.no. Particulars Vishnu Barium 

Private limited Vishnu South Africa (Pty) limited

Reporting period 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2022
Reporting currency and Exchange rate of subsidiaries  ` in Lakhs In ` Rand in actuals/

Exchange Rate is 
` 4.88

1 Share capital 8,727.50 4,880 1,000

2 Reserves & surplus (1,879.92) (9,760) (2,000)
3 Total assets 16,819.42 0 0

4 Total Liabilities(Excl. share capital and R&S) 9,971.85 4,880 1,000

5 Investments 145.98 - -

6 Turnover 17,533.61 - -

7 Profit before taxation 2,327.66 (732) (150)

8 Provision for taxation 712.28 - -

9 Profit after taxation 1,615.38 (732) (150)

10 Total Comprehensive income 1,599.87 - -

11 Proposed Dividend

- Equity Nil Nil Nil

- Preference NA NA NA

12 % of shareholding 100% 100% 100%

 Note: Vishnu South Africa (Pty) Limited, overseas wholly-owned subsidiary is yet to commence its operations.

(ii) Part B of the Annexure is not applicable as there are no associate companies/joint ventures of the Company as on 31st March, 2022.

‘AnnExuRE A’

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 Sd/- Sd/-
 Ch. Krishna Murthy Ch. Manjula
 Chairman & Managing Director Director
 DIN: 00030274 DIN: 01546339

Sd/- Sd/-
Hyderabad P. Anjaneyulu Kishore Kathri
16th May, 2022 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary & AGM-Legal

S.No
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To
The Members
M/s. Vishnu Barium Private Limited
Plot No. C-23, Road No. 8, Film Nagar,
Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad – 500033

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit on the compliance 
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by M/s. Vishnu Barium Private limited 
(hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and 
expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, 
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company and also the information provided by the Company, 
its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the 
conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in my opinion, 
the Company has, during the audit period from 1st April, 2021 to 
31st March, 2022, complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes 
and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner 
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

1.  We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms 
and returns filed and other records maintained by M/s. 
Vishnu Barium Private Limited (“The Company”) for the 
Period from 1st April, 2021 to 31st March, 2022 according to 
the provisions of:

 i.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made 
thereunder;

 ii.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and 
Bye-laws framed thereunder; (Not Applicable to the 
Company during audit period)

 iii.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules 
and Regulations made thereunder; (Not Applicable to 
the Company during audit period)

 iv.  Since the Company being unlisted material Subsidiary 
of the M/s. Vishnu Chemicals Limited (Listed Entity) the 
following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
(‘SEBI Act’):

  i.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011; (Not Applicable to the 
Company during audit period)

  ii.  SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
2015. (Not Applicable to the Company during 
audit period)

‘AnnExuRE B’
FORM MR - 3
Secretarial Audit Report
For the Period from 1st April, 2021 to 31st March, 2022

[Pursuant to Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended]

  iii.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2009; (Not Applicable to the 
Company during audit period)

  iv.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share 
based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014. (Not 
Applicable to the Company during audit period)

  v.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue 
and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008. 
(Not Applicable to the Company during audit 
period)

  vi.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act 
and dealing with client. (Not Applicable to the 
Company during audit period)

  vii.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009. 
(Not Applicable to the Company during audit 
period)

  viii.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018. (Not 
Applicable to the Company during audit period)

  ix.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.

 vi. The Payment of Wages Act, 1936

 vii. Minimum Wages Act, 1948

 viii.  Employees Provident Fund And Misc. Provisions Act, 
1952

 ix. Employees State Insurance Act,1948

 x. Payment of Gratuity Act,1972

 xi. Employee’s Compensation Act,1923

 xii. Contract Labour (Regulation & Abolition ) Act, 1970

 xiii.  Employment Exchange (Compulsory Notification of 
Vacancies) Act, 1959

 xvi. Income Tax Act, 1961

 xv. GST Acts and Rules made thereunder

 xvi. The Insurance Act, 1938 as amended.

 xvii.  The Factories Act, 1948 and Andhra Pradesh Factories 
Rules, 1980

 xviii.  Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act 1974 and 
rules there under

 xix.  Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act 1981 and 
rules there under

file:///D:/Sumit/Annual%20Report%202022/Vishnu%20Chemical/client/07062022/javascript:%20detailForm('33779',%20'http://www.sebi.gov.in/cms/sebi_data/attachdocs/1460457118635.pdf',%20'SEBI-Prohibition-of-Insider-Trading-Regulations-2015');
file:///D:/Sumit/Annual%20Report%202022/Vishnu%20Chemical/client/07062022/javascript:%20detailForm('33779',%20'http://www.sebi.gov.in/cms/sebi_data/attachdocs/1460457118635.pdf',%20'SEBI-Prohibition-of-Insider-Trading-Regulations-2015');
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 xx. The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

 xxi.  Hazardous and Other Wastes (Management & Trans 
boundary Movement) Rules, 2016

 xxii. Customs Act, 1962

 xxiii.  The Boilers Act, 1923 and Indian Boilers Regulations - 
1950

 xxiv. The Petroleum Act, 1934 and Petroleum Rules, 2002

  We have also examined compliance with the applicable 
clauses of

 xxv.  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India.

 xxvi.  The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company 
with the BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of 
India Limited - Not Applicable.

2.  We further report that the Company has, in my opinion, 
complied with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Rules made under that Act as notified by Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs and the Memorandum and Articles of 
Association of the Company, with regard to:

	   Forms, returns, documents and resolutions required 
to be filed with the Registrar of Companies and the 
Central Government;

	   Service of documents by the Company on its Directors, 
Members, Auditors.

	   Minutes of proceedings of General Meetings and of the 
Board and its Committee meetings;

	   Approvals of the Members, the Board of Directors and 
the government authorities, wherever required;

	   Payment of remuneration and reappointment of 
Directors including the Managing Director and Whole-
time Directors,

	   Appointment and remuneration of Statutory Auditor, 
Cost Auditor and Secretarial Auditor.

	   Borrowings and registration, modification and 
satisfaction of charges wherever applicable;

	   Format of Balance Sheet and statement of profit and 
loss is as per Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013.

	   Report of the Board of Directors;

	   The Directors have complied with the disclosure 
requirements in respect of their eligibility of 
appointment;

3.  We further report that there was no prosecution initiated and 
no fines or penalties were imposed during the period under 
review under the Companies Act, Depositories Act, and 
Rules, Regulations and Guidelines framed there under on the 
Company or on its Directors and Officers.

4. We further report that:

  The Company has obtained consent of Andhra State Pollution 
Control Board, as per the provision of Water (Prevention & 
Control of Pollution) Act, 1974; and

	   The Company is regular in payment of gratuity as per 
the rules of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 and has 
provided 100% provision in the books of accounts.

	   The Company has filed return as per the Factories Act, 
1948.

	   The Company has renewed the Insurance Policy under 
Employees State Insurance Act,1948

	   The Company has filed return under Employment 
Exchange Act/ Rules

	   The Company has renewed the Policy with LIC for 
Gratuity under Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

5.  We further report that based on the information received 
and records maintained there are adequate systems and 
processes in the Company commensurate with the size 
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines.

6.  We further Report that during the audit period the Company 
has:

	   No Public /Right/Preferential Issue of Shares/
Debentures/Sweat Equity etc.,

	   No Redemption/Buy-back of Securities;

	   Major decision taken by the members in pursuance 
of Section 180 of the companies Act, 2013 relating to 
business expansion.

	   No Merger/Amalgamation/Reconstruction, etc.,

	   No Foreign Technical Collaborations;

For l.D.Reddy & Co.,
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
l. Dhanamjay Reddy
(Proprietor)
M.No.13104; CP No.3752

Date : 14th May, 2022 UDIN: A013104D000321016
Place: Hyderabad PR: 1262/2021

‘AnnExuRE B’ (COnTD.)

http://dipp.nic.in/boiler_rules_updated/index1.htm
http://dipp.nic.in/boiler_rules_updated/index1.htm
L.D.Reddy
M.No
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To

The Members

Vishnu Barium Private limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.  Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 

on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.  We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the 

contents of the secretarial records. The verification said was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial 

records. We believe that the process and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4.  Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and 

happening of events, etc.

5.  The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of 

management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

6.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with 

which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

‘AnnExuRE’

For l.D.Reddy & Co.,
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
l. Dhanamjay Reddy
(Proprietor)
M.No.13104; CP No.3752

Date : 14th May, 2022 UDIN: A013104D000321016
Place : Hyderabad PR: 1262/2021

L.D.Reddy
M.No
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Disclosure of Managerial Remuneration

[Pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014]

S.no Requirements Disclosure

1 The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration 

of all the employees of the Company for the financial year.

name of the Director Ratio (in x times)

Mr.Ch. Krishna Murthy 22 times

Mr. Ch. Siddartha 11 times

Mrs. Ch. Manjula* -

Mr. T Mitra* -

Mr. Chetan Shah* -

Mr. V Vimalanand* -

Mr. Pradip Saha* -

*Non-executive Directors are not paid any remuneration or commission except sitting fee.

**The median remuneration of all the employees of the Company was ` 4.20 Lakhs p.a.

2 The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial 

Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in 

the financial year;

name % increase in 
Remuneration

Mr.Ch. Krishna Murthy 38 %

Mr. Ch. Siddartha Nil

Mr. P. Anjaneyulu 13 %

Mr. Kishore Kathri 25 %

3 The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the 

financial year;

During 2021-22, the percentage increase in the 

median remuneration of employees is 13 %

4 The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company; There were 416 employees as on 31st March, 2022

5 Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees 

other than the managerial personnel in the last financial year and its 

comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration 

and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional 

circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration;

The average percentile increase already made in 

the salaries of employees is 13%.

6.  Affirmation: It is affirmed that the remuneration paid to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other senior employees is as per 

the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

‘AnnExuRE C’

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-

Ch. Krishna Murthy Ch. Manjula

Hyderabad Chairman & Managing Director Director

16th May, 2022 DIN: 00030274 DIN: 01546339

S.No
Mr.Ch
Mr.Ch
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To

The Members

M/s. Vishnu Chemicals Limited

H.No. 8-2-293/82/F/23-C, Plot No. 23,

Road No. 8, Film Nagar, Jubilee Hills,

Hyderabad TG 500033

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit on the compliance 

of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 

corporate practices by M/s. Vishnu Chemicals limited 

(hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was 

conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 

evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and 

expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, 

forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 

Company and also the information provided by the Company, 

its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the 

conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in my opinion, 

the Company has, during the audit period from 1st April, 2021 to 

31st March, 2022, complied with the statutory provisions listed 

hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes 

and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner 

and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

1.  We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms 

and returns filed and other records maintained by Vishnu 
Chemicals limited (“the Company”) for the period from 1st 

April, 2021 to 31st March, 2022 according to the provisions of:

 i.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made 

thereunder;

 ii.  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) 

and the Rules made thereunder;

 iii.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and 

Bye-laws framed thereunder;

 iv.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the 

Rules and Regulations made thereunder;

 v.  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed 

under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 

1992 (‘SEBI Act’) :

  a.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011;

‘AnnExuRE D’

FORM nO.MR-3
Secretarial Audit Report

For the Period from 1st April, 2021 to 31st March, 2022

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

  b.  SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015

  c.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2009; (Not Applicable to the 

Company during audit period)

  d.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share 

Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (Not 

applicable to the Company during the audit 

period)

  e.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue 

and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 

(Not applicable to the Company during the audit 

period).

  f.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act 

and dealing with client.

  g.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 

(Not applicable to the Company during the audit 

period)

  h.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not 

applicable to the Company during the audit 

period).

  i.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015.

 vi.  The Payment of Wages Act, 1936

 vii.  Minimum Wages Act, 1948

 viii.  Employees Provident Fund and Misc. Provisions Act, 

1952

H.No
NO.MR
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 ix.  Employees State Insurance Act,1948

 x.  Payment of Gratuity Act,1972

 xi. Employee’s Compensation Act,1923

 xii. Contract Labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act, 1970

 xiii.  Employment Exchange (Compulsory Notification of 

Vacancies) Act, 1959

 xiv. Income Tax Act, 1961

 xv. GST Acts and Rules made thereunder

 xvi. The Insurance Act, 1938, as amended

 xvii. The Factories Act, 1948

 xviii.  Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act 1974 and 

rules there under

 xix.  Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act 1981 and 

rules there under

 xx. The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

 xxi.  Hazardous and Other Wastes (Management & Trans 

boundary Movement) Rules, 2016.

 xxii.  Customs Act, 1962

 xxii.  The Boilers Act, 1923 and Indian Boilers Regulations 

,1950

 xxiv.  The Petroleum Act, 1934 and Petroleum Rules, 2002

  We have also examined compliance with the applicable 

clauses of

 xxv.  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of 

Company Secretaries of India.

 xxvi.  the Listing Agreements entered into by the Company 

with the BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of 

India Limited.

2.  We further report that the Company has, in my opinion, 

complied with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

and the Rules made under that Act as notified by Ministry 

of Corporate Affairs and the Memorandum and Articles of 

Association of the Company, with regard to:

 l	 	Closure of the Register of Members.

 l	 	Forms, returns, documents and resolutions required to 

be filed with the Registrar of Companies;

 l	 	Service of documents by the Company on its Directors, 

Members, Auditors etc.

 l	 	The Board of Directors of the Company is duly 

constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 

Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. 

The changes in the composition of the Board of 

Directors that took place during the period under 

review were carried out in compliance with the 

provisions of the Act;

 l	 	Minutes of proceedings of General Meetings and of the 

Board and its Committee meetings;

 l	 	Constitution of the Board of Directors / Committee(s) of 

Directors, appointment, retirement and reappointment 

of Directors including the Managing Director and 

Whole-time Directors;

 l	 	Appointment and remuneration of Statutory Auditor, 

Cost Auditor and Secretarial Auditor.

 l	 	Borrowings and registration, modification and 

satisfaction of charges wherever applicable;

 l	 	Format of Balance Sheet and statement of profit and 

loss is as per Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013

 l	 	Report of the Board of Directors;

 l	 	The Directors have complied with the disclosure 

requirements in respect of their eligibility of 

appointment, their being independent and compliance 

with the Code of Business Conduct & Ethics for Directors 

and Senior Management;

We further report that there was no prosecution initiated and no 

fines or penalties were imposed during the period under review 

under the Companies Act, SEBI Act, SCRA, Depositories Act, 

Listing Agreement and Rules, Regulations and Guidelines framed 

thereunder against the Company or its Directors and Officers.

3. We Further Report That:

 l	 	The Company is regular in payment of gratuity as per 

the rules of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 and has 

provided 100% provision in the books of accounts.

 l	 	The Company has filed return as per the Factories Act, 

1948.

 l	 	The Company is regular in publishing Audited and 

Unaudited Financial Results.

 l	 	The Company has renewed the Insurance Policy under 

Employees State Insurance Act, 1948.

 l	 	The Company has filed return under Employment 

Exchange Act/Rules.

 l	 	The Company has renewed the Policy with LIC for 

Gratuity under Payment of Gratuity Act,1972.

4.  We further report that based on the information received 

and records maintained there are adequate systems and 

processes in the Company commensurate with the size 

and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 

‘AnnExuRE D’ (COnTD.)
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compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 

guidelines.

5.  We further Report that during the audit Period we notice that 

the Company has to comply with the below.

 l	 Some portion of tax dues are deposited with some delay.

6.  We further Report that during the audit Period the Company 

has

 l	 	No Public /Right/Preferential Issue of Shares/

Debentures/Sweat Equity etc.,

To

The Members

M/s. Vishnu Chemicals Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.  Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 

on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.  We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the 

contents of the secretarial records. The said verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial 

records. We believe that the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.  We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4.  Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and 

happening of events, etc.

5.  The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of 

management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

6.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with 

which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

 l	 	No Redemption/Buy-back of Securities;

 l	 	No major decision taken by the members in pursuance 

of Section 180 of the companies Act, 2013;

 l	 	No Merger/Amalgamation/Reconstruction, etc.,

 l	 	No Foreign Technical Collaborations;

For l.D.Reddy & Co.,
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
l. Dhanamjay Reddy
(Proprietor)
M.No.13104; CP No.3752

Date : 14th May, 2022 UDIN: A013104D000320983
Place: Hyderabad PR:1262/2021

AnnExuRE

For l.D.Reddy & Co.,
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
l. Dhanamjay Reddy
(Proprietor)
M.No.13104; CP No.3752

Date :14th May, 2022 UDIN: A013104D000320983
Place: Hyderabad PR: 1262/2021
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COnSERVATIOn OF EnERGy, TECHnOlOGy ABSORPTIOn AnD FOREIGn ExCHAnGE EARnInGS AnD OuTGO

[Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

A. Conservation of energy

‘AnnExuRE E’

 (i) Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

  a.  Energy efficient spares and consumables were 

purchased for replacements.

  b.  Single effect evaporators under vacuum are being 

replaced with multiple effect evaporators to save 

steam.

 (ii)  Steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate 
sources of energy:

   The Company has decided to set up solar power at 

subsidiary unit under the long term power contract 

model.

 (iii)  The capital investment on energy conservation 
equipments:

   There was no major capital investment on energy 

conservation equipment’s during the year

B. Technology absorption

 (i) The efforts made towards technology absorption:

   During the year, the Company improved its packaging 

processes through adoption of latest technology.

 (ii)  The benefits derived like product improvement, 
cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution:

  Resulted in increase in domestic and export turnover.

 (iii)  In case of imported technology (imported during 
the last three years reckoned from the beginning 
of the financial year)-

(a)  the details of technology 

imported;

(b) the year of import;

(c)  whether the technology 

been fully absorbed;

(d)  if not fully absorbed, areas 

where absorption has 

not taken place, and the 

reasons thereof;

Not applicable 

as there was 

no import of 

t e c h n o l o g y 

during the last 

three years

 (iv) Expenditure on R&D:

   During the year the Company has not made any 

expenditure on research & development.

C. Foreign exchange earnings & outgo:

 (` In Lakhs)
2021-22 2020-21

Total Foreign Exchange used and earned in terms of actual 
inflows and actual outflow:
Used / Outflow 18,063.10 12,603.58
Earned / Inflow 39,814.06 24,677.78

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
Ch. Krishna Murthy  Ch. Manjula

Hyderabad Chairman & Managing Director Director
16th May, 2022 DIN: 00030274  DIN: 01546339
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Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to 
in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso 
thereto:

1.  There are no contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 which are not at arm’s length basis.

2.  During the financial year the Company has not entered in to any material contracts or arrangements. However, the following 

transactions are entered in term of section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 at arm’s length basis:

S. 
no.

name (s) of the 
related party 

& nature of 
relationship

nature of contracts/
arrangements/

transaction

Duration of 
the contracts/

arrangements/ 
transaction

Salient terms of 
the contracts or 

arrangements or 
transaction including the 

value, if any

Date of 
approval by 
the Board

Amount 
paid as 

advances, 
if any

1 Vishnu Barium 
Private Limited,WOS 
Company

Sharing of common 
resources for services 
related to accounting, 
marketing and other 
supporting services.

Five years i.e. from 1st 
April, 2018 till 31st 
March, 2023

Charges of ` 10.00 Lakhs 
per month shall be paid to 
Vishnu Chemicals Limited for 
using common resources

30th May, 
2018

Nil

2 Vishnu Barium 
Private Limited, 
WOS Company

Sale of Rotary Kiln -3 to 
VBPL as the same was 
lying as a spare.

One time Sold at consideration of  
` 80.00 Lakhs and the said 
consideration is arrived 
based on the independent 
valuer’s report

12th February, 
2021

Nil

2 Vasantha Transport 
Corporation (VTC), 
Proprietary Concern,

Where Mr. Ch. 
Krishna Murthy, 
Managing Director 
is Proprietor

Availing transport, 
hire services and CHA 
services

Renewed the contract 
for a period from 
6th May, 2019 till 
31st March, 2024 
and the same has 
been amended on 
12th August, 2021 
for addition of CHA 
services.

The aggregate value of 
transaction during any 
financial year shall be less 
than 10% of the turnover of 
the Company, as per latest 
audited balance sheet or  
` 5,000.00 Lakhs, whichever 
is less.

All the services rendered 
during the contract term 
shall be at prevailing market 
price.

6th May, 2019 
& 12th August, 
2021

Nil

4 Mr. Ch. Krishna 
Murthy, Managing 
Director of the 
Company

The Company has 
taken building on lease.

Duration of the 
agreement is ten years 
i.e. from 1st July, 2017 
till 30th June, 2027

Lease rent is ` 3.70 Lakhs per 
month, which is prevailing 
market rate and the same 
shall be enhanced by 15% 
once in every three years.

28th August, 
2017

Nil

5 Mrs. Ch. Manjula, 
Director of the 
Company

The Company took land 
admeasuring Ac. 2.11 
cents on lease for the 
purpose of preserving 
its raw material.

Duration of the lease is 
from 1st June, 2021 till 
31st May, 2024

Lease rent is of ` 2.11 Lakhs 
per month (excluding all 
applicable taxes), which is 
prevailing market rate.

19th May, 
2021

Nil

6 Vishnu Life Sciences 
Limited (VLS),

Where Mr. Ch. 
Siddartha, Joint 
Managing Director 
is Director and holds 
more than 2%

The Company has 
taken factory premises 
of VLS on lease

Duration of the lease 
was renewed on 30th 
September, 2019 for 
a period from 1st 
October, 2019 till 
31st March, 2024; 
However, the lease was 
terminated on 30th 
June, 2021.

Lease rent is ` 2.00 Lakhs per 
month which is at prevailing 
market price

Renewal is 
approved at 
Board Meeting 
6th May, 
2019 and its 
termination is 
noted on 19th 
May, 2021

Nil

‘AnnExuRE F’
FORM nO. AOC -2
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S. 
no.

name (s) of the 
related party 

& nature of 
relationship

nature of contracts/
arrangements/

transaction

Duration of 
the contracts/

arrangements/ 
transaction

Salient terms of 
the contracts or 

arrangements or 
transaction including the 

value, if any

Date of 
approval by 
the Board

Amount 
paid as 

advances, 
if any

7 Vishnu Life Sciences 
Limited (VLS),

Where Mr. Ch. 
Siddartha, Joint 
Managing Director 
is Director and holds 
more than 2%

Sale of equipment 
installed at factory 
premises of VLS

One time Sold at a consideration of 
` 110.00 Lakhs (including 
for immovable structures) 
and the said consideration 
is arrived based on the 
valuation report provided by 
independent valuer.

19th May, 
2021

Nil

8 Vishnu Life Sciences 
Limited (VLS),

Where Mr. Ch. 
Siddartha, Joint 
Managing Director 
is Director and holds 
more than 2%

Agreement entered 
on 12th August, 2021 
for procuring Metpen 
in required quantities 
from time to time

Duration of the 
agreement is from 
10th May, 2021 till 9th 
May, 2024

The said procurement 
of product shall be at 
prevailing market price and 
the aggregate value of the 
transactions shall not exceed 
` 1,000.00 Lakhs during any 
financial year

12th August, 
2021

Nil

Note:

a. All related party transactions entered during the year were at arm’s length basis.

b.  Appropriate approvals have been taken from the Audit Committee and the Board for the related party transactions entered by the 

Company and advances paid have been adjusted against bills, wherever applicable.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 

Sd/- Sd/-

Ch. Krishna Murthy Ch. Manjula

Hyderabad Chairman & Managing Director Director

16th May, 2022 DIN: 00030274 DIN:01546339

AnnExuRE F (COnTD.)
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1. Brief outline on CSr policy of the Company:

  Corporate Social Responsibility reflects the strong commitment of the Company to improve the quality of life of the workforce and 

their families and also the community and society at large. The Company believes in undertaking business in a way that will lead to 

overall development of all stakeholders and society.

  This policy shall apply to all CSR initiatives and activities taken up at the various work-center and locations of Vishnu Chemicals Limited 

(VCL), for the benefit of different segments of the society. The objective of the Company is:

   To ensure an increased commitment at all levels in the organisation, to operate its business in an economically, socially & 

environmentally sustainable manner, while recognising the interests of all its stakeholders.

   To directly or indirectly take up programmes that benefit the communities in & around its Work Centre and results, over a period 

of time, in enhancing the quality of life & economic wellbeing of the local people.

   To generate, through its CSR initiatives, a goodwill for the Company and help reinforce a positive & socially responsible image of 

the Company as a corporate entity.

2. the Composition of CSr Committee:

  The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (‘CSR Committee’) of the Board of Directors of the Company comprises of the Directors 

as indicated below:

S. 
no.

name of the Director Designation/ nature of Directorship number of meetings 
of CSr Committee held 

during the year

number of meetings of 
CSr Committee attended 

during the year
1 Mr. Chetan Shah Chairman*, Independent Director 2 1
2 Mr. Ch. Krishna Murthy Member, Managing Director 2 2
3 Mrs. Ch. Manjula Member, Non-Executive Director 2 2
4 Mr. Pradip Saha Chairman#, Independent Director 2 1

 * Mr. Chetan Shah is the Chairman & Member of Committee w.e.f. 10th November, 2021.

 # Mr. Pradip Saha ceased to be the Chairman & Member of Committee w.e.f. 9th November, 2021.

3.  Web-link where Composition of CSr committee, CSr policy and CSr projects approved by the board are disclosed on the 
website of the Company:

  CSR Policy: https://www.vishnuchemicals.com/investors/#Policies Composition of the Committee: https://vishnuchemicals.com/wp-

content/uploads/2022/06/Board_Composition-as-on-16052022.pdf

  The projects undertaken are within the broad framework of Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. Details of the CSR policy and 

projects or programs undertaken by the Company are available on links given below: https://www.vishnuchemicals.com/company/csr/

4.  Details of Impact assessment of CSr projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate 
Social responsibility policy) rules, 2014: Not Applicable.

5.  Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social 
responsibility policy) rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any: ` 43.27 Lakhs

6. Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5): ` 2,163.42 Lakhs

7. (a)  two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5): ` 43.27 Lakhs

 (b) Surplus arising out of the CSr projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: Nil

 (c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: ` 43.27 Lakhs

 (d) total CSr obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): Nil

‘Annexure G’
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8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Spent 
for the Financial year 
(` in lakhs)

Amount unspent (` in lakhs)
Total Amount transferred to unspent 

CSR Account as per section 135(6)
Amount transferred to any fund specified under 

Schedule VII as per second proviso to section 135(5)
Amount Date of transfer name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer

323.50 Nil - - Nil -

 (b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

Sl. 
no.

name of the 
Project

Item from 
the list of 
activities in 
schedule VII 
to the Act.

local 
area 
(yes/ 
no)

location of the project. Amount 
spent 

for the 
project

Mode of 
implementation

Direct (yes/no)

Mode of implementation 
–Through implementing 

agency
State District name CSR Reg. no.

1. Setting up & 
maintenance of 
old age homes 
for senior citizens

Setting up 
of old age 
homes

Yes Andhra 
Pradesh

Krishna District, 
Parsipalli Village

322.86 No Krishna 
Foundation

CSR00003021

TOTAl 322.86

 (c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

Sl. 
no.

name of the 
Project

Item from 
the list of 
activities in 
schedule VII 
to the Act.

local 
area 
(yes/ 
no)

location of the project. Amount 
spent 

for the 
project

Mode of 
implementation 
Direct (yes/no)

Mode of implementation 
–Through implementing 

agency
State District name CSR Reg. no.

1 Distribution of 
Essentials to 
migrated labour 
during Covid-19 
lockdown

Eradicating 
Hunger

Yes Andhra 
Pradesh

Visakhapatnam 0.14 Yes - -

2 Digging of Bore 
well

Making safe 
drinking 
water 
available

Yes Telangana Hyderabad 0.50 Yes - -

TOTAl 0.64

 (d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

 (e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable

 (f) Total amount spent for the Financial year (8b+8c+8d+8e): ` 323.50 Lakhs

 (g) Excess amount for set off, if any

S. 
no.

Particulars Amount  
` in lakhs

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 43.27
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 323.50
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)]* 323.50
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if any Nil
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years

[(iii)-(iv)]*

323.50

   *CSR obligation of ` 43.27 Lakhs for the FY 2021-22 has been adjusted against the excess CSR spent during the previous years i.e. 

` 78.35 Lakhs. Hence, the total amount of ` 323.50 Lakhs spent during the financial year 2021-22 will be carried forward along 

with ` 35.08 Lakhs (pertaining to previous years) for set off in succeeding financial years thereby the overall excess CSR available 

for set-off as on 31st March, 2022 is ` 358.58 Lakhs.

AnnExuRE G (COnTD.)
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9. (a) Details of unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Nil

 (b)  Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):  
` 322.86 Lakhs

10.  In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through 
CSR spent in the financial year: Not applicable

 a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s)

 b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset

 c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address etc.,

 d)  Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital asset)

11.  Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5).:  Not 

Applicable

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
Chetan Shah Ch. Krishna Murthy

16th May, 2022 Chairman-CSR Committee Chairman & Managing Director
Hyderabad DIN:08038633 DIN:00030274

AnnExuRE G (COnTD.)
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Company’s philosophy on corporate governance

Effective corporate governance practices constitute the strong 

foundation on which successful commercial enterprises are built 

to last. The Company’s philosophy on corporate governance 

oversees business strategies and ensures fiscal accountability, 

ethical corporate behaviour and fairness to all the stakeholders 

comprising regulators, employees, customers, vendors, investors 

and the society at large.

The above philosophy of corporate governance entails that 

our governance process is devised in such a manner as to meet 

aspirations of our stakeholders and expectations of the society. 

We are constantly striving to adopt emerging best practices 

‘AnnExuRE H’ 
REPORT On CORPORATE GOVERnAnCE

in corporate governance. It is our endeavor to achieve higher 

standards and provide oversight and guidance to management in 

strategy implementation and risk management and fulfillment of 

stated goals and objectives.

Board and its Composition:

Your Board comprises optimal combination of Independent as 

well as Non-Executive Directors having in-depth knowledge of the 

business of the industry. The size and composition of the Board 

conforms to the requirements of the Corporate Governance code 

under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, and the brief profiles’ of the Directors are placed 

on the Company’s website.

S. 
no.

name of the Director & DIn Category of 
Directorship

Attendance at 
Board Meeting

no. of 
Directorship 

including 
this listed 

entity (Refer 
Regulation 

26(1) of listing 
Regulations)*

number of memberships/
chairmanship in Audit/ 

Stakeholder Committee(s) 
including this listed entity 
(Refer Regulation 26(1) of 

listing Regulations)

Whether 
present 

at the 
previous 

AGM

Held Attended Chairman Member

1 Mr. Ch. Krishna Murthy
DIN: 00030274

Promoter and 
CMD

6 6 1 0 1 Yes

2 Mrs. Ch. Manjula
DIN: 01546339

Promoter and 
NED

6 5 3 1 1 Yes

3 Mr. Ch. Siddartha
DIN: 01250728

Promoter and 
JMD

6 5 3 0 2 Yes

4 Mr. Tirthankar Mitra
DIN: 02675454

NED & ID 6 6 2 0 2 Yes

5 Mr. Chetan Navinchandra Shah
DIN: 08038633

NED & ID 6 6 2 1 3 Yes

6 Mr. V. Vimalanand
DIN: 02693721

NED & ID 6 2 1 0 1 NA

7 Mr. Pradip Saha
DIN: 07677683

NED & ID 6 4 0 1 2 Yes

Notes:

a.  Chairman & Managing Director (CMD), Joint Managing Director (JMD), Non-executive Director (NED), Independent Director (ID) and Not applicable (NA)

b.  Mr. Pradip Saha retired as an Independent Director of the Company on 9th November, 2021 on completion of his term of appointment and thereby he 

ceased to be the Chairman & Member of Board Committees.

c.  Mr. Chetan Shah was appointed as Chairman of Audit Committee w.e.f 10th November, 2021 and Chairman & Member of CSR Committee w.e.f.  

10th November, 2021.

d.  Mr. Tirthankar Mitra was appointed as Chairman of Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Member of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee w.e.f. 

10th November, 2021.

e.  Mr. V. Vimalanand, was appointed as an Independent Director and Member of the Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee  

w.e.f. 31st December, 2021.

  * excludes directorships in private limited companies, associations, foreign companies, companies registered under Section 8 of the Act, Government 

Bodies and Alternate Directorships.

  @ During the year 2021-22, Mr. Chetan Shah was an Independent Director of a listed company Focus Lighting and Fixtures Limited and none of the 

other Directors were Directors of other listed companies.
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Board Procedure

For seamless scheduling of Meetings, the calendar of Meetings of 

the Board and Committees is circulated and agreed upon at the 

beginning of the year.

The Company Secretary tracks and monitors the Board and 

Committee proceedings to ensure that the terms of reference 

are adhered to, decisions are properly recorded in the minutes. 

The terms of reference are amended and updated from time to 

time in order to keep the functions and role of the Board and 

Committees at par with the changing statutes/ regulations. 

Meeting effectiveness is ensured through clear agenda, circulation 

of material in advance, detailed presentations at the meetings and 

tracking of action taken reports at every meeting.

Additionally, based on the agenda, meetings are attended by 

members of the senior leadership as invitees, which bring in the 

requisite accountability and also provide developmental inputs.

The Board plays a critical role in the strategy development of the 

Company. To enable the Board to discharge its responsibilities 

effectively and take informed decisions, the Managing Director 

& Joint Managing Director apprises the Board on the overall 

performance of the Company every quarter.

The Board periodically reviews the strategy, annual business plan, 

business performance of the Company and its key subsidiary, 

quality, customer centricity, capital expenditure budgets and risk 

management, safety and environment matters. Amongst other 

things, the Board also reviews the compliance reports of the 

laws applicable to the Company, internal financial controls and 

financial reporting systems, minutes of the Board Meetings of 

the Company’s subsidiary companies, adoption of quarterly/half-

yearly/annual results, minutes of the Meetings of the Audit and 

other Committees of the Board.

In addition to the information required under Regulation 17(7) 

read with Part A of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations, which 

is required to be placed before the Board, the Board is also 

apprised of major events and approvals obtained from time to 

time, if necessary. In compliance with the relaxations granted by 

the Ministry of Corporate Affairs due to outbreak of Covid-19, the 

Company conducted its Board and Committee Meetings through 

video conferencing, without physical presence of Directors and 

attendees, to adhere to the social distancing norms. Looking 

forward, more emphasis will be given in coming days to have a 

structured digital means for conducting Board and Committee 

meetings.

Board Meetings

The Board met six (6) times during the year 2021-22 as detailed 

hereunder. The gap between two meetings did not exceed one 

hundred and twenty days and the meetings were conducted in 

compliance with all applicable laws. The necessary quorum was 

present for all the Board Meetings. During the financial year, the 

facility of Video Conference (VC) was enabled for all the Board & 

Committee meetings.

Date of the Meeting Board 
Strength

no. of Directors 
Present

23rd April, 2021 6 5

19th May, 2021 6 6

12th August, 2021 6 6

6th November, 2021 6 6

31st December, 2021 6 5

14th February, 2022 6 6

During the year 2021-22, information as mentioned in Part A of 

Schedule II of the Listing Regulations, has been placed before 

the Board for its consideration. The Board periodically reviews the 

compliance reports of all laws applicable to the Company.

Disclosure of relationship between directors inter-se

Mr. Ch. Krishna Murthy, Mrs. Ch. Manjula and Mr. Ch. Siddartha are 

relatives of each other in terms of Section 2(77) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and none of the other Directors has any relationship with 

each other.

Shares held by non-Executive Directors

Mrs. Ch. Manjula, Promoter and Non-Executive Director, holds 

16,14,048 equity shares of ` 10/- each (13.51%) and 52,71,250 7% 

Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of ` 10/- each (CRPS) 

(6.88%) of the Company as on 31st March, 2022; Mr. Chetan Shah, 

Independent Director, holds 4,400 (0.03%) through his spouse and 

none of the other non-executive directors hold any shares in the 

Company.

Appointment/Re-appointment of Directors

As required under Regulation 26(4) and Regulation 36(3) of the 

Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standards – 2 on General 

Meetings issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI), 

particulars of Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment at 

this AGM are given in the Notice of the AGM which forms part of 

this Annual Report.

Web-link where details of familiarisation programmes 
imparted to independent Directors:

h t t p s : / / w w w . v i s h n u c h e m i c a l s . c o m / w p - c o n t e n t /

uploads/2021/03/Familiarization-Program-for-IDs-dt-31032021.

pdf

https://www.vishnuchemicals.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/Familiarization-Program-for-IDs-dt-31032021.pdf
https://www.vishnuchemicals.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/Familiarization-Program-for-IDs-dt-31032021.pdf
https://www.vishnuchemicals.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/Familiarization-Program-for-IDs-dt-31032021.pdf
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Board skills / expertise / competencies

Your Board aims to be comprised of Directors with the appropriate mix of skills, experience, expertise and diversity relevant to the Company’s 

business and the Board’s responsibilities. The skills matrix adopted by the Board vis-à-vis the skills / expertise / competencies of respective 

directors are as under:

Board of Directors Industry 
expertise 
(Chemical 

Manufacturing 
and 

Development)

Sales, 
Marketing 

and 
Market 

Strategy

Executive 
leadership 
and Board 
experience

Strategy 
& Risk 

Management

Corporate 
Governance

Expertise 
in 

financial 
matters

Health, 
safety, 

environment 
and 

sustainability

M&A/ 
Capital 

Markets

Mr. Ch. Krishna Murthy √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √

Mrs. Ch. Manjula √ - √ - √ - √ -

Mr. Ch. Siddartha √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √

Mr. Tirthankar Mitra √ √ √ √ √ √ √ -

Mr. Chetan Navinchandra Shah - √ √ √ √ √ √ √

Mr. V. Vimalanand - - √ √ √ - √ -

Independence of Directors

The Company has received a declaration from the Independent 

Directors confirming that they meet the criteria of independence 

as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Act read with Regulation 

16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations. In terms of Regulation 25(8) of 

the Listing Regulations, the Independent Directors have confirmed 

that they are not aware of any circumstances or situations which 

exist or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact 

their ability to discharge their duties.

In opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfill the 

conditions of independence specified in the Act and the Listing 

Regulations and are independent of the management. Further, the 

Independent Directors of the Company have included their names 

in the data bank of Independent Directors maintained with the 

Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs in terms of Section 150 of the 

Act read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification 

of Directors) Rules, 2014. A formal letter of appointment to 

Independent Directors as provided in Companies Act, 2013 has 

been issued and uploaded on website of the Company viz. https://

vishnuchemicals.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/04/Terms-and-

conditions-of-appointment-of-independent-directors.pdf.

As per Regulation 17A of the Listing Regulations, Independent 

Directors of the Company do not serve as an Independent Director 

in more than seven listed companies. Further, the Executive 

Directors of the Company do not serve as Independent Directors 

in any other listed entity.

During the year 2021-22, one meeting of the Independent Directors 

was held on 19th May, 2021. The Independent Directors, inter-alia, 

reviewed the performance of Non-Independent Directors, Board 

as a whole and Chairman of the Company, taking into account the 

views of Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors.

Code of conduct

The Board has laid down Code of Conduct for its Directors and 

Senior Management of the Company. The text of the Code of 

Conduct is uploaded on the website of the Company at https://

www.vishnuchemicals.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/Code-

of-Conduct-updated-12022021.pdf.

The Directors and Senior Management personnel have affirmed 

compliance with the Code applicable to them during the year 

ended 31st March, 2022. The Annual Report of the Company 

contains a Certificate duly signed by the Chairman & Managing 

Director in this regard.

Committees of the Board

The Board of Directors has constituted Board Committees to deal 

with specific areas and activities which concern the Company 

and requires a closer review. The Board Committees are formed 

with approval of the Board and function under their respective 

Charters. These Committees play an important role in the overall 

Management of day-to-day affairs and governance of the 

Company. The Board Committees meet at regular intervals and 

take necessary steps to perform its duties entrusted by the Board. 

The Minutes of the Committee Meetings are placed before the 

Board for noting.

The Company has five Board Level Committees:

1. Audit Committee

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

3. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.

5. Finance Committee of Directors

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTD.)

https://www.vishnuchemicals.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/Code-of-Conduct-updated-12022021.pdf
https://www.vishnuchemicals.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/Code-of-Conduct-updated-12022021.pdf
https://www.vishnuchemicals.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/Code-of-Conduct-updated-12022021.pdf


55 AnnuAl REPORT 2021-22

Statutory reportS

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee’s role is to assist the Board fulfill its 

Corporate Governance and overseeing responsibilities in relation 

to the Company’s financial reporting process carried out by the 

Management, internal control system, risk management system 

and internal and external audit functions.

The Audit Committee functions according to its Charter/Terms of 

Reference that defines its composition, authority, responsibilities 

and reporting functions. The Board has adopted a Charter of the 

Audit Committee for its functioning. All the items listed in Section 

177 of the Act and Regulation 18(3) read with Part C of Schedule 

II of the Listing Regulations are covered in its terms of reference.

Terms of Reference

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for supervising 

the Company’s internal controls and financial reporting process 

and inter alia, performs the following functions:

l	 	Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and 

disclosure of its financial information;

l	 	Review of the Company’s accounting policies, internal 

accounting controls, financial and such other matters;

l	 	Review the functioning of Whistleblower Mechanism of 

the Company which shall include the Vigil Mechanism for 

Directors and employees to report genuine concerns in the 

prescribed manner;

l	 	Discuss and review, with the management and auditors, the 

annual/quarterly Financial Statements before submission to 

the Board;

l	 	Hold timely discussions with external auditors regarding 

critical accounting policies and practices, significant 

reporting issues and judgements made, nature and scope of 

audit;

l	 	Evaluate auditors’ performance, qualification, independence 

and effectiveness of audit process;

l	 	Recommend to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment, 

removal of the external auditors, fixation of audit fees and 

also approval for payment of audit and non-audit services;

l	 	Scrutinise inter-corporate loans and investments, and review 

the utilisation of loans and/or advances from/investment by 

the holding company in the subsidiary;

l	 	Reviewing the adequacy of internal control system, internal 

audit function and risk management function;

l	 	Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings 

and follow up thereon;

l	 	Provide guidance to the Compliance Officer for setting 

forth policies and implementation of Code of Conduct for 

Prevention of Insider Trading. Reviewing compliance with the 

provisions of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015, atleast once in a financial year and verifying that the 

systems for Internal Controls are adequate and are operating 

effectively;

l	 	Review the significant related party transactions;

l	 	Valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity, 
wherever it is necessary;

l	 	Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the 
internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud 
or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a 
material nature and reporting the matter to the Board;

l	 	Approve the appointment of the Chief Financial Officer after 
assessing the qualifications, experience and background of 
the candidate;

l	 	Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms 
of reference of the Audit Committee.

l	 	Reviewing the utilisation of loans and/ or advances from/
investment by the holding company in the subsidiary 
exceeding rupees 100 Cr or 10% of the asset size of the 
subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans / 
advances / investments existing as on the date of coming 
into force of this provision.

l	 	Consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact 
of schemes involving merger, demerger, amalgamation etc., 
on the listed entity and its shareholders.

Further pursuant to Regulation 18(2)(c) of the Listing Regulations, 
the Audit Committee is empowered to investigate any activity 
within its terms of reference, seek information it requires from any 
employee, obtain outside legal or other Independent professional 
advice and secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if 
considered necessary. Apart from the above, the Audit Committee 
also exercises the role and powers entrusted upon it by the Board 
of Directors from time to time.

During the financial year under review, Audit Committee met four 
(4) times i.e. on 19th May, 2021, 12th August, 2021, 6th November, 
2021 and 14th February, 2022. Composition and attendance of 
directors is as under:

S.  
no.

name of the Audit 
Committee Member

no. of 
meetings held

no. of meetings 
attended

1 Mr. Chetan Shah, C&ID 4 4
2 Mr. Tirthankar Mitra, ID 4 4
3 Mr. Ch. Siddartha, JMD 4 4
4 Mr. V. Vimalanand, ID 4 1
5 Mr. Pradip Saha, ID 4 3

Notes:

a.  C&ID - Chairman & Independent Director, ID - Independent Director, 

JMD - Joint Managing Director

b.  Mr. Pradip Saha retired as an Independent Director of the Company 

on 9th November, 2021 on completion of his term of appointment 

thereby he ceased to be a member of Audit Committee on  

9th November, 2021.
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c.  Mr. V. Vimalanand has been appointed as a member of the Audit 

Committee w.e.f. 31st December, 2021.

Throughout the year the composition of the Committee is in 

conformity with Section 177 of the Act read with rules made 

thereunder and Regulation 18(1) of the Listing Regulations. The 

Audit Committee consists of Independent Directors and Joint 

Managing Director as members and all the members of the 

Committee are financially literate and Mr. Chetan Shah, Chairman 

of the Committee, being a graduate in Commerce & Economics 

and an experience of over three decades in Finance has expertise 

in accounting and financial management. The Company Secretary 

of the Company is secretary to the Committee. Internal Auditors, 

Statutory Auditors, Secretarial Auditors and Cost Auditors are 

invited for Audit Committee meetings on need basis.

nomination and Remuneration Committee

The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee (NRC) covers the areas as prescribed under Section 178 

of the Act and Regulation 19 of Listing Regulations, besides other 

terms as referred by the Board of Directors and include formulation 

of criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 

independence of a director and recommending to the Board a 

policy relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial 

personnel and other senior employees; formulation of criteria for 

evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board; devising a 

policy on diversity of Board of Directors; identification of persons 

who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed 

in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, 

and recommending to the Board their appointment, removal and 

noting their cessation; recommending to the Board on extension 

or continuation of the terms of appointment of the independent 

directors; recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever 

form, payable to senior management; and carrying out any other 

function as is referred by the Board from time to time or enforced 

by any statutory notification / amendment or modification as may 

be applicable.

During the financial year under review, Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee met three (3) times i.e. on 23rd April, 

2021, 19th May, 2021 and 31st December, 2021. Composition and 

attendance of directors is as under:

S. 
no.

name of nRC Member no. of 
meetings held

no. of meetings 
attended

1 Mr. Tirthankar Mitra, C&ID 3 3
2 Mr. Ch. Manjula, NED 3 2
3 Mr. Chetan Shah, ID 3 3
4 Mr. V. Vimalanand, ID 3 NA
5 Mr. Pradip Saha, C&ID 3 2

Notes:

a.  C – Chairman, ID - Independent Director, NED – Non-executive 

Director

b.  Mr. Pradip Saha retired as an Independent Director of the Company 

on 9th November, 2021 on completion of term of appointment 

thereby he ceased to be a member of NRC on 9th November, 2021.

c.  Mr. V. Vimalanand was appointed as a member of NRC w.e.f. 31st 

December, 2021.

Throughout the year the composition of the Committee is in 
conformity with Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the 
Listing Regulations. The Company Secretary of the Company is 
secretary to the Committee.

The minutes of the meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee are circulated to all the members of the Board. As per 
section 178(7) of the Act and Secretarial Standards, the Chairman 
of the Committee or, in his absence, any other Member of the 
Committee authorised by him in this behalf shall attend the General 
Meetings of the Company. The Chairperson of the Committee, Mr. 
Pradip Saha was present at the 28th Annual General Meeting of the 
Company held on 12th July, 2021.

Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors:

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was 
carried out by the entire Board. The criteria for performance 
evaluation are as follows:

a. Qualifications: Professional qualifications;

b. Experience: Experience relevant to the entity;

c. Knowledge and Competency:

 i.  How the person fares for effective functioning of the 
entity and the Board; and

 ii.  Whether the person has sufficient understanding 
and knowledge of the entity and fulfilment of the 
independence criteria as specified in these regulations 
and their independence from the management;

d.  Fulfilment of functions: Whether the person understands and 
fulfils the functions assigned to him/her as by the Board and 
the law;

e.  Ability to function as a team: Whether the person is able to 
function as an effective team- member;

f.  Initiative: Whether the person actively takes initiative with 
respect to various areas;

g.  Availability and attendance: Whether the person is available 
for meetings of the Board and attends the meeting regularly 
and timely, without delay;

h.  Commitment: Whether the person is adequately committed 
to the Board and the entity;

i.  Contribution: Whether the person contributed effectively to 
the entity and in the Board meetings;

j.  Integrity: Whether the person demonstrates highest level 
of integrity (including conflict of interest disclosures, 
maintenance of confidentiality, etc.);
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k.  Independence: Whether person is independent from the 

entity and the Management and there is no conflict of 

interest; and

l.  Independent views and judgment: Whether the person 

exercises his/ her own judgment and voices opinion freely.

Remuneration Policy

The Nomination and Remuneration policy of your Company is a 

comprehensive policy which is competitive, in line with the industry 

practices and rewards good performance of the employees of the 

Company. The objective of the Company’s remuneration policy 

is to attract, motivate and retain qualified and expert individuals 

that the Company needs in order to achieve its strategic and 

operational objectives, whilst acknowledging the societal context 

around remuneration and recognizing the interests of Company’s 

stakeholders.

The Non-Executive Directors (NED) are remunerated by way of 

sitting fee for each meeting attended and are also reimbursed 

out of pocket expenses incurred by them in connection with the 

attendance of the Company’s Meetings. A copy of the Nomination 

& Remuneration Policy is available on the website of the Company 

https://vishnuchemicals.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/06/NRC-

Policy-dt-09022018.pdf. 

Directors’ Remuneration

The details of remuneration to the Directors for the financial year 

ended 31st March, 2022.

i) For Executive Directors:

  The elements of remuneration package of Managing 

Directors, are as under:

` in Lakhs

Particulars Mr. Ch. Krishna 
Murthy

Managing 
Director

Mr. Ch. Siddartha

Joint Managing 
Director

Salary (Including 

perquisites)

91.00 45.12

Commission 0 0

Contribution to 

Provident Fund and 

Superannuation Fund

0 2.88

Other Benefits 0 0

Total 91.00 48.00

  Managing Director & Joint Managing Director are under 

contract of employment with the Company with three 

months’ notice period. There is no severance fee payable to 

the Executive Directors. The Company does not have any 

stock option scheme.

ii) For non-Executive Directors:

  The sitting fee is paid to the Non-Executive Directors for 

attending the Board meeting is ` 20,000/-; ` 20,000/- for 

attending Audit Committee meeting; and no sitting fee 

is paid for Nomination & Remuneration Committee, CSR 

Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee and 

other Committee meetings. Apart from sitting fee, Non-

Executive Directors are entitled to claim reimbursement of 

out of pocket expenses incurred for the purpose of attending 

various meetings and no remuneration/ commission is paid 

to the Non-Executive Directors during the financial year 

2021-22 and the Company does not have any stock option 

scheme.

` in Lakhs
non-executive Directors Sitting Fees 
Mrs. Ch. Manjula 1.00
Mr. Tirthankar Mitra 2.00
Mr. Chetan Shah 2.00
Mr. V. Vimalanand 0.60
Mr. Pradip Saha 1.40
Total 7.00

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee (‘SRC’) looks into various 

aspects of interest of shareholders.

The terms of reference of the SRC are as under:

l	 	Resolving the grievances of the security holders including 

complaints related to transfer/transmission of shares / 

debentures, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of 

declared dividends, issue of new/ duplicate certificates, 

general meetings etc;

l	 	Reviewing details of transfer of unclaimed dividend /

securities to the Investor Education and Protection Fund;

l	 	Reviewing the transfer, transmission, dematerialisation of 

securities;

l	 	Reviewing measures taken for effective exercise of voting 

rights by shareholders;

l	 	Reviewing adherence to the service standards in respect 

of various services being rendered by the Registrar & Share 

Transfer Agent;

l	 	Reviewing various measures and initiatives taken for 

reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring 

timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory 

notices by the shareholders of the Company;

l	 	To approve issue of duplicate certificates.

During the financial year under review, SRC met seven (7) times i.e. 

on 19th May, 2021, 14th June, 2021, 20th September, 2021, 27th 

September, 2021, 6th November, 2021, 20th December, 2021 and 
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14th February, 2022. Composition and attendance of directors is 
as under:

S. 
no.

name of the SRC Member no. of 
meetings 

held

no. of 
meetings 
attended

1 Mrs. Ch. Manjula, C & NED 7 7
2 Mr. Ch. Krishna Murthy, CMD 7 7
3 Mr. Ch. Siddartha, JMD 7 7
4 Mr. T Mitra, NED&ID 7 1
5 Mr. Pradip Saha, NED & ID 7 2

Notes:

a.  C – Chairman, ID - Independent Director, NED – Non-Executive 

Director, CMD – Chairman and Managing Director, JMD – Joint 

Managing Director.

b.  Mr. Pradip Saha retired as an Independent Director of the Company 

on 9th November, 2021 on completion of term of appointment 

thereby he ceased to be member a of SRC on 9th November, 2021.

c.  Mr. Mitra was appointed as member of the Committee w.e.f. 10th 

November, 2021.

Status of Investor Complaints

The status of Investor Complaints as on 31st March, 2022 as reported 
under Regulation 13(3) of the Listing Regulations is as under:

Number of shareholders complaints pending at 
beginning of the year

NIL

Number of shareholders complaints received 
during the year

NIL

Number of complaints solved to the satisfaction 
of the shareholders

-

Number of pending complaints NIL

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Committee oversees, inter-alia, corporate social responsibility 
and other related matters as may be referred by the Board of 
Directors and discharges the roles as prescribed under Section 135 
of the Act which includes formulating and recommending to the 
Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy indicating the 
activities to be undertaken by the Company in conformity with 
Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereof; 
recommending the amount of expenditure to be incurred along 
with annual action plan; and monitoring the CSR Policy of the 
Company. During the year under review, the Committee met twice 
i.e. on 19th May, 2021 and 14th February, 2022. Composition of CSR 
Committee and attendance thereof is as under:

S.  
no.

name of the Director no. of 
meetings 

held

no. of 
meetings 
attended

1 Mr. Chetan Shah, C&ID 2 1
2 Mr. Ch. Krishna Murthy, CMD 2 2
3 Mrs. Ch. Manjula, NED 2 2
4 Mr. Pradip Saha, C& ID 2 1

Notes:

a.  C – Chairman, ID - Independent Director, NED – Non-Executive 

Director, CMD – Chairman and Managing Director

b.  Mr. Chetan Shah is the Chairman & Member of Committee w.e.f. 10th 

November, 2021.

c.  Mr. Pradip Saha ceased to be the Chairman & Member of Committee 

w.e.f. 9th November, 2021.

Finance Committee

Mr. Ch. Krishna Murthy, Chairman & Managing Director, Mrs. Ch. 
Manjula, Non-Executive Director and Mr. Ch. Siddartha, Joint 
Managing Director are the members of the Committee. During the 
year under review, the Committee met six (6) times i.e. on 14th 
June, 2021, 30th July, 2021, 13th September, 2021, 30th November, 
2021, 6th December, 2021 and 7th March, 2022. The Committee 
was constituted, inter alia, to exercise the powers specified in 
clauses (d) to (f ) of sub-section (3) of section 179 of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

Compliance Officer

Mr. Kishore Kathri, Company Secretary & AGM-Legal, is the 
Compliance Officer for complying with the requirements of the 
Securities Laws. He acts as the Secretary to all the mandatory sub-
committees of the Board.

General Body Meetings

Location, time and venue where last three Annual General 
Meetings were held:

Financial 
year

Date & Time 
of AGM

Venue of AGM

2020-21 Monday, 12th 
July, 2021 at 
11.00 A.M (IST)

Held via two-way Video 
Conferencing (‘VC’) facility or 
other audio visual means (‘OAVM’) 
deemed venue is the registered 
office situated at Plot No. C-23, 
Road No. 8, Film Nagar, Jubilee Hills, 
Hyderabad – 500 033

2019-20 Friday, 14th 
August, 2020 at 
11.00 A.M (IST)

Held via two-way Video 
Conferencing (‘VC’) facility or 
other audio visual means (‘OAVM’) 
deemed venue is the registered 
office situated at Plot No. C-23, 
Road No. 8, Film Nagar, Jubilee Hills, 
Hyderabad – 500 033

2018-19 Thursday, 27th 
June, 2019 at 
10.00 AM (IST)

Film Nagar Cultural Centre, Dr. D. 
Ramanaidu Building, Road No. 6, 
Film Nagar, Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad 
Telangana – 500033

Special Resolutions

Special resolutions were passed at last three annual general 

meetings, are as under:

I)  28th AGM held on 12th July, 2021 – Special Resolutions

 a.  To re-appoint Mr. Siddartha Cherukuri (DIN: 01250728) 

as a Joint Managing Director of the Company for a 

further term of five years.
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II) 27th AGM held on 14th August, 2020 – Special Resolutions

 a.  To re-appoint Mr. Ch. Krishna Murthy (DIN: 00030274) as 

a Managing Director of the Company for a further term 

of five years.

II) 26th AGM held on 27th June, 2019 – Special Resolutions

 a.  To approve re-appointment of Mr. Pradip Saha as 

Independent Director of the Company for second term.

 b.  To give advances, loans including any loan represented 

by a book debt, or give any guarantee or provide any 

security in connection with any loan taken by entities 

in whom the director of the Company is/ are interested.

 c.  Approval for payment of remuneration to executive 

directors in terms of Regulation 17(6)(e) of SEBI 

Amended Listing Regulations for the remaining tenure 

of their appointment.

 d.  To approve variation of terms of the existing 7,66,37,500 

7% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (CRPS) 

of the Company.

IV)  During the year, no resolutions were passed through postal 

ballot.

Means of communication

Financials Calendar (Tentative):

-  Unaudited results for 1st quarter of next Financial Year – by 

14th August, 2022

-  Unaudited results for 2nd quarter of next Financial Year – by 

14th November, 2022

-  Unaudited results for 3rd quarter of next Financial Year – by 

14th February, 2023

-  Audited results for next Financial Year – by 29th May, 2023

  The quarterly unaudited results and annual audited results are 

published in Financial Express and in the regional newspaper 

– Andhra Prabha/ Nava Telangana and are displayed on the 

website of the Company www.vishnuchemicals.com. Official 

press releases and official media releases, if any, are sent to 

Stock Exchanges and are uploaded on the website of the 

Company along with the presentations made to institutional 

investors or to analysts, if any.

  The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part 

of the Board’s Report.

General shareholders information

Annual General Meeting:

Day & Date    -  Friday, 15th July, 2022 at 2.30 

PM IST

Venue     -  In accordance with the General 

Circular No. 18 & 20 dated 18th 

April, 2020 & 5th May, 2020 

respectively, issued by the MCA 

on 5th May, 2020, amendments 

thereof, the AGM will be held 

through Video Conferencing 

(‘VC’) / Other Audio Visual 

Means (‘OAVM’) only

Financial Year    -  2021-22 (1st April, 2021 to 31st 

March, 2022)

Record Date    - Not applicable

Date of Book Closure   -  9th July, 2022 to 15th July, 2022 

(both days inclusive)

Date of Dividend Payment  - On or before 13th August, 2022

Dividend for the last three years - 2020-21 : 10%

        2019-20 :  10%

        2018-19 : 10%

name and address of Stock Exchanges where the shares of 
the Company are listed:

BSE Limited 

PhirozeJeejeebhoy Towers 

Dalal Street 

Mumbai- 400 001 

 National Stock Exchange of 

India Limited

Exchange Plaza

BandraKurla Complex

Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400 051

BSE limited          - Scrip Code: 516072

national Stock Exchange of India limited - VISHNU

ISIn for the Equity Shares      - INE270I01014

The Company has paid listing fee to both Stock Exchanges for the 

financial year 2021-22.
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Monthly high and low of Company’s shares on BSE limited 
& national Stock Exchange of India limited during the 
financial year 2021-22

Month
BSE nSE

High Price low Price High Price low Price

Apr-21 367.50 278.80 369.50 279.50

May-21 399.00 313.00 398.90 311.55

Jun-21 567.10 353.00 564.65 356.00

Jul-21 705.35 540.00 707.40 540.00

Aug-21 658.95 562.05 659.50 562.05

Sep-21 798.00 585.00 805.50 592.00

Oct-21 815.00 678.00 817.00 666.20

Nov-21 965.00 769.75 957.35 771.35

Dec-21 908.00 771.60 905.00 776.75

Jan-22 1168.65 816.25 1161.70 850.00

Feb-22 1399.30 1110.25 1381.00 1103.65

Mar-22 1789.95 1213.00 1799.00 1237.85

Share Transfer System

The requests received for deletion of name, transmission of shares, 

split and issue of duplicate share certificates are processed and 

despatched to the shareholders within a maximum period of 15 

days from the date of receipt, subject to the documents being 

valid and complete in all respects. All the valid deletion of name, 

transmission of shares, split and issue of duplicate share certificates 

are approved by Stakeholders Relationship Committee and are 

noted at Board Meetings.

The shares of the Company can be transferred / traded only in 

dematerialised form. Shareholders holding shares in physical form 

are advised to avail the facility of dematerialisation. During the year, 

the Company obtained a certificate from a Company Secretary in 

Practice, certifying that all certificates for transfer, transmission, 

subdivision, consolidation, renewal, exchange and deletion of 

names, were issued as required under Regulation 40(9) of the SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations, 2015. These certificates were duly filed with 

the Stock Exchanges.

Members may also refer to Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) 

on Company’s Website https://www.vishnuchemicals.com/

investors/#1571313077497-a1a918a7-6e88

Dematerialisation of shares and liquidity

1,18,57,960 (NSDL: 79,34,692; CDSL: 39,23,268) equity shares are in 

demat form i.e. 99.26% of the total paid-up capital of the Company 

and the shares of the Company are traded on BSE and NSE. The 

Company had entered into agreements with National Securities 

Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) 

Limited (CDSL) whereby shareholders can dematerialise their 

shares with either of the Depositories. Shareholders who continue 

to hold shares in physical form are requested to dematerialise their 

shares at the earliest and avail the benefits of dealing in shares 

in demat form. For convenience of shareholders, the process of 

getting the shares dematerialised is uploaded on website of the 

Company www.vishnuchemicals.com.

nomination

Individual shareholders holding shares singly or jointly in physical 

form can nominate a person in whose name the shares shall be 

transferable in case of death of the registered shareholder(s). 

Procedure for the same is as under:

As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for 

making nomination is available for the Members in respect of the 

shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered their 

nomination are requested to register the same by submitting Form 

No. SH-13. If a Member desires to cancel the earlier nomination 

and record a fresh nomination, he may submit the same in 

Form SH-14 through their registered email id. The said forms can 

be downloaded from the Company’s website at https://www.

vishnuchemicals.com/investors/#1571313077497-a1a918a7-

6e88 or https://bigshareonline.com/Resources.aspx Members 

are requested to submit the said form to their respective DPs in 

case the shares are held in electronic form and to the Registrar 

at bsshyd1@bigshareonline.com in case the shares are held in 

physical form, quoting your folio no.

REPORT On CORPORATE GOVERnAnCE (COnTD.)
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Distribution of Shareholding (in `) as on 31st March, 2022:

Shareholding of nominal in ` number of 
Shareholders

Percentage of 
total shareholders

Share amount 
in `

Percentage of total 
share capital

Upto 5000 8885 93.52 5577710 4.66
5001-10000 285 3.00 2130870 1.78
10001-20000 160 1.68 2447430 2.05
20001-30000 52 0.55 1315250 1.10
30001-40000 21 0.22 758020 0.63
40001-50000 19 0.20 875420 0.73
50001-100000 32 0.34 2347070 1.96
100001-11946020 46 0.48 104008430 87.06
TOTAl 9500 100.00 119460200 100

Pattern of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2022:

Category no. of Shares % of shareholding
Promoters 89,59,506 75.00
Other Entities of the Promoter Group - -
Mutual Funds and UTI - -
Banks, Financial Institutions, States and Central Government - -
Insurance Companies - -
Foreign Institutional Investors and Foreign Portfolio Investors - Corporate 54,614 0.46
NRI’s / OCB’s / Foreign Nationals 1,74,581 1.46
Corporate Bodies / Trust 1,73,328 1.45
Indian Public and Others 24,71,709 20.69
Alternate Investment Fund - -
IEPF account 1,02,155 0.86
Clearing Members 10,127 0.08
GRAnD TOTAl 1,19,46,020 100

Address for correspondence for shareholders:

Regd. & Corporate Office of the Company:

H.No. 8-2-293/82/F/23-C, Plot No. 23,

Road No. 8, Film Nagar, Jubilee Hills,

Hyderabad, Telangana - 500096

Phone: 040 23396817/ 23327723/29

Mail id: vishnu@vishnuchemicals.com

Website: www.vishnuchemicals.com

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents:

Bigshare Services Private Limited

306, Right Wing, 3rd Floor, Amrutha Ville,

Opp.Yashoda Hospital, Somajiguda,

Rajbhavan Road, Hyderabad – 500082, India

Phone No: 040 401 44582

Mail id: bsshyd1@bigshareonline.com

Web: www.bigshareonline.com

Plant locations:

Kazipally Plant:

Survey No.15, Gaddapotharam

Medak District, Telangana - 502319

Vizag Plant:

Plot No.29, J.N.Pharma City, IOCL Road, Visakhapatnam (Dist.), 

Andhra Pradesh – 531019

Bhilai Plant:

Survey No.18-26, Nandini Road,

Bhilai, Chattishgarh - 490026

REPORT On CORPORATE GOVERnAnCE (COnTD.)
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Other disclosures

a.  Corporate governance requirements as specified in 

Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) 

of regulation 46 have been complied with. For details please 

verify the Annual Corporate Governance Report uploaded 

on the Stock Exchanges and a copy of the same is made 

available on website of the Company www.vishnuchemicals.

com.

b.  Disclosure on materially significant related party transactions:

  There were no materially significant related party transactions 

which may have potential conflict with the interests of the 

Company. The Company maintains a Register of Contracts 

containing the transactions, if any in which the directors 

are interested and same is placed before the Board. The 

transactions with related parties as covered under Indian 

Accounting Standard are disclosed in Note 42 forming 

part of the financial statements. Web-link for the Policy on 

dealing with related party transactions is https://www.

vishnuchemicals.com/investors/#Policies

  Further during the year there were no transactions with the 

entities belonging to the promoter or promoter group which 

holds 10% or more shareholding in the Company.

c.  Since the Company has not issued any debt instruments and 

has not had any fixed deposit programme or any scheme or 

proposal that involves mobilisation of funds, disclosure of 

credit rating is not applicable.

d.  Disclosure of non-compliance by the company:

  There were no strictures or penalties imposed on the 

Company by either Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any Statutory 

Authority for non-compliance on any matter related to 

Capital Market during the last three years.

e.  Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil mechanism:

  In terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 

2013 and Regulation 22 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, 

the Company has a vigil mechanism to deal with instance 

of fraud and mismanagement, if any. The details of the vigil 

mechanism are displayed on the website of the Company. 

The Audit Committee reviews the functioning of the vigil / 

whistle blower mechanism from time to time. There were no 

allegations / disclosures / concerns received during the year 

under review in terms of the vigil mechanism established by 

the Company and no personnel have been denied access to 

audit committee in this regard.

f.  Policy for determining material subsidiary:

  The Company has one material unlisted Indian Subsidiary 

i.e. Vishnu Barium Private Limited w.e.f. 1st April, 2019. The 

minutes of the meetings of the subsidiaries are placed at the 

meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company. Quarterly 

and Annual Financial Statements of subsidiaries are reviewed 

by Audit Committee and the Board of Directors. Web-link for 

the policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is https://

www.vishnuchemicals.com/investors/#Policies

g.  Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging 

activities:

  The Company is subject to commodity price risks due to 

fluctuation in prices of raw material and packing material. 

Also, Company’s payables and receivables are partly in foreign 

currencies and due to fluctuations in foreign exchange 

rates, it is subject to Currency risks. The risks are tracked 

and monitored on a regular basis and mitigation strategies 

are adopted in line with the risk management framework. 

However, the Company being a net forex earner the risk of 

commodity and currency is mitigated via natural hedge.

h.  During the year the Company has not raised any funds 

through preferential allotment or QIP as specified under 

Regulation 32 (7A) of Listing Regulations.

i.  Acceptance of recommendations of Committees by the 

Board of Directors: In terms of the Listing Regulations, 

there have been no instances during the year when the 

recommendations of any of the Committees were not 

accepted by the Board.

j.  Fees paid to M/s. Jampani & Associates, Statutory Auditors 

and all entities in the network firm of the Statutory Auditors:

  During 2021-22, a total fee of ` 26.35 Lakhs was paid by the 

Company and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, for all 

services to M/s. Jampani & Associates, Statutory Auditors and 

all entities in the network firm/network entity of which they 

are part.

(` in Lakhs)

Services VCl VBPl Total

Statutory Audit Fee 13.50 3.00 16.50

For taxation matters & 
Tax audit fee

4.25 1.00 5.25

GST Fee 1.40 0.25 1.65

Quarterly review 1.20 0.60 1.80

Other services 1.00 0.15 1.15

Total 21.35 5.00 26.35

k. Risk Management:

  The Company has laid down procedures to inform the Board 

of Directors about the Risk Management and its minimisation 

procedures. The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors 

review these procedures periodically. Detailed report on Risk 

Management forms part of the Board’s Report.

REPORT On CORPORATE GOVERnAnCE (COnTD.)
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l.  Code of Conduct for Directors and members of Senior 

Management:

  The Company adopted a Code of Conduct for its Directors 
and members of senior management. The Code has also 
been posted on the Company’s website. The Chairman 
& Managing Director has given a declaration that all the 
Directors and members of senior management have affirmed 
compliance with the Code of Conduct.

m. CEO/CFO Certification:

  A certificate duly signed by Chairman & Managing Director 
and CFO relating to financial statements and internal control 
systems for financial reporting as per the format provided 
in Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 was placed 
before the Board and was taken on record. A copy of the 
same is provided in this Annual Report.

n. PCS Certificate

  Mr. L. Dhanamjaya Reddy, Practicing Company Secretary, 
proprietor of M/s. L.D.Reddy & Co., Company Secretaries, 
Hyderabad has certified that none of the directors on the 
board of the Company has been debarred or disqualified from 
being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by 
the Securities Exchange Board of India/Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs or any such statutory authority. A copy of certificate 
received from him is enclosed as ‘Annexure’ to this report.

o. Auditor’s Certificate on Corporate Governance:

  As required by Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, a 

certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary is enclosed 
as Annexure to the Board’s Report.

p.  Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

  The Company has adopted a Policy in line with the 
provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the 
Rules there under and has constituted Internal Complaints 
Committee (ICC) under the said Act. No complaint has been 
received by the ICC, during the year.

q.  Disclosure with respect to demat suspense account/ 
unclaimed suspense account:

 i.  Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding 
shares lying in the suspense account at the beginning 
of the year - Nil.

 ii.  Number of shareholders who approached listed entity 
for transfer of shares from suspense account during the 
year – Nil

 iii.  Number of shareholders to whom shares were 
transferred from suspense account during the year – Nil

 iv.  Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding 
shares lying in the suspense account at the end of the 
year – Nil

 v.  That the voting rights on these shares, if any shall 
remain frozen till the rightful owner of such shares 
claims the shares.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 Sd/- Sd/-
Ch. Krishna Murthy Ch. Manjula

Hyderabad Chairman & Managing Director Director
16th May, 2022 DIN: 00030274 DIN: 01546339

DEClARATIOn On CODE OF COnDuCT

This is to confirm that the Board has laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board Members and senior management personnel of the Company. 

The code of conduct has also been posted on the website of the Company. It is further confirmed that all Directors and Senior Management 

personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 

2022 as envisaged in Listing Regulations.

 For Vishnu Chemicals limited

Sd/-

 Ch. Krishna Murthy 
Hyderabad  Chairman & Managing Director

16th May, 2022 DIN: 00030274

REPORT On CORPORATE GOVERnAnCE (COnTD.)
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To

The Members

Vishnu Chemicals limited
H.No. 8-2-293/82/F/23-C, Plot no. 23,

Road no. 8, Film Nagar,

Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad - 500033

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Vishnu Chemicals Limited for the year ended on 31st 

March, 2022 as stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27, Clauses (b) to (i) of sub- regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and para C, D and E of 

Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI Listing 

Regulations).

The Compliance of the Conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to 

the review of procedure and implementation thereof, as adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with conditions of Corporate 

Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and the representations, made by the 

Directors and the management and considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange 

Board of India warranted due to the spread of the Covid -19 pandemic, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of 

Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations for the year ended on 31st March, 2022.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness 

with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For l.D.Reddy & Co.,
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
l. Dhanamjaya Reddy
(Proprietor)
M. No. 13104; CP No.3752

Date: 17th May, 2022 UDIN No: A013104D000336757
Place: Hyderabad PR: 1262/2021

CERTIFICATE On CORPORATE GOVERnAnCE

H.No
L.D.Reddy
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To

The Members

Vishnu Chemicals Limited

Hyderabad.

SuB: Certificate under Schedule V(C)(10)(i) of SEBI (listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015

I, L. Dhanamjay Reddy, Practicing Company Secretary, proprietor of L.D.Reddy & Co., Company Secretaries, have examined the Company and 

Registrar of Companies records, books and papers of Vishnu Chemicals Limited (CIN: L85200TG1993PLC046359) having its Registered office 

at H.No. 8-2-293/82/F/23-C, Plot No. 23, Road No. 8, Film Nagar, Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad - 500033, Telangana State, India (the Company) as 

required to be maintained under the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI Regulations, other applicable rules and regulations made thereunder for the 

financial year ended on 31st March, 2022.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the examinations carried out by me and explanations and representation 

furnished to me by the Company, its officers and agents, we certify that none of the following Directors of the Company have been debarred 

or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by the SEBI/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory 

authority as on 31st March, 2022:

List of Director of the Company as on 31st March, 2022:

S.no. DIn Full name Designation

1 00030274 Mr. Cherukuri Krishna Murthy Managing Director

2 01250728 Mr. Cherukuri Siddartha Joint Managing Director

3 01546339 Mrs. Cherukuri Manjula Director

4 02675454 Mr. Tirthankar Mitra Independent Director

5 08038633 Mr. Chetan Navinchandra Shah Independent Director

6 02693721 Mr. Veeramachaneni Vimalanand Independent Director

For l.D.Reddy & C o.,
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
l. Dhanamjay Reddy
(Proprietor)
M. No. 13104; CP No.3752

Date : 17th May, 2022 UDIN: A013104D000336746
Place : Hyderabad PR: 1262/2021

‘AnnExuRE’

L.D.Reddy
H.No
S.No
L.D.Reddy
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To

The Board of Directors

Vishnu Chemicals Limited

Hyderabad

A.  We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2022 and that 

to the best of our knowledge and belief:

 (1)  the statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be 

misleading;

 (2)  the statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting 

standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B.  There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent, 

illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

C.  We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated the 

effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and 

the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we 

have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

D. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee:

 (1) There were no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

 (2)  There were no significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same has been disclosed in the notes to 

the financial statements; and

 (3)  There were no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the 

management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Hyderabad Ch. Krishna Murthy P. Anjaneyulu
Date: 16th May, 2022 Chairman & Managing Director Chief Financial Officer

DIN : 00030274

CEO & CFO COMPlIAnCE CERTIFICATE
[Under Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015]
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SECTIOn A: GEnERAl InFORMATIOn ABOuT THE COMPAny

1. Corporate Identity number (CIn) : L85200TG1993PLC046359

2. name of the Company   : Vishnu Chemicals Limited (VCL)

3. Registered Office address  : H.No. 8-2-293/82/F/23-C, Plot No. 23, Road No. 8, Film Nagar, Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad, 

          Telangana – 500096

4. Phone no.     : 040-23396817/ 23327723/29

5. Website      : https://vishnuchemicals.com/

6. Email id      : vishnu@vishnuchemicals.com

7. Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in (industrial activity code-wise):

  Both VCL and its WOS Company Vishnu Barium Private Limited (VBPL) are engaged in business of manufacturing & marketing of 

Specialty Chemicals.

S.no. nIC Code of the product/Service name of main product/service Description
1 20119 Specialty Chemicals Manufacture of performance enhancing 

specialty chemicals

‘AnnExuRE I’
BuSInESS RESPOnSIBIlITy REPORT 
For the financial year ended March 31, 2022

[As per Regulation 34(2)(f ) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

8.  list three key products/services that the Company 
manufactures/provides (as in balance sheet)

  Vishnu Chemicals Limited along with its subsidiaries 

manufactures and sells the following products:

 l	 Chromium Compounds

 l	 Barium Compounds

 l	 Performance Enhance Specialty Chemicals

9.  Total number of locations where business activity is 
undertaken by the Company:

  VCL along with its subsidiaries undertakes manufacturing 

activities in India in State of Telangana, Andhra Pradesh and 

Chhattisgarh and exports its products to all major continents.

10.  Markets served by the Company: Local, State, National 

and International.

SECTIOn B: FInAnCIAl DETAIlS OF THE COMPAny

a. Equity Paid up Capital  : ` 1,194.60 Lakhs

b. Total Turnover    : ` 91,328.66 Lakhs

c. Total profit after taxes  : ` 6,523.90 Lakhs

d.  Total Spending on Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) as percentage of profit after tax (%): Two percent

e.  list of activities in which expenditure in 4 above has 
been incurred:

 l	 Setting up of old age home

 l	 Rural development projects

 l	 Ensuring environmental sustainability

SECTIOn C: OTHER DETAIlS

1.  Does the Company have any Subsidiary Company/ 
Companies?

  Yes, the Company has two wholly-owned subsidiaries as on 

31st March, 2022:

 l	 Vishnu Barium Private Limited (VBPL) - Indian Subsidiary

 l	 Vishnu South Africa Pty Limited - Foreign Subsidiary

2.  Do the Subsidiary Company/Companies participate in 
the BR Initiatives of the parent company? If yes, then 
indicate the number of such subsidiary company(s)

  Yes, the Company encourages its material subsidiary viz. VBPL 

to participate in Business Responsibility (‘BR’) initiatives on a 

wide range of topics. VBPL spends 2% of its profits towards 

CSR initiatives every year.

3.  Do any other entity/entities (e.g. suppliers, distributors 
etc.) that the Company does business with, participate 
in the BR initiatives of the Company? If yes, then 
indicate the percentage of such entity/entities? [less 
than 30%, 30-60%, More than 60%]

  The Company does not mandate its suppliers/distributors to 

participate in the Company’s BR initiatives. However, they are 

encouraged to adopt such practices and follow the concept 

of being a responsible business entity.

H.No
https://vishnuchemicals.com/
S.No
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SECTIOn D: BR InFORMATIOn

1. Details of Director/Directors responsible for BR

 a)  Details of the Director/Director responsible for 
implementation of the BR policy/policies:

  DIN   : 00030274

  Name  : Ch. Krishna Murthy

  Designation : Chairman & Managing Director

 b) Details of the BR head:

S. 
no.

Particulars Details

1 DIN Number 00030274
2 Name Ch. Krishna Murthy
3 Designation Chairman & Managing Director
4 Telephone number +91-40-23396817
5 e-mail id vishnu@vishnuchemicals.com

2. Principle-wise (as per nVGs) BR Policy/policies:

  The National Voluntary Guidelines (NVGs) on Social, 
Environmental and Economic Responsibilities of Business 
(NVGs) released by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has 
adopted nine areas of Business Responsibility. These briefly 
are as under:

  P1 - Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with 
Integrity and in a manner that is ethical, transparent and 
accountable, Transparency and Accountability (this forms 
part of the Code of Conduct).

  P2 - Businesses should provide goods and services that are 
safe and contribute to sustainability throughout their life 

cycle (the policy is part of Company’s Environment, Health 
and Safety (EHS) Policy).

  P3 - Businesses should promote the well-being of all 
employees (certain policies form part of the Code of Conduct 
for employees. There are various policies for the benefit of the 
employees that are issued by the Human Resources function 
from time to time. The policies include Maternity Leave Policy, 
Employee Safety Policy, Mediclaim Policy, etc.).

  P4 - Businesses should respect the interests of and be 
responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who are 
disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalised (the Company 
does not have a specific policy, however certain aspect of this 
principle forms part of the CSR Policy).

  P5 - Businesses should respect and promote human rights 
(this forms part of the Code of Conduct of the Company 
which is applicable to all employees).

  P6 - Businesses should respect, protect and make efforts to 
restore the environment (this forms part of Company’s EHS 
policy).

  P7 - Businesses, when engaged in influencing public and 
regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner (not 
applicable).

  P8 - Businesses should support inclusive growth and 
equitable development (this forms part of the Company’s 
CSR Policy).

  P9 - Businesses should engage with and provide value to 
their customers and consumers in a responsible manner.

 a) Details of compliance (Reply in Y/N)

no. Questions P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9
Do you have a policy/policies for:
1 Has the policy being formulated in consultation with the 

relevant stakeholders?
Y Y Y Y Y Y N Y N

2 Does the policy conform to any national /international 
standards? If yes, specify? (50 words)

All the policies are in comparable with the best practices in 
the industry.

3 Has the policy being approved by the Board?

Is yes, has it been signed by MD/owner/CEO/appropriate 
Board Director?

Y Y Y Y Y Y N Y N

4 Does the Company have a specified committee of the 
Board/Director/Official to oversee the implementation 
of the policy?

Y Y Y Y Y Y N Y N

5 Indicate the link for the policy to be viewed online? Link of the policies https://vishnuchemicals.com/
investors/#Policies

6 Has the policy been formally communicated to all 
relevant internal and external stakeholders?

Y Y Y Y Y Y N Y N

7 Does the Company have in-house structure to 
implement the policy/ policies.

Y Y Y Y Y Y N Y N

8 Does the Company have a grievance redressal 
mechanism related to the policy/policies to address 
stakeholders’ grievances related to the policy/policies?

Y Y Y Y Y Y N Y N

9 Has the Company carried out independent audit/
evaluation of the working of this policy by an internal or 
external agency?

Y Y Y Y Y Y N Y N
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 b)  If answer to the question at serial number 1 against any principle, is ‘No’, please explain why: (Tick up to 2 options)

no. Questions P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

1 The Company has not understood the Principles - - - - - - - - -

2 The Company is not at a stage where it finds itself in a 
position to formulate and implement the policies on 
specified principles

- - - - - - - - -

3 The Company does not have financial or manpower 
resources available for the task

- - - - - - - - -

4 It is planned to be done within next 6 months - - - - - - - - -

5 It is planned to be done within the next 1 year - - - - - - - - √

6 Any other reason (The Company does not carry-on 
any business that is engaged in influencing public and 
regulatory policy.)

- - - - - - √ - -

3. Governance related to BR:

 a)  Indicate the frequency with which the Board 
of Directors, Committee of the Board or CEO 
to assess the BR performance of the Company. 
Within 3 months, 3-6 months, Annually, More 
than 1 year:

   The Managing Director and top management review 

the BR performance of the Company through Business 

Review Meetings on a quarterly basis.

 b)  Does the Company publish a BR or a Sustainability 
Report? What is the hyperlink for viewing this 
report? How frequently it is published?

   BR will be published annually along with the Annual 

Report. www.vishnuchemicals.com

SECTIOn E: PRInCIPlE-WISE PERFORMAnCE

Principle 1: Businesses should conduct and govern 
themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability:

1.  Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and 
corruption cover only the Company? yes/ no. Does 
it extend to the Group/Joint Ventures/ Suppliers/
Contractors/nGOs /Others?

  Yes. The policy of Code of Conduct, Ethics, Anti- Bribery and 

Anti-Corruption covers the Company and its subsidiaries.

2.  How many stakeholder complaints have been received 
in the past financial year and what percentage was 
satisfactorily resolved by the management? If so, 
provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

  There were no complaints received from the shareholders 

during the financial year ended 31st March, 2022. With respect 

to other Stakeholders, the Company has formulated Whistle 

Blower Policy. However, the Company has not received any 

complaint under Vigil mechanism during the financial year 

ended 31st March, 2022.

Principle 2: Businesses should provide goods and services 
that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout 
their life cycle:

1.  list up to 3 of your products or services whose design 
has incorporated social or environmental concerns, 
risks and/or opportunities.

  VCL is committed to the conservation of the environment, 

health and safety of its employees and all stakeholders. 

Sustainability is at the centre of all business processes at VCL 

and its subsidiaries. The Company’s plants are equipped with 

modern machinery operated with sustainable practices. The 

flagship plant is integrated to capture and recover flu gases 

and use it as a vital input for its production in a sustainable 

eco-friendly manner.

2.  For each such product, provide the following details 
in respect of resource use (energy, water, raw material 
etc.) per unit of product(optional):

 a.  Reduction during sourcing/production/ 
distribution achieved since the previous year 
throughout the value chain?

 b.  Reduction during usage by consumers (energy, 
water) has been achieved since the previous year?

  The Company takes required measures to mitigate impact 

to various environmental aspects like air quality, water, noise, 

waste water generation and soil through various engineering 

techniques, equipments and maintenance procedures. 

All the emissions from process are controlled by providing 

control equipment like wet scrubbers.

  Continual improvement is the key factor in achieving 

highest standards sustainable growth. The Company has 

built an effluent wastewater treatment facility with tertiary 

treatment including reverse osmosis. The Company focuses 

on conservation of natural resources: minerals, water and 
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energy to maximum levels. Operations are engineered in a 
closed loop system. All water is treated and reused to achieve 
zero discharge.

3.  Does the company have procedures in place for 
sustainable sourcing (including transportation)?

  If yes, what percentage of your inputs was sourced 
sustainably? Also, provide details thereof, in about 50 
words or so.

  The Company does not mandate its suppliers/distributors 
to participate in the Company’s BR initiatives. However, 
they are encouraged to adopt such practices and follow the 
concept of being a responsible business entity. VCL focuses 
on the principles of sustainable business practices. In the 
past financial year, there has been a significant improvement 
in the sourcing of key raw materials through its integrated 
facility. We have demonstrated being a better corporate 
citizen, reduce wastage, ensure appropriate utilisation of 
resources and reduce our carbon footprint.

4.  Has the company taken any steps to procure goods 
and services from local & small producers, including 
communities surrounding their place of work? If yes, 
what steps have been taken to improve their capacity 
and capability of local and small vendors?

  The Company continues to adopt environment and 
people friendly best practices in the business. With a view 
of developing domestic suppliers, various key input raw 
materials are sourced through domestic small producers 
which includes packaging materials, spares and consumables. 
We prioritise procurement of goods and services from local 
suppliers who meet the standards we require. In some cases, 
we support local businesses and develop their process 
knowledge to meet these standards.

5.  Does the Company have a mechanism to recycle 
products and waste? If yes what is the percentage of 
recycling of products and waste (separately as <5%, 
5-10%, >10%). Also, provide details thereof, in about 
50 words or so.

  The Company has installed air emission control equipments 
for controlling particle and air quality. We have also installed 
and scaled our wastewater treatment facility with tertiary 
treatment including reverse osmosis. Stabilisation of waste 
residue, using an automated treatment plant and operations 
are engineered in a closed loop system, all water is treated 
and reused to achieve zero discharge.

Principle 3: Businesses should promote the wellbeing of all 
employees:

1. Please indicate the Total number of employees: 416

2.  Please indicate the Total number of employees hired 
on temporary/contractual/casual basis: 620

3.  Please indicate the number of permanent women 
employees: 15

4.  Please indicate the number of permanent employees 
with disabilities: Nil

5.  Do you have an employee association that is recognised 
by management: No

6.  What percentage of your permanent employees is 
members of this recognised employee association?  
Not applicable

7.  Please indicate the number of complaints relating to 
child labour, forced labour, involuntary labour, sexual 
harassment in the last financial year and pending, as 
on the end of the financial year: Nil

8.  What percentage of your under mentioned employees 
were given safety & skill up-gradation training in the 
last year?

 (a) Permanent employees: 115

 (b) Permanent women employees: 7

 (c) Casual/Temporary/Contractual Employees: 143

 (d) Employees with disabilities: NA

Principle 4: Businesses should respect the interests of, and 
be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those 
who are disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalised:

1.  Has the Company mapped its internal and external 
stakeholders?

  Yes, the Company has mapped its stakeholders as a part of its 
stakeholder engagement strategy development process.

2.  Out of the above, has the company identified 
the disadvantaged, vulnerable & marginalised 
stakeholders?

  Yes, the Company has identified the communities which are 
vulnerable and need focussed intervention.

3.  Are there any special initiatives taken by the Company 
to engage with the disadvantaged, vulnerable and 
marginalised stakeholders. If so, provide details 
thereof, in about 50 words or so.

  Yes, the Company follows an integrated development 
approach, which specifically targets the disadvantaged, 
vulnerable and marginalised stakeholders.

Principle 5: Businesses should respect and promote human 
rights:

1.  Does the policy of the Company on human rights 
cover only the Company or extend to the Group/Joint 
Ventures/Suppliers/Contractors/nGOs/Others?

  All aspects of human rights are inbuilt and covered under 
the Company’s Code of Business Conduct as well in various 
human resource practices / policies.
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2.  How many stakeholder complaints have been received 
in the past financial year and what percent was 
satisfactorily resolved by the management?

  No complaints with respect to Human Rights were reported 
during the financial year ended 31st March, 2022.

Principle 6: Business should respect, protect, and make 
efforts to restore the environment:

1.  Does the policy related to Principle 6 cover only the 
company or extends to the Group/Joint Ventures/
Suppliers/Contractors/nGOs/others.

  The Company and its subsidiary companies adhere to 
all the statutory environmental regulatory requirements. 
The subsidiary company has adopted the Company’s 
Environment, Health and Safety Policy.

2.  Does the Company have strategies/ initiatives to 
address global environmental issues such as climate 
change, global warming, etc? y/n. If yes, please give 
hyperlink for webpage etc.

  The Company and its Subsidiary are working to optimise 
the usage of resources and contributing towards Water 
Footprinting, Carbon Footprinting etc., by upgrading the 
technology and adopting the alternatives.

3.  Does the Company identify and assess potential 
environmental risks? y/n

  Yes, the Company and its subsidiary have Risk Management 
mechanisms in place to identify and assess existing and 
potential risks across its operations.

4.  Does the company have any project related to Clean 
Development Mechanism? If so, provide details 
thereof, in about 50 words or so. Also, if yes, whether 
any environmental compliance report is filed?

  The Company has installed air emission control equipments for 
controlling particle and air quality. We have also installed and 
scaled our wastewater treatment facility with tertiary treatment 
including reverse osmosis. Stabilisation of waste residue, using 
an automated treatment plant and operations are engineered 
in a closed loop system, all water is treated and reused to 
achieve zero discharge. The Company files environment 
compliance report as required under various statues.

5.  Has the Company undertaken any other initiatives on –
clean technology, energy efficiency, renewable energy, 
etc. y/n. If yes, please give hyperlink for web page etc.

  The Company and its subsidiary through their dedicated team 
of engineers, have been monitoring performance of various 
plants and equipment’s to reduce energy consumption. The 
significant energy conservation measures initiated during 
the year are given in the statement under section 134(3)
(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, which is made part of Annual Report 

as an annexure to Boards’ Report of the Company and 
Subsidiary Companies. The web link for the same is www.
vishnuchemicals.com

6.  Are the Emissions/Waste generated by the Company 
within the permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB for 
the financial year being reported?

  The emissions/waste generated by the Company and its 
subsidiary is within the permissible limits specified by Central 
or State Pollution Control Board (CPCB/SPCB) for the financial 
year being reported.

7.  number of show cause/ legal notices received from 
CPCB/SPCB which are pending (i.e. not resolved to 
satisfaction) as on end of Financial year.

  There are no show cause/legal notices from CPCB/SPCB that 
are pending as at the end of the financial year.

Principle 7: Businesses, when engaged in influencing public 
and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner:

1.  Is your company a member of any trade and chamber 
or association? If yes, name only those major ones that 
your business deals with:

  Yes. The Company is a member of Federation of Telangana 
Chamber of Commerce and Industry (FTCCI), Telangana 
State, India.

2.  Have you advocated/lobbied through above 
associations for the advancement or improvement of 
public good? yes/no; if yes specify the broad areas ( 
drop box: Governance and Administration, Economic 
Reforms, Inclusive Development Policies, Energy 
security, Water, Food Security, Sustainable Business 
Principles, Others)

  No, we have not advocated/lobbied through the above 
mentioned association(s) for the advancement or 
improvement of public good.

Principle 8: Businesses should support inclusive growth and 
equitable development:

1.  Does the Company have specified programmes/
initiatives/projects in pursuit of the policy related to 
Principle 8? If yes details thereof.

  The Company has adopted CSR Policy, the key areas of focus 

of CSR Policy are:

 (a)  Promoting gender equality, empowering women, 

setting up homes and hostels for women and orphans; 

setting up old age homes, day care centres and such 

other facilities for senior citizens and measures for 

reducing inequalities faced by socially and economically 

backward groups;

 (b)  Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological 

balance
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 (c)  Rural development projects

 (d)  Ensuring environmental sustainability

2.  Are the programmes/projects undertaken through 
in-house team/own foundation/external nGO/
government structures/any other organisation?

  The above-mentioned initiatives are implemented through 

its in-house team and through own Foundation named 

Krishna Foundation, registered public charitable trust.

3.  Have you done any impact assessment of your 
initiative? No.

4.  What is your company’s direct contribution to 
community development projects-Amount in ₹ and 
the details of the projects undertaken:

  The Company along with its subsidiary in India have spent an 

amount of ` 66.52 Lakhs on its CSR activities during financial 

year ended 31st March, 2022.

5.  Have you taken steps to ensure that this community 
development initiative is successfully adopted by the 
community? Please explain in 50 words, or so.

  The CSR model of the Company and its Subsidiary is well-

integrated with its business strategy and has helped to 

bring about positive change in communities. The Company 

established Krishna Foundation along with its subsidiary 

to drive its CSR initiatives, which includes providing old 

age home facility to elderly group and said facility includes 

meals, gatherings, recreation activities, and basic health care 

etc., The Company also undertakes Plantation of Trees at 

Visakhapatnam towards promotion of Plantation and Social 

Forestry, for improving the quality of air.

Principle 9: Businesses should engage with and provide 
value to their customers and consumers in a responsible 
manner:

1.  What percentage of customer complaints/consumer 
cases are pending as on the end of financial year.

  No complaints/consumer cases are pending as on the end of 

financial year.

2.  Does the Company display product information on the 
product label, over and above what is mandated as per 
local laws?

  The Company and its subsidiary Companies displays product 

information on the product label as per the requirement of 

law.

3.  Is there any case filed by any stakeholder against 
the company regarding unfair trade practices, 
irresponsible advertising and/or anti-competitive 
behaviour during the last five years and pending as on 
end of financial year. If so, provide details thereof, in 
about 50 words or so.

  No case was filed by any stakeholder against the Company 

regarding unfair trade practices, irresponsible advertising 

and/or anti-competitive behaviour during the last five years.

4.  Did your company carry out any consumer survey/ 
consumer satisfaction trends?

  The Company has not carried out any formal consumer 

survey/consumer satisfaction trends. However, the 

Company keeps track of responses/comments from various 

stakeholders.
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Independent AudItor’S report

to tHe MeMBerS oF VISHnu CHeMICAlS lIMIted 

report on tHe AudIt oF tHe StAndAlone FInAnCIAl 
StAteMentS 

opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial 

statements of Vishnu Chemicals Limited (“the Company”), which 

comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement 

of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the 

Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows 

for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter 

referred to as “the standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 

to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial 

statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 

2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and 

fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards 

prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) 

and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 

state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2022, and its profit, 

total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in 

equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in 

accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 

143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards 

are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are 

independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of 

Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

(ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are 

relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under 

the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we 

have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 

these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that 

the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 

to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial 

statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 

judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone 

financial statements of the current period. These matters were 

addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial 

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and 

we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have 

determined the matters described below to be the key audit 

matters to be communicated in our report.

Aspects determined as KAM

1. trade receivables:

  Trade receivables comprise almost half of the current assets 
and also form a sizeable component of the total assets of 
the company. Management’s judgement in assessing their 
recoverability and estimating possible provision for any 
credit loss would involve consideration of facts from a multi-
dimensional perspective like, among others, contractual 
terms, credit history of the customers, past payment patterns, 
any identifiable rejection possibilities and the like.

  Audit Measures adopted to validate KAM included the 
following:

	 •	 	Assessing	 the	 appropriateness	 in	 validation	of	 certain	
overdue receivables basis the past payment history, 
current transactional issues and long-term binding 
contracts in place and correspondence with the 
customers.

	 •	 	Testing	the	operational	efficacy	of	relevant	controls	with	
respect to recognition and realizability of receivables 
and their application on a consistent basis.

	 •	 	Undertook	 a	 substantive	 testing	 to	 ascertain	 any	
inconsistent realization patterns that would give raise 
to any impairment provisioning;

  Basis the above stated measures, no significant exceptions 
were noted in valuation of trade receivables requiring any 
provision.

2. Contingent liabilities and disputed liabilities:

  The provisioning for contingent and disputed liabilities 
involves significant judgment to determine the possible 
outcome and their treatment in the books of accounts. These 
judgments could eventually lead to making an appropriate 
disclosure or might even require some provisioning to be 
made in the financial statements depending on whether 
an obligation requiring outflow of resources would arise in 
future or not.

  As part of audit procedures, we sought the source documents 
as well as the correspondence and other material pertaining 
to each issue. We reviewed to validate the appropriateness 
of the management’s judgment in arriving at a decision 
of disclosure / provision and see if they are adequate and 
comprehensive to the extent possible.

emphasis of Matter

 The preference shareholders of the company, who are also the 
promoters, have given an undertaking foregoing 6% of the eligible 
7% dividend amounting to ` 459.83 Lakhs, receivable by them for 
the financial year 2021-22 as mentioned in Note 43 of Notes to 
Accounts.
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Our Opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements 
and Auditor’s report thereon:

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation 

of the other information. The other information comprises the 

information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, 

Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business 

Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s 

Information, but does not include the standalone financial 

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover 

the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, 

our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 

consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 

with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge 

obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to 

be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is 

a material misstatement of this other information, we are required 

to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s responsibility for the Standalone Financial 
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters 

stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation 

of these standalone financial statements that give a true and 

fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total 

comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the 

Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting 

principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also 

includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the 

assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 

and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 

accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 

are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 

operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 

of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 

presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true 

and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 

due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is 

responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a 

going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 

management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s 

financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 

issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 

assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 

an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone 

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional 

judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the 

audit. We also:

•	 	Identify	and	assess	the	risks	of	material	misstatement	of	the	

standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 

those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 

or the override of internal control.

•	 	Obtain	 an	 understanding	 of	 internal	 financial	 controls	

relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 

are	appropriate	in	the	circumstances.	Under	section	143(3)(i)	

of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 

on whether the Company has adequate internal financial 

controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of 

such controls.

•	 	Evaluate	 the	 appropriateness	 of	 accounting	 policies	 used	

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 

disclosures made by management.

•	 	Conclude	 on	 the	 appropriateness	 of	management’s	 use	 of	

the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 

audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 

doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 

concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 

we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to 

the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements 

or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 

Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 

up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events 

or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 

as a going concern.
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•	 	Evaluate	the	overall	presentation,	structure	and	content	of	the	

standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, 

and whether the standalone financial statements represent 

the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 

achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone 

financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes 

it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 

knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. 

We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in 

(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the 

results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 

misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, 

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 

and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 

in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement 

that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 

to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with 

governance, we determine those matters that were of most 

significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements 

of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. 

We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 

regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 

in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 

should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1.  As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit 

we report that:

 a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and 

explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

 b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by 

law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 

from our examination of those books.

 c)  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss 

including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement 

of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow 

dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 

relevant books of account.

 d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial 

statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 

Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

 e)  On the basis of the written representations received 

from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on 

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 

disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed 

as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

 f )  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls over financial reporting of the Company and 

the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 

separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses 

an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating 

effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial 

controls over financial reporting.

 g)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the 

Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements 

of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

   In our opinion and to the best of our information 

and according to the explanations given to us, the 

remuneration paid by the Company to its directors 

during the year is in accordance with the provisions of 

section 197 of the Act.

 h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in 

the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended 

in our opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us:

  i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of 

pending litigations on its financial position in its 

standalone financial statements.

  ii.  The Group did not have any material foreseeable 

losses on long-term contracts including derivative 

contracts.

  iii.  There were no amounts which were required 

to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company.

  vi. a.  The management has represented that, 

to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 

funds (which are material either individually 

or in the aggregate) have been advanced or 

loaned or invested (either from borrowed 

funds or share premium or any other sources 

or kind of funds) by the company to or in 

any other person(s) or entities, including 

foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the 

Independent AudItorS’ report (Contd.)
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understanding whether recorded in writing 

or not that the intermediary shall whether 

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 

persons or entities identified in any manner 

by	 or	 on	 behalf	 of	 the	 company	 (Ultimate	

Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, 

security or the like on behalf of ultimate 

beneficiaries.

   b.  The management has represented that, 

to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 

funds (which are material either individually 

or in the aggregate) have been received by 

the company from any person(s) or entities 

including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”) 

with the understanding that such company 

shall whether, directly or indirectly, lend or 

invest in other persons or entities identified 

in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 

of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) 

or provide guarantee, security or the like on 

behalf	of	the	Ultimate	beneficiaries.

   c.  Based on the audit procedures performed, 

we report that nothing has come to our 

notice that has caused us to believe that 

the representations given under sub-clause 

(i) and (ii) by the management contain any 

material mis- statement.

  v.  In our opinion Company has complied with 

section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 with 

respect to dividend declared/paid during the 

year.

2.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 

(“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms 

of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a 

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of 

the Order.

For Jampani & Associates
Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No. 016581S)

sd/-

trinadha rao Marisetty
Partner

Place: Hyderabad (Membership No. 207990)

Date:	16th	May,	2022	 UDIN:	22207990AJSABQ7898

Independent AudItorS’ report (Contd.)
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report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 

reporting of VISHnu CHeMCAlS lIMIted (“the Company”) as 

of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone 

financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that 

date.

Management’s responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for 

establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 

the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 

the Company considering the essential components of internal 

control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the 

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 

orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 

to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 

the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 

and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 

Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial 

controls over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on 

Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 

“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 

143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to 

an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the 

Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements 

and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 

reporting was established and maintained and if such controls 

operated effectively in all material respects.

AnneXure “A” to tHe Independent AudItor’S report
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f ) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of Vishnu 

Chemicals Limited of even date)

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 

evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 

system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. 

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting 

included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 

over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 

exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. 

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 

of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. We 

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal 

financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a 

process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial 

control over financial reporting includes those policies and 

procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, 

in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 

and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 

reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 

to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 

generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance 

with authorisations of management and directors of the company; 

and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 

timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition 

of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 

financial statements.

Inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls 

over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion 
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or improper management override of controls, material 

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. 

Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 

over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that 

the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 

of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the 

explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, 

an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 

reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 

reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based 

on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 

by the Company considering the essential components of internal 

control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India.

For Jampani & Associates
Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No. 016581S)

sd/-

trinadha rao Marisetty
Partner

Place: Hyderabad (Membership No. 207990)

Date:	16th	May,	2022		 UDIN:	22207990AJSABQ7898
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3. i.  In respect of the Company’s fixed assets:

 (a) (A)  The Company has maintained proper records 

showing full particulars, including quantitative 

details and situation of Property, Plant & 

Equipment.

  (B)  The Company has maintained proper records 

showing full particulars of intangible assets.

 (b)  The Company has a program of verification to cover 

all the items of Property, Plant & Equipment in a 

phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable 

having regard to the size of the Company and the 

nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain 

Property, Plant & Equipment were physically verified 

by the management during the year. According to the 

information and explanations given to us, no material 

discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

 (c)  According to the information and explanations given 

to us, the records examined by us and based on the 

examination of the conveyance deeds / registered sale 

deed provided to us, we report that, the title deeds of all 

the immovable properties (other than properties where 

the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are 

duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the 

name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

 (d)  The company has not revalued its Property, Plant & 

Equipment or Intangible assets or both during the year.

 (e)  As per the information and explanations provided to 

us, no proceedings have been initiated against the 

company for holding benami property under The 

Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules 

made thereunder.

ii. (a)  The inventories were physically verified during the 

year by the Management at reasonable intervals. In 

our opinion and according to the information and 

explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure 

of such verification by the Management is appropriate 

having regard to the size of the Company and the 

nature of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or 

more in the aggregate for each class of inventories were 

noticed on such physical verification of inventories 

when compared with books of account.

 (b)  The company has been sanctioned working capital 

limits in excess of Rupees five crore, in aggregate, 

from banks on the basis of security of current assets. 

Further, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the 

company with such banks are in agreement with books 

of account of the company.

AnneXure ‘B’ to tHe Independent AudItor’S report
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of Vishnu 

Chemicals Limited of even date)

iii. (a)  According the information and explanations given to 

us, the Company has granted interest free unsecured 

loan and also Corporate Guarantee to its/on behalf of 

its Indian wholly owned subsidiary (WOS), in terms of 

the condition for sanctioning of Term loans by Banks 

to the WOS. While there is no fresh amount advanced 

during the year, the total loan amount granted in the 

earlier years and the actual balance outstanding at the 

end of the year is ` 989 Lakhs (with an amortised value 

of ̀  951.59 Lakhs). While the original loan amount taken 

by WOS for which corporate gurantee was given was  

` 4570 Lakhs, an amount of ` 3328.32 lakhs of the loans 

are outstanding as at the date of the balance sheet.

 (b)  According to the information and explanations given to 

us, the terms and conditions of grant of the loans and 

guarantees provided are not prima facie prejudicial to 

the interests of the company.

 (c )  As per the stipulation of the banks lending to WOS, the 

loan given by company to WOS cannot be withdrawn 

and gurantee will be in force till the loans taken from 

banks are repaid by WOS, which as per schedules of 

payment will last till 31-12-2028 and hence we are 

unable to offer any comment as required under this 

clause.

 (d)  In view of aforesaid nature of the loans and gurantee, 

the comment as required under this clause is not 

pertinent.

 (e)  As per the information provided and aforesaid nature 

of the loans and gurantee, no loan or advance in the 

nature of loans have been renewed or extended or 

fresh loans granted to settle overdues of existing loans 

given to same parties.

 (f )  As mentioned herein, the repayment of the loan 

granted by the company to WOS is dependent on 

the closure of loans given to it by banks and hence no 

specific period of repayment is specified, the aggregate 

amount of which is ` 989 Lakhs (with an amortised 

value of ` 951.59 Lakhs) and which constitutes 100% of 

the total loans given by the company.

iv.  In our opinion and according to the information and 

explanations given to us, the Company has complied with 

the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of 

grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees 

and securities, as applicable.

v.  According to the information and explanations provided 

to us, the Company has not accepted deposits or amounts 

which are deemed to be deposits in terms of the directives 
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issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 

73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the 

rules framed there under and therefore, the provisions of the 

clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

vi.  We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by 

the company pursuant to sub-section (1) of section 148 of 

the Act and are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed 

accounts and records have been made and maintained.

vii.   According to the information and explanations given to us, in 
respect of statutory dues: 

 (a)  The Company has generally been regular in depositing 

undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and 

Service Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, 

income Tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty 

of excise, cess and any other statutory dues to the 

appropriate authorities except in instances of payment 

of income taxes and there are no dues outstanding for 

a period of more than six months from the date they 

became payable as at March 31, 2022.

 (b)  Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited as at March 31, 2022 on account of dispute 

are given below:

nature of the 
statute

nature of dues Forum where dispute 
is pending

period to which the 
amount relates

Amount in ` lakhs

Sales Tax Act Interest on Sales tax Commissioner 1998-99 7.75 (` 7.75 Lakhs deposited)
Sales Tax Act Sales tax High Court 2008-09 124.36 (` 124.36 Lakhs deposited)
Sales Tax Act Entry Tax Appellate Commissioner 2014-15 to 2017-18 55.40 (` 14.68 Lakhs deposited)
Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax CESTAT 2006-2007 to 2010-11 418.68 Stay granted
Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax CESTAT 2011-12 233.94 (` 17.55 Lakhs deposited)

viii.  According to the information and explanations provided to 

us, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed as income, 

during the year, any transactions not recorded in the books of 

account in tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

ix. a.  In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in 

repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the 

payment of interest thereon to any lender.

 b.  The Company has not declared as a wilful defaulter by 

any bank or financial institution or government or any 

government authority.

 c.  In our opinion and according to the information and 

explanations given to us, the term loans have been 

applied for the purpose for which they were obtained.

 d.  On an overall examination of the financial statements 

of the company, funds raised on short-term basis have, 

prima facie, not been used for long-term purposes by 

the company.

 e.  According to the information and explanations 

provided to us, the Company has not taken any funds 

from any entity or person on account of or to meet 

the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates, or joint 

ventures.

 f.  According to the information and explanations 

provided to us and procedures performed by us, the 

Company has not raised loans during the year on 

the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint 

ventures or associate companies.

x. a.  The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial 

public offer or further public offer (including debt 

instruments) during the year and hence reporting 

under clause 3 (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to 

the Company.

 b.  The Company has not made any preferential allotment 

or private placement of shares or convertible 

debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) 

during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)

(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

xi. a.  To the best of our knowledge and according to the 

information and explanations given to us and based 

on the audit procedures performed by us, no fraud by 

the Company or on the Company has been noticed or 

reported during the year.

 b.  To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-

section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has 

been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 

of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the 

Central Government.

 c.  As represented to us, the Company has not received 

any whistle-blower complaints during the year.

xii.  The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting 

under clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the 

Company.

xiii.  In our opinion and according to the information and 

explanations given to us, the Company is in compliance 



81 AnnuAl report 2021-22

financial statements

with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where 

applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and 

the details of related party transactions have been disclosed 

in the standalone financial statements as required by the 

applicable accounting standards.

xiv. a.  In our opinion and based on our examination, the 

company has an internal audit system commensurate 

with the size and nature of its business.

 b.  We have considered the internal audit reports of the 

company issued till date for the period under audit.

xv.  In our opinion, during the year the Company has not entered 

into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons 

connected to its directors and hence provisions of section 

192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the 

Company.

xvi.  The Company is not required to be registered under section 

45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and hence 

reporting under clause 3 (xvi) of the Order is not applicable 

to the Company.

xvii.  The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial 

year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii.  We continue to be statutory auditors of the Company since 

the previous year and have not resigned at any point during 

the year, hence reporting under clause 3 (xviii) of the Order is 

not applicable.

xix.  According to the information and explanations given to us 

and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected 

dates of realization of financial assets and payment of 

financial liabilities, other information accompanying the 

financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors 

and management plans and based on our examination of 

the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come 

to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material 

uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that 

company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at 

the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 

period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, 

state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of 

the company. We further state that our reporting is based on 

the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither 

give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling 

due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, 

will get discharged by the company as and when they fall 

due.

xx.  The Company has fully spent the required amount towards 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and there is no unspent 

CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund 

specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act or special 

account incompliance with the provision of sub-section (6) 

of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under 

clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For Jampani & Associates
Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No. 016581S)

sd/-

trinadha rao Marisetty
Partner

Place: Hyderabad  Membership No. 207990

Date:	16th,	May	2022		 UDIN:	22207990AJSABQ7898

AnneXure ‘B’ to tHe Independent AudItor’S report (Contd.)
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StAndAlone BAlAnCe SHeet 
AS At 31St MArCH, 2022

` in Lakhs
note no. As at   

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
 I ASSetS

(1) non-current assets
 (a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 37,520.88 36,393.81
 (b) Capital work-in-progress 2 254.85 290.15
 (c) Intangible Assets 2 0.39 0.18

37,776.12 36,684.14
 (d) Financial Assets
  (i) Investments 3 598.62 604.82
  (ii) Loans 4 951.59 868.00
 (e) Other non-current assets 5 1,112.52 798.11

40,438.85 38,955.07
(2) Current assets
 (a) Inventories 6 14,997.95 17,753.37
 (b) Financial Assets
  (i) Investments 7 100.40  - 
  (ii) Trade receivables 8 17,084.51 10,412.91
  (iii) Cash and cash equivalents 9 11.34 11.42
  (iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 10 1,249.71 936.50
  (v) Other financial assets 11 56.39 58.77
 (c) Other current assets 12 2,825.36 2,230.29
 (d) Assets classified as held for sale 13 190.00  - 

36,515.66 31,403.26
total Assets 76,954.51 70,358.33
II eQuItY And lIABIlItIeS 

eQuItY
(a) Equity Share capital 14 1,194.60 1,194.60
(b) Other Equity 15 20,421.88 13,948.53

21,616.48 15,143.13
lIABIlItIeS
(1) non-current liabilities
 (a) Financial Liabilities
  (i) Borrowings 16 17,410.15 18,432.19
  (ii) Lease liabilities 17 22.04  - 
 (b) Provisions 18 145.13 245.89
 (c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 19 3,990.90 3,670.62
 (d) Other Non-Current liabilities 20 1,523.76 3,338.22

23,091.98 25,686.92
(2)  Current liabilities
 (a) Financial Liabilities

 (i) Borrowings 21 13,874.86 14,515.16
 (ii) Trade payables

 - Due to MSME entities 22 0.18 20.56
 - Other than MSME entities 22 14,332.36 12,051.66

 (iii) Lease liabilities 23 15.96  - 
 (iv) Other financial liabilities 24 482.94 1,620.45

 (b) Other current liabilities 25 2,089.76 995.13
 (c) Provisions 26 20.31 44.42
 (d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 27 1,429.68 280.90

32,246.05 29,528.28
total equity and liabilities 76,954.51 70,358.33

Accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date
For Jampani & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016581S
sd/- sd/- sd/-
trinadha rao Marisetty Ch. Krishna Murthy Ch. Manjula
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Director
Membership No. 207990 DIN: 00030274 DIN: 01546339

sd/- sd/-
Place: Hyderabad p. Anjaneyulu Kishore Kathri 
Date: 16th May, 2022 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary & AGM-Legal

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16th May, 2022
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` in Lakhs
note no. For the year ended 

31st March, 2022
For the year ended 

31st March, 2021
1 InCoMe

a. Revenue from Operations 28 90,668.70 57,310.23
b. Other Income 29 659.96 398.74

total Income 91,328.66 57,708.97
2 eXpenSeS

a. Cost of Materials Consumed 30 35,272.59 23,426.26
b. Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 1,506.72  -   
c. Cost of Consumables 31 13,459.85 7,375.91
d. Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-in-Progress 32 1,641.22 1,104.48
e. Employee Benefit Expenses 33 3,198.37 2,627.19
f. Finance Costs 34 2,452.00 2,472.93
g. Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 2 1,926.67 1,716.14
h. Power Cost 35 3,623.59 2,479.23
i. Manufacturing Expenses 36 8,137.37 6,655.66
j. Selling & Administrative Expenses 37 11,161.32 7,511.15
k. Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 38 43.27 113.87

total expenses 82,422.97 55,482.81
3 profit Before tax 8,905.69 2,226.16
4 tax expense 39

a. Current Tax 2,053.12 386.74
b. Tax pertaining to earlier years  (5.26)  (136.84)
c. MAT Reversal  -   785.86
d. Deferred Tax Prior Period  -    (1,328.51)
e. Deferred Tax 333.93 243.58

2,381.79  (49.17)
5 profit For the period from Continuing operations 6,523.90 2,275.33
6 other Comprehensive Income  (54.68) 27.13

Less: Tax on above  (13.76) 6.83
7 other Comprehensive Income (net of taxes)  (40.92) 20.30
8 total Comprehensive Income for the period (5+7) 6,482.98 2,295.63
9 earnings per Share 

Basic & Diluted (in `)  54.61  19.05 
(Annualised) (Annualised)

Accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements

StAndAlone StAteMent oF proFIt And loSS 
For tHe YeAr endIng 31St MArCH, 2022

As per our report of even date
For Jampani & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016581S

sd/- sd/- sd/-
trinadha rao Marisetty Ch. Krishna Murthy Ch. Manjula
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Director
Membership No. 207990 DIN: 00030274 DIN: 01546339

sd/- sd/-
Place: Hyderabad p. Anjaneyulu Kishore Kathri 
Date: 16th May, 2022 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary & AGM-Legal

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16th May, 2022
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` in Lakhs

For the year ended 
31st March, 2022

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

profit before tax 8,905.69 2,226.16

Cash flows used in / from operating activities

Adjustments for :

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,926.67 1,716.14

Profit on sale of investments  (3.64)  (0.77)

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment  (0.50)  (13.98)

Interest income  (62.06)  (74.39)

Unwinding	of	interest	income	on	interest	free	loan	given	to	subsidiary  (83.58)  (76.24)

Interest expenses 2,108.42 2,194.17

Unwinding	of	interest	expenses	on	loan	from	promoter	directors 220.05 185.46

Unwinding	of	interest	on	interest	free	security	deposits	received	from	suppliers 5.18  (4.19)

Amortisation of processing fees of long term loans 5.85 7.70

Fair value (gain)/ loss on investments (net)  (1.21)  (7.19)

Obsolete stock provision 13.29 12.63

Other comprehensive income  (54.68) 27.13

Provision for bad/doubtful debts  - 15.90

Advances and bad debts written back (net)  - 36.74

operating profit before working capital changes 12,979.48 6,245.27

Movement in working capital:

(Increase)/Decrease in inventories 2,742.12 1,390.19

Increase/(Decrease) in trade receivables  (6,671.60)  (2,525.18)

(Increase) / Decrease in financial & non financial assets  (1,007.50) 255.17

(Decrease)/ Increase in trade payables  2,260.32  (648.52)

Increase/(Decrease) in financial & non financial liabilities & provisions  (703.46) 827.48

Cash generated from operations 9,599.36 5544.41

Income tax paid  (899.07)  (665.56)

net cash flows used in / from operating activities (A) 8,700.29 4,878.85

Cash flows used in / from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, including capital work in progress  (3,326.47)  (4,011.70)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 118.30 137.35

Investments in mutual funds  (151.52)  - 

Proceeds from sale investments in mutual funds 162.57 60.20

Movement in Other Bank Balances  (313.21) 179.48

Interest received 62.06 74.39

net cash flows used in / from investing activities (B)  (3,448.27)  (3,560.28)

CASH Flow StAteMent 
For tHe YeAr ended 31St MArCH, 2022
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` in Lakhs

For the year ended 
31st March, 2022

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

net cash flows used in / from financing activities

Increase/(Decrease) in long term borrowings  (805.77)  1,611.30 

Increase/(Decrease) in short term borrowings  (1,044.46)  (971.09)

Interest paid  (2,108.42)  (2,194.17)

Dividend Paid  (1,293.45)  (119.46)

net cash flows used in/from financing activities (C)  (5,252.10)  (1,673.42)

net decrease in cash and cash equivalents  (A+B+C)  (0.08)  (354.85)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  11.42  366.27 

Cash and cash equivalents at the year end  11.34  11.42 

Components of cash and cash equivalents:

Cash on hand 4.22 3.39

Balances with banks 7.12 8.03

total cash and cash equivalents 11.34 11.42

CASH Flow StAteMent 
For tHe YeAr ended 31St MArCH, 2022 (Contd.)

As per our report of even date
For Jampani & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016581S

sd/- sd/- sd/-
trinadha rao Marisetty Ch. Krishna Murthy Ch. Manjula
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Director
Membership No. 207990 DIN: 00030274 DIN: 01546339

sd/- sd/-
Place: Hyderabad p. Anjaneyulu Kishore Kathri 
Date: 16th May, 2022 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary & AGM-Legal

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16th May, 2022
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note 14
a  equity Share Capital 
equity shares of ` 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid-up number of shares ` in lakhs 

31st March, 
2022

31st March, 
2021

31st March, 
2022

31st March, 
2021

Balance as at the beginning of the year  1,19,46,020  1,19,46,020  1,194.60  1,194.60 
Changes in share capital during the year  -    -    -    -   
Balance as at the end of the year  1,19,46,020  1,19,46,020  1,194.60  1,194.60 

note 15

b. other equity
For the year ended 31st March, 2022

` in Lakhs
reserves and Surplus Items of other 

Comprehensive 
Income

total

Capital 
reserve

general 
reserve

retained 
earnings

effect of Amortisation 
of Interest free loans 

from promoter 
directors 

remeasurement 
of net defined 
Benefit plans

Balance as at 1st April, 2021 0.86 659.07 12,276.38 1,036.88  (24.66) 13,948.53
Add/(less) Profit for the year (Net of Taxes) 6,523.90 6,523.90
Add/(less) Changes during the year (net) 109.93 109.93
Add/(less) Other Comprehensive Income 
for the year (net of taxes)

 -    (41.02)  (41.02)

Less: Dividend 119.46 119.46
Less: Corporate dividend tax  -   
Less: Transfer to general reserve  -   
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 0.86 659.07 18,680.82 1,146.81  (65.68) 20,421.88

For the period ended 31st March, 2021
` in Lakhs

reserves and Surplus Items of other 
Comprehensive 

Income

total

Capital 
reserve

general 
reserve

retained 
earnings

effect of Amortisation 
of Interest free loans 

from promoter 
directors 

remeasurement 
of net defined 
Benefit plans

Balance as at 1st April, 2020 0.86 659.07 10,120.52 768.04  (44.96) 11,503.53
Add/(less) Profit for the year (Net of Taxes) 2,275.32 2,275.32
Add/(less) Changes during the year (net) 268.84 268.84
Add/(less) Other Comprehensive Income 
for the year (net of taxes)

20.30 20.30

Less: Dividend 119.46 119.46
Less: Corporate dividend tax  -   
Less :Transfer to general reserve  -   
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 0.86 659.07 12,276.38 1,036.88  (24.66) 13,948.53

As per our report of even date
For Jampani & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016581S
sd/- sd/- sd/-
trinadha rao Marisetty Ch. Krishna Murthy Ch. Manjula
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Director
Membership No. 207990 DIN: 00030274 DIN: 01546339

sd/- sd/-
Place: Hyderabad p. Anjaneyulu Kishore Kathri 
Date: 16th May, 2022 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary & AGM-Legal

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16th May, 2022
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A. Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

a) Statement of Compliance

  The financial statements have been prepared in accordance 

with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under 

Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) 

Rules, 2016 and other relevant provisions of the Act, as 

applicable.

b) Basis of preparation

  The financial statements have been prepared on a going 

concern basis and on an accrual method of accounting. 

Historical cost is used in preparation of the financial 

statements except as otherwise mentioned in the policy.

c) Functional and presentation currency

  The financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees (`), 

which is the Company’s functional currency and all values are 

rounded to the nearest Lakh, except otherwise indicated.

d) Current versus non-current classification

  The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance 

sheet based on current/non-current classification. An asset is 

treated as current when it is:

 -  expected to be realised or intended to be sold or 

consumed in normal operating cycle,

 - held primarily for the purpose of trading,

 -  expected to be realised within twelve months after the 

reporting period, or

 -  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being 

exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period.

 All other assets are classified as non-current.

 A liability is current when:

 - it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

 -  it is held primarily for the purpose of trading, it is due 

to be settled within twelve months after the reporting 

period, or

 -  there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement 

of the liability for at least twelve months after the 

reporting period.

 The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current 

assets and liabilities.

  The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of 

assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash 

BASIS oF prepArAtIon oF FInAnCIAl StAteMentS And 
SIgnIFICAnt ACCountIng polICIeS

equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as 

its operating cycle.

e) use of estimates and Judgments

  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 

Ind AS requires the Management to make estimates and 

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 

and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities as on 

the date of the financial statements and the income and 

expenditure for the reporting year. Though, these estimates 

and assumptions are based on the information available at 

that point of time, the actual results could differ from these 

estimates.

  Critical estimates and judgments in applying 
accounting policies

  Estimates and judgments made in applying accounting 

policies that have significant effect on the amounts 

recognised in the financial statements are as follows:

 i) property, plant and equipment

   The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is 

derived after estimating the asset’s expected useful life 

and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The 

depreciation method, useful lives and residual values of 

Company’s assets are estimated by management at the 

time the asset is acquired and reviewed during each 

financial year.

 ii) employee Benefit plans

   Employee defined benefit plans and long term 

benefit plans are measured on the basis of actuarial 

assumptions. However, any changes in these 

assumptions may have impact on the reported amount 

of obligation and expenses.

B. Significant Accounting policies

a) property, plant and equipment

  Property, plant and equipment are stated in the Balance Sheet 

at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment losses, if any. Cost includes purchase price (net 

of reimbursable taxes), attributable expenditure incurred in 

bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended 

use and cost of borrowing till the date of capitalisation in the 

case of assets involving material investment and substantial 

lead time.

  Depreciation is provided on Straight Line Method in respect 

of	assets	situated	at	Bhilai,	Jeedimetla	(API),	Corporate	Office	

and	 Vizag	 Units	 and	 on	 Written	 down	 value	 method	 in	

respect	 of	 assets	 situated	 at	 Kazipally	 Unit,	 by	 considering	

the useful life of the assets as specified in Schedule II of the 

Companies Act, 2013.
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  Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values 

are reviewed in each financial year and changes, if any, are 

accounted for prospectively. Leased assets are depreciated 

over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives 

unless it is reasonably certain that the Company will obtain 

ownership by the end of the lease term. Freehold land is not 

depreciated.

b) Intangible Assets

  Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial 

recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible 

assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation 

and accumulated impairment losses.

  Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the 

useful economic life, reviewed regularly, and are assessed 

for impairment whenever there is an indication that the 

intangible asset may be impaired.

  Expenditure on research activities, if any, is recognised in 

profit or loss as incurred. Expenditure on development 

activities, if any, is capitalised only if the expenditure can be 

measured reliably, the product or process is technically and 

commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable 

and the company intends to and has sufficient resources to 

complete development and to use or sell the asset.

c) leases

  The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a 

lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of a 

lease requires significant judgment. A contract is, or contains, 

a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use 

of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for 

consideration. The determination of whether an arrangement 

is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the 

arrangement at the inception of the lease.

  At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company 

recognises	a	right-of-use	asset	(“ROU”)	and	a	corresponding	

lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, 

except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-

term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term 

and low value leases, the Company recognises the lease 

payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis 

over the term of the lease.

  The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which 

comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for 

any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement 

date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease 

incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less 

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

  Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement 

date on a straight-line basis over the lease term and useful 

life of the underlying asset. The lease liability is initially 

measured at amortised cost at the present value of the 

future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted 

using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily 

determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the 

country	of	domicile	of	 these	 leases.	Lease	 liability	and	ROU	

asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet.

d) Investments in Subsidiaries

  Investments in subsidiaries are accounted at cost less 

impairment losses, if any. If the intention of the management 

is to dispose the investment in near future, it is classified as 

held for sale and measured at lower of its carrying amount 

and fair value less costs to sell.

e) Financial Instruments

 Financial instruments are classified as:

	 •	 	Financial	assets,	measured	at	(a)	amortised	cost	and	(b)	

fair value through Profit and Loss (“FVTPL”)

	 •	 	Financial	liabilities	are	carried	at	amortised	cost.

  All financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. 

Transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of 

the financial asset (other than financial assets recorded at fair 

value through profit or loss) are included in the fair value of 

the financial assets.

 Subsequently, financial assets are measured as follows:

 a) Amortised Cost

   A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if 

both of the following conditions are met:

	 	 •	 	the	financial	asset	is	held	within	a	business	model	

whose objective is to hold financial assets in order 

to collect contractual cash flows; and

	 	 •	 	the	 contractual	 terms	of	 the	 financial	 asset	 give	

rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payment of principal and interest on the principal 

amount outstanding.

   Financial assets under this category are measured 

initially at fair value plus transaction costs and 

subsequently carried at amortised cost using the 

effective interest method, less any impairment loss.

 b) Fair Value through profit and loss Account

   Financial instruments classified in this category are 

subsequently carried at fair value with changes 

recorded in the statement of profit or loss. Directly 

attributable transaction costs are recognised in Profit 

and Loss account as incurred.

   Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at 

amortised cost using effective interest method.
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f) derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

 Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

  Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised 

at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is 

entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. 

Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value 

is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is 

negative.

  The purchase contracts that meet the definition of a 

derivative under Ind AS 109 are recognised in the statement 

of profit and loss. Commodity contracts that are entered 

into and continue to be held for the purpose of the receipt 

or delivery of a non-financial item in accordance with the 

Company’s expected purchase, sale or usage requirements 

are held at cost.

  Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of 

derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except for the 

effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised 

in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge 

item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if 

a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the 

recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

  For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified 

as:

 (i)  Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to 

changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability 

or an unrecognised firm commitment.

 (ii)  Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to 

variability in cash flows that is either attributable to 

a particular risk associated with a recognised asset 

or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction 

or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm 

commitment.

 (iii)  Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation.

  Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are 

accounted for, as described below:

 (i) Fair value hedges

   The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument 

is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as 

finance costs. The change in the fair value of the 

hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded 

as part of the carrying value of the hedged item and is 

also recognised in the statement of profit and loss as 

finance costs.

   For fair value hedges relating to items carried at 

amortised cost, any adjustment to carrying value is 

amortised through profit or loss over the remaining term 

of the hedge using the EIR method. EIR amortisation 

may begin as soon as an adjustment exists and no later 

than when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for 

changes in its fair value attributable to the risk being 

hedged.

   If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised 

fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated 

as a hedged item, the subsequent cumulative change 

in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable 

to the hedged risk is recognised as an asset or liability 

with a corresponding gain or loss recognised in profit  

and loss.

 (ii) Cash flow hedges

   The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging 

instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash flow hedge 

reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised 

immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

   The ineffective portion relating to foreign currency 

contracts is recognised in finance costs and the 

ineffective portion relating to commodity contracts is 

recognised in other income or expenses.

   Amounts recognised as OCI are transferred to profit or 

loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, 

such as when the hedged financial income or financial 

expense is recognised or when a forecast sale occurs. 

When the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial 

asset or nonfinancial liability, the amounts recognised 

as OCI are transferred to the initial carrying amount of 

the non-financial asset or liability.

   If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated 

or exercised without replacement or rollover (as part of 

the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge 

is revoked, or when the hedge no longer meets the 

criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or 

loss previously recognised in OCI remains separately 

in equity until the forecast transaction occurs or the 

foreign currency firm commitment is met.

g) Impairment of Assets

 a) non-Financial Assets

   The carrying amount of cash generating units is 

reviewed at each reporting date where there is any 

indication of impairment. An impairment loss is 

recognised in the statement of profit and loss where 

the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount 

of the cash generating units. Recoverable amount is the 

higher of cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs of 

disposal and its value in use.
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   An impairment loss is reversed if there has been 
a change in the estimates used to determine the 
recoverable amount.

 b) Financial Assets

   The loss allowance in respect of trade receivables is 
at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. 
The loss allowance in respect of all other financial 
assets is measured at an amount equal to lifetime 
expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial 
instrument has increased significantly since initial 
recognition. Otherwise, the loss allowance is measured 
at an amount equal to 12 month expected credit losses.

h) Inventories

  Inventories are valued at lower of cost, determined on First-
in-First-Out (FIFO) basis, or net realisable value. Inventories 
comprise of raw materials, stores, spares & consumables 
and finished goods. Cost of Inventories comprises all cost 
of purchase (net of reimbursable taxes), cost of conversion 
and other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their 
present location and condition.

  Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in 
the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the 
sale.

i) revenue recognition

  Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that 
the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the 
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the 
payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair 
value of the consideration received or receivable, net of 
returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates 
after taking into account contractually defined terms of 
payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of 
the government.

  The Company recognises revenue in accordance with Ind 
AS115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. The core 
principle of the standard is that an entity should recognise 
revenue to depict the transfer of control of promised goods 
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the 
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in 
exchange for those goods or services.

  Other income is comprised primarily of interest income, 
dividend income, gain/loss on investments and exchange 
gain / loss on forward and options contracts and on 
translation of other assets and liabilities. Interest income 
is recognised using the effective interest method. Claims 
for export incentives/ duty drawbacks, duty refunds and 
insurance are accounted when the right to receive payment 
is established.

j) provisions

  Provisions are recognised if, as a result of a past event, the 

Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that 

can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow 

of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

  Where the effect of time value of money is material, provisions 

are determined and maintained by discounting the expected 

future cash flows, wherever applicable.

k) Borrowing Costs

  Borrowing costs attributable to a qualifying asset are 

capitalised as a part of the cost of such assets and other 

borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year of 

incurrence.

l) employee Benefits

  The Company’s contribution to Provident and Pension fund 

for the employees is covered under defined contribution plan 

and is recognised as employee benefit expense in statement 

of profit and loss in the periods during which services are 

rendered by employees.

  The Company’s Gratuity scheme for its employees is a defined 

benefit retirement benefit plan. The liability recognised in the 

balance sheet in respect of defined benefit plan is the present 

value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the 

reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined 

benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent 

actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

 Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

	 •	 service	cost

	 •	 net	interest	expense	or	income;	and

	 •	 re-measurement

  The Company presents the first two components of defined 

benefit costs in profit and loss in the line item ‘Employee 

benefit expenses’.

  Re-measurements comprising actuarial gains and losses 

as well as the difference between the return on plan 

assets and the amounts included in net interest on the 

net defined benefits liability (asset) are recognised in other 

comprehensive income, net of income tax.

  Other long-term employee benefits comprise of leave 

encashment which is provided for based on the actuarial 

valuation carried out as at the end of the year. Liability is 

measured at the present value of the estimated future cash 

outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect 

of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. 

Re-measurements and other expenses related to long term 

benefit plans are recognised in statement of profit and loss.
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m) Foreign Currency transactions and balances

  Transactions in foreign currency are translated into the 

respective functional currencies using the exchange rates 

prevailing at the dates of the respective transactions. Foreign 

exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of 

such transactions and from the translation at the exchange 

rates prevailing at reporting date of monetary assets and 

liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised 

in the statement of profit and loss and reported within 

foreign exchange gains / losses.

  Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign 

currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the 

exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction.

n) earnings per Share

  Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit 

or loss after tax by the weighted average number of equity 

shares outstanding during the year including any potential 

dilution resulting in issue of additional equity shares based 

on contractual terms and obligations. Diluted earnings per 

share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax, as 

adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense 

or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the 

dilutive potential equity shares, with the weighted average 

number of equity shares considered for deriving basic 

earnings per share.

o) Statement of Cash Flows

  Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, 

whereby profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of 

transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals 

of past or future cash receipts or payments. Cash flows for 

the year are classified by operating, investing and financing 

activities.

p) taxes on Income

  Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax 

expense is recognised in the statement of profit and loss 

except to the extent it relates to items directly recognised in 

equity or in other comprehensive income.

 i. Current income tax

   Current income tax for the current and prior periods 

are measured at the amount expected to be recovered 

from or paid to the taxation authorities based on the 

taxable income for the period.

   The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the current 

tax amount are those that are enacted or substantively 

enacted by the reporting date and applicable for the 

period. The Company offsets current tax assets and 

current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable 

right to set off the recognised amounts and where it 

intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the 

asset and liability simultaneously.

 ii. deferred income tax

   Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable 

temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are 

recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the 

carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax 

losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent 

that it is probable that taxable profit will be available 

against which the deductible temporary differences, 

and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused 

tax losses can be utilised.

   The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed 

at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that 

it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will 

be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset 

to	be	utilised.	Unrecognised	deferred	tax	assets	are	re	

assessed at each reporting date and are recognised 

to the extent that it has become probable that future 

taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be 

recovered.

   Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the 

tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when 

the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based 

on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 

substantively enacted at the reporting date.

   Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit 

or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in 

other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax 

items are recognised in correlation to the underlying 

transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

   Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset 

if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax 

assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred 

taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same 

taxation authority.
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Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule for the year ending 31st March, 2022 & 31st March, 2021

` in Lakhs
CwIp  Amount in CwIp for a period of  total 

less than  
1 Year

1-2 years 2-3 years More  
than 3 years

As on 31st March, 2022
Projects in Process  254.85  254.85 
Projects temporarily suspended  -  -  -  -  - 
As on 31st March, 2021
Projects in Process  290.15  -  -  -  290.15 
Projects temporarily suspended  -  -  -  -  - 

note 3 non Current FInAnCIAl ASSetS - InVeStMentS

` in Lakhs

particulars As at  
31st March, 2022

As at  
31st March, 2021

1. non trade Investments - unquoted (At Cost)
Investment in equity Instruments of Subsidiary Companies
a. 8,72,74,950 (8,72,74,950) Equity Shares of face value of ` 10/-  each in 188.00 188.00

Vishnu Barium Private Limited *

b. Amortisation Cost of Interest Free Advance given to Subsidiary 388.08 388.08

c. 1,000 (1,000)  Equity Shares of 1 Rand /-  each in Vishnu  South Africa Pty Limited 0.05 0.05

2. non trade Investments - unquoted (At Fair Value)
a.  Equity Shares in Koganti Power Limited  0.00 0.00

60,000 (60,000) Nos. each ` 10/- Fully paid up, acquired at a cost of ` 6,00,000  

(` 6,00,000)-Net of impairment recognised.

b. Equity Shares in Sireen Drugs Private Limited 0.00 0.00

1,000 (1,000) Nos. each ` 10/- Fully paid up, acquired at a cost of ` 10,000 

(`10,000) - Net of impairment recognised.

3. Investments in Mutual Funds - Quoted (At fair value)
a. LMRG-Union	 Large	 &	Midcap	 Fund	 Regular	 Plan	 -	 Growth	 -	 49,900	 (49,990)	

Units,	Cost	` 5,00,000 (` 5,00,000)

8.01 6.53

b. UBI	 -Union	 Balanced	 advantage	 fund	 regular	 plan	 -	 growth-	 60,339	 (60,339)	

Units,	Cost	` 6,35,373 (` 6,35,373)

9.00 8.41

c. UBI-Union	 Equity	 Savings	 Fund	 Regular	 Plan	 -	 19,990	 (19,990)	 Units,	 

Cost ` 1,99,990 (` 1,99,990)

2.64 2.48

d. Nippon (Reliance) Balanced Advantage Fund - Growth Plan - 2,352 (2,352) 

Units,	Cost	` 2,00,000 (` 2,00,000)

2.84 2.57

e. SBI	Life	Smart	Wealth	Builder	-	Nil	(45,085.23)	Units,	Cost	` Nil (` 7,00,000)  - 8.70

598.62 604.82

disclosures:
` in Lakhs

As at  
31st March, 2022

As at  
31st March, 2021

Aggregate amount of quoted investments at cost 15.35 22.35
Aggregate amount of market value of quoted investments 22.49 28.69
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments * 576.13 576.13
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments 6.10 6.10

* The amount of fair value adjustment on account of interest free loan given to subsidaty is included in cost of investment 
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note 4 non Current FInAnCIAl ASSetS - loAnS

` in Lakhs

As at  
31st March, 2022

As at  
31st March, 2021

unsecured, Considered good:

Loan to Subsidiary (at amortised cost) 951.59 868.00

951.59 868.00

note 5 otHer non-Current ASSetS

` in Lakhs

As at  
31st March, 2022

As at  
31st March, 2021

a. Capital Advances 337.80 218.28

b. Deposits 584.53 579.83

c. CSR Expenses - Excess spent 190.19  -   

1,112.52 798.11

note 6 InVentorIeS

` in Lakhs

As at  
31st March, 2022

As at  
31st March, 2021

Valued at Cost or net realisable Value, whichever is lower

a. Raw Materials 2,891.17 4,195.87

b. Work-in-progress 2,649.79 3,409.87

c. Finished Goods 7,336.46 8,217.61

d. Stores, Spares & Packing 2,165.08 1,961.28

Provision for obsolescence of non-moving stores (44.55)  (31.26)

2,120.53 1,930.02

14,997.95 17,753.37

note 7 Current FInAnCIAl ASSetS - InVeStMentS

` in Lakhs

As at  
31st March, 2022

As at  
31st March, 2021

a. UBI-Union	Corporate	Bond	Fund	Regular	plan	-	8,02,715	(Nil)	Units,	Cost	̀  1,00,00,000 

(` Nil)

100.40  -   

100.40  -   

disclosures:

` in Lakhs

As at  
31st March, 2022

As at  
31st March, 2021

Aggregate amount of quoted investments at cost  100.00  -   

Aggregate amount of market value of quoted investments  100.40  -   

Investment	in	UBI	-	Union	corporate	bond	fund	-	regular	plan	(8,02,715)	units	is	under	lien	with	union	bank	of	india	against	BG/LC	issued
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note 8 Current FInAnCIAl ASSetS -trAde reCeIVABleS

` in Lakhs

As at  
31st March, 2022

As at  
31st March, 2021

a. Trade Receivables Considered Good; secured  -    -   

b. Trade	Receivables	Considered	Good;	Unsecured 17,084.51 10,412.91

c. Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk  -    -   

d. Trade Receivables - Credit impaired  -    -   

Less:  Allowance for expected credit losses - -

17,084.51 10,412.91

trade receivables ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2022

` in Lakhs

outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment

less than 
6 months*

6 months 
to 1year

1year to  
2 years

2 years to  
3 years

More than  
3 years

total

Undisputed	trade	receivables

a. Considered good 16,867.35  81.10  79.94  -  56.12 17,084.51

b. which have significant increase in credit risk  -  -  -  -  -  - 

c. Credit impaired  -  -  -  -  -  - 

trade receivables ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2021

` in Lakhs

outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment

less than 
6 months*

6 months 
to 1year

1year to  
2 years

2 years to  
3 years

More than  
3 years

total

Undisputed	trade	receivables	

a. Considered good 9,895.35  478.41  11.84 27.31  - 10,412.91

b. which have significant increase in credit risk  -  -  -  -  -  - 

c. Credit impaired  -  -  -  -  -  - 

*Includes amounts not yet due for payment

note 9 Current FInAnCIAl ASSetS - CASH And CASH eQuIVAlentS

` in Lakhs

As at  
31st March, 2022

As at  
31st March, 2021

a. Cash on Hand 4.22 3.39

b. Cheques, drafts on hand  -    -   

c. Balances with Banks 7.12 8.03

d. Others  -    -   

11.34 11.42
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note 10 Current FInAnCIAl ASSetS - BAnK BAlAnCeS otHer tHAn ABoVe

` in Lakhs

As at  
31st March, 2022

As at  
31st March, 2021

other Bank Balances

a. Margin Money Deposit in Banks against LCs & BGs 1,239.71 923.97

b. Unpaid	Dividend	Accounts 10.00 12.53

c. Bank deposits with original maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months  -  - 

1,249.71 936.50

note 11 Current FInAnCIAl ASSetS - otHer FInAnCIAl ASSetS

` in Lakhs

As at  
31st March, 2022

As at  
31st March, 2021

a. Salary and other Advances recoverable in cash or kind 28.92 27.35

b. Interest Receivable 27.47 31.30

c. Derivative Financial Instruments - Asset  -   0.12

56.39 58.77

note 12 otHer Current ASSetS

` in Lakhs

As at  
31st March, 2022

As at  
31st March, 2021

a. Advances to Suppliers 1,556.09 1,134.46

b. Balances with Government Authorities 672.73 1,021.15

c. Prepaid Expenses 506.49 74.68

d. CSR Expenses - Excess spent 90.05  -   

2,825.36 2,230.29

note 13 ASSetS ClASSIFIed AS Held For SAle

` in Lakhs

As at  
31st March, 2022

As at  
31st March, 2021

Assets classified as held for sale 190.00  -   

190.00  -   

disclosures:

The Company intends to dispose off freehold land, it no longer utilises in the next 12 months. No impairment loss have been recognised on 

reclassification of such assets as held for sale, as the Company expects that the fair value less costs to sell is higher than the related carrying 

value.
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note 14 eQuItY SHAre CApItAl

` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
Authorised Share Capital

1,50,00,000 of equity shares of `10 par value 1,500.00 1,500.00
1,500.00 1,500.00

Issued, Subscribed and Fully paid-up Capital
At the beginning of the year
1,19,46,020 of equity shares of `10 par value 1,194.60 1,194.60
At the end of the year
1,19,46,020 of equity shares of `10 par value 1,194.60 1,194.60

1,194.60 1,194.60

disclosures:

1.  The Company has only one class of equity shares at a par value of ̀  10. All the equity shares carry equal rights and obligations including 

for dividend and with respect to voting rights.

2. Names of shareholders holding more than 5% of the Share capital and their shareholding.

 eQuItY SHAreS

As at  
31st March, 2022

As at  
31st March, 2021

1 Sri. Ch. Krishna Murthy - No. of Shares  62,19,790  62,19,790 
     - % held 52.07% 52.07%

2 Smt. Ch. Manjula  - No. of Shares  16,14,048  16,14,048 
     - % held 13.51% 13.51%

3 Sri. Ch. Siddartha  - No. of Shares  11,25,668  11,25,668 
     - % held 9.42% 9.42%

3. promoters’ Shareholding

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year % change during 
the yearS. no. name of the promoter no of shares % of total shares

1 Sri. Ch. Krishna Murthy 6,219,790 52.07% Nil
2 Smt. Ch. Manjula 1,614,048 13.51% Nil
3 Sri. Ch. Siddartha 1,125,668 9.42% Nil

note 16 non-Current FInAnCIAl lIABIlItIeS - BorrowIngS

` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
A. Secured:
1. Term Loans:

 From Banks 6,933.56 7,281.80
2. Long Term Maturities of Finance Lease Obligations:

 From Banks 113.05 164.46
B. unsecured:
1. Loans and Advances from Related Parties:

 Loans from promoter directors (at amortised cost) 2,699.79 2,231.33
 Loan from Subsidiary  -   989.00

2. Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares 7,663.75 7,663.75
 7,66,37,500, 7% cumulative redeemable preference shares of ` 10 each

3 Inter Corporate Deposits  -   101.85
17,410.15 18,432.19
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disclosures:
A. Secured
 (i) term loans from Banks

S. 
no.

name of the 
lender

period of 
maturity

loan 
amount 

outstanding

no. of 
instalments 
outstanding

rate of 
Interest

overdue 
amount 

and period

Security

1 State Bank of India 

(FCTL) 

Nov-2023 1,460.71 7 SOFR Plus 

3% p.a.

- Term Loans from banks represents loans from 

Consortium of Bankers - State Bank of India, 

Indian	Overseas	Bank	and	Union	Bank	of	India.	

Term Loans are secured by charge on the assets 

acquired out of the term loan and charge on 

entire existing movable/immovable assets 

of the Company. The above loans are further 

secured by personal guarantee of promoter 

directors and others. All the above securities 

rank in all respects pari passu amongst the 

consortium of bankers.

2 Union	Bank	of	

India (TL-III)

Feb-2024 500.78 8 1 Yr MCLR 

Plus 3% p.a.

-

3 Union	Bank	of	

India (e-AB - FCTL ) 

Mar-2024 1,281.84 8 SOFR Plus 

3.31% p.a.

-

4 Union	Bank	of	

India (FCTL)

Feb-2024 862.42 8 SOFR Plus 

3.31% p.a.

-

5 State Bank of India 

(ECLGS 2.0)

Jan-2026 1,447.39 46 6 Months 

MCLR Plus 

1% p.a.

-

6 State Bank of India 

(ECLGS 2.0 Ext)

Nov-2027 875.87 48 6 Months 

MCLR Plus 

1% p.a.

-

7 Union	Bank	of	

India (ECLGS 2.0)

Nov-2025 1,342.58 44 1 Yr MCLR 

Plus 0.60% 

p.a.

- For Emergency Credit Line Guarantee 

System -2 (ECLGS-2) term loans availed from 

Consortium of Bankers - State Bank of India, 

Indian	Overseas	Bank	and	Union	Bank	of	India.	

Term Loans are secured by 2nd charge on the 

current assets and fixed assets of the comapny. 

The above loans are further secured by 

personal guarantee of promoter directors and 

their personal assets i.e. land, plots, building 

and shares etc.,. All the above securities rank in 

all respects pari passu amongst the consortium 

of bankers. 

8 Union	Bank	of	

India (ECLGS 2.0 

Ext)

Nov-2027 1,328.00 48 1 Yr MCLR 

Plus 0.60% 

p.a.

-

9 Indian Overseas 

Bank (ECLGS 2.0)

Dec-2025 445.31 45 1 Yr MCLR 

Plus 1% p.a.

-

10 Indian Overseas 

Bank (ECLGS 2.0 

Ext)

Nov-2027 237.00 48 1 Yr MCLR 

Plus 1% p.a.

-

 (ii) Hire purchase loans

   The hire purchase loans are secured against the assets purchased out of those loans. The net carrying amount of assets acquired 

on hire purchase as on 31st March, 2022 is ` 229.66 Lakhs (31st March, 2021: ` 210.62 Lakhs). The Company had capitalised the 

assets at their fair value considering that the hire purchase agreements are in the nature of Finance Lease. The details are as 

follows:-

` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
Minimum lease payments outstanding

Within one Year 126.91 105.74
Later than one year and not later than five years 116.37 176.23

Future Interest on outstanding lease payments
Within one Year 15.76 17.06
Later than one year and not later than five years 3.31 11.77

present Value of Minimum lease payments
Within one Year 111.15 88.67
Later than one year and not later than five years 113.05 164.46
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B) unsecured loans:
 1 loans from promoter directors:
   The loans from promoter Directors are interest-free and unsecured in nature. There are no specified terms and conditions, 

however the same are amortised using effective interest rate.

 2 loan from Subsidiary
  The loan from Subsidiary carries Interest rate of 7% (7%) per annum.

C) Cumulative redeemable preference Shares

  The Company has issued and allotted 7,66,37,500 7% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (CRPS) of face value of ` 10/- each 

aggregating ` 76,63,75,000/- to the existing 7% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shareholders in lieu of their existing 4,75,00,000 7% 

Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of face value of ` 10/- each aggregating ` 47,50,00,000/- and the outstanding accumulated 

dividend thereon up to 31st March, 2017 amounting to ` 29,13,75,000. The redemption tenure has also been extended from 10 to 15 years 

and are now redeemable by 31-03-2033. During the year, preference dividend @ 1% has provided amounting ` 76,63,750/- and preference 

shareholders has given their consent to forego 6% preference dividend amounting ` 4,59,82,500/- for the financial year 2021-22

S. 
no.

name of Shareholder As at  
31st March, 2022

As at  
31st March, 2021

1 Sri. Ch. Krishna Murthy - No of Shares  7,11,21,750  7,11,21,750 
     - % held  92.80  92.80 

2 Smt. Ch. Manjula  - No of Shares  52,71,250  52,71,250 
     - % held  6.88  6.88 

3 Sri. Ch. Siddartha  - No of Shares  2,44,500  2,44,500 
     - % held  0.32  0.32 

note 17 leASe lIABIlItIeS

` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
a. Lease	liabilities	on	ROU	assets 22.04  -   

22.04  -   

note 18 non-Current proVISIonS

` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
Provision for Employee Benefits (Net of Fund Assets) 145.13 245.89

145.13 245.89

note 19 deFerred tAX lIABIlItIeS (net)

` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
1. deferred tax liability

Property, Plant and Equipment 4,051.74 3,750.08
2. deferred tax Assets

Provisions allowable on payment basis 60.84 79.46
Net Deferred Tax Liability 3,990.90 3,670.62

disclosures:

The Company has provided for Deferred Tax in accordance with the Accounting Standard on “Income Taxes” (IND AS 12) issued by the 

institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The details of deferred tax assets and liabities of the Company as on the date of Balance Sheet 

are as given above:
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The gross movement in the deferred income tax account for the financilal years ended 31st March, 2022 and 31st March, 2021 is as follows

` in Lakhs

As at  
31st March, 2022

As at  
31st March, 2021

a. Net deferred tax liability at the beginning 3,670.62 3,962.86

b. Accelerated depreciation for the tax purposes 297.57 228.67

c. Provisions allowable on payment basis 36.47 14.91

d. Temporary differences on ther comprensive income  (13.76) 6.83

e. Deferred tax liability (net) reversal due to new tax rate adoption  -  (1,328.51)

f. MAT credit entilement  - 785.86

g. net deferred tax liability at the end 3990.90 3670.62
 

note 20 otHer non-Current  lIABIlItIeS

` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
Security Deposits 1,523.76 3,338.22

1,523.76 3,338.22

note 21 Current FInAnCIAl lIABIlItIeS - BorrowIngS

` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
A. Secured:
a. Working capital - Cash Credit 10,584.20 11,080.60
B. unsecured: 
a. Loans from Promoter Directors 6.13 160.15
b. Loan from Subsidiary  -   200.00
c. Inter Corporate Loans 329.01 327.55
d. Other Short Term obligations  -   195.51
Current maturities of long term debt 2,844.37 2,462.68
Current maturities of finance lease obligations 111.15 88.67

13,874.86 14,515.16

disclosures:

A) Secured loans:

 1  The Rate of interest for loans repayable on demand from consortium of banks ranges from MCLR+2.75% to +5.00%. The rate of 

Interest on convertible FCNRB demand loan ranges from Libor+2.50% to 4.75% per annum.

 2 Interest rate for the Bill Discounting facility ranges from 6.65% to 7.50%

 3 Security:

	 	 	Working	Capital	Loans	from	Consortium	Bankers	consisting	of	State	Bank	of	India,	Union	Bank	of	India,	Indian	Overseas	Bank	and	

Andhra Bank are secured by first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation of inventories, book debts and other current assets 

of the Company, and second pari passu charge on the fixed assets of the Company. The promoter directors have extended their 

personal assets as securities i.e. land, plots, buildings and shares etc.,

 4 Guarantees:

  All the above loans are guaranteed by the Promoter Directors.

B) unsecured loans:

  Loans from Promoter Directors disclosed here are short term in nature. There are no specified terms and conditions.

noteS to tHe StAndAlone FInAnCIAl StAteMentS 
For tHe YeAr ended 31St MArCH, 2022 (Contd.)
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note 22 Current FInAnCIAl lIABIlItIeS - trAde pAYABleS

` in Lakhs

As at  
31st March, 2022

As at  
31st March, 2021

Trade payables - Due to Micro Small and Medium Enterprises 0.18 20.56

Trade payables - Other than Micro Small and Medium Enterprises 14,250.02 12,011.94

Trade payables - Related parties 82.34 39.72

14,332.54 12,072.22

disclosures:

 The principal amount remaining unpaid as at 31st March, 2022 in respect of enterprises covered under the Micro, Small and 

Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED) is ` 0.09 Lakhs (31st March, 2021 ` 16.24 Lakhs). The interest amount 

computed based on the provisions under Section 16 of the MSMED is ` 0.08 Lakhs (31st March, 2021 ` 4.32 Lakhs)

 The list of undertakings covered under MSMED was determined by the Company on the basis of information available with it after getting 

confirmation from Suppliers.

trade paybles ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2022

` in Lakhs

outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment

less than 1 
year*

1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than 3 
years

total

Undisputed	trade	payables

a. MSME  -    -    0.18  -   0.18

b. Others 13,782.47 542.18 7.71  -   14,332.36

c. Disputed dues - MSME  -    -    -    -    -   

d. Disputed dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -   

trade paybles ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2021

` in Lakhs

outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment

less than 1 
year*

1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than  
3 years

total

Undisputed	trade	payables

a. MSME  -    20.56  -   20.56

b. Others 11,732.57 310.43 6.59  2.07 12,051.66

c. Disputed dues - MSME  -    -    -    -    -   

d. Disputed dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -   

*Includes amounts not yet due for payment

note 23 leASe lIABIlItIeS

` in Lakhs

As at  
31st March, 2022

As at  
31st March, 2021

Lease	liabilities	on	ROU	assets 15.96  -   

15.96  -   

noteS to tHe StAndAlone FInAnCIAl StAteMentS 
For tHe YeAr ended 31St MArCH, 2022 (Contd.)
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noteS to tHe StAndAlone FInAnCIAl StAteMentS 
For tHe YeAr ended 31St MArCH, 2022 (Contd.)

note 24 otHer Current FInAnCIAl lIABIlItIeS

` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
Cumulative	Unpaid	Preference	Dividend 76.64 332.50
Dividend Distribution Tax on Preference Dividend  -   676.61
Interest on Dividend Distribution Tax Payable  -   238.99
Interest Payable to Subsidiary 356.93 314.67
Interest Payable to others 0.49  -   
Unclaimed	dividends 10.00 12.53
Derivative Liability 38.88 45.15

482.94 1,620.45

note 25 otHer Current lIABIlItIeS

` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
Advance from Customers 1,063.46 228.32
Advance from Subsidiary against Sales 196.87 73.83
Creditors for Capital Expenditure 200.24 213.35
Capital Advances Received (Against Sale of Assets) 410.00 210.00
Advance from others 3.52 3.76
Statutory dues Payable 215.67 265.87

2,089.76 995.13

note 26 Current proVISIonS

` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
Provision for Employee Benefits (Net of Fund Assets) 20.31 44.42

20.31 44.42

note 27 Current tAX lIABIlItIeS

` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
Provision for Income Tax
 Provision for Tax (Net of TDS) 1,429.68 280.90

1,429.68 280.90
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noteS to tHe StAndAlone FInAnCIAl StAteMentS 
For tHe YeAr ended 31St MArCH, 2022 (Contd.)

note 28 reVenue FroM operAtIonS

` in Lakhs

For the year ended 
31st March, 2022

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

1. Sale of Products 90,446.40 56,757.82

2. Other Operating Revenues

a. Sale of Scrap 158.22 138.44

b. Testing Charges 44.25 53.49

c. Export Incentives 19.83 360.48

222.30 552.41
90,668.70 57,310.23

note 29 otHer InCoMe

` in Lakhs

For the year ended 
31st March, 2022

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

1. Interest Income

a. Interest Income on bank and other deposits 62.06 74.39

b. Amortised Interest on Deposits/Loans 201.93 166.03

2. Other Non-Operating Income

a. Insurance Claim Received 17.53 12.72

b. Profit on Sale of Investments 3.64 0.77

c. Net Gain on Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions 243.79  - 

d. Other Income 129.30 123.66

e. Fair value gain / (Loss) on Investments 1.21 7.19

f. Profit on Sale of property, plant and equipment 0.50 13.98

659.96 398.74

note  30 CoSt oF MAterIAl ConSuMed

` in Lakhs

For the year ended 
31st March, 2022

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

Opening Stock 4,195.87 4,790.75

Add: Purchase 33,967.89 22,831.38

Total 38,163.76 27,622.13
Less: Closing Stock 2,891.17 4,195.87

35,272.59 23,426.26

note  31 CoSt oF ConSuMABleS

` in Lakhs

For the year ended 
31st March, 2022

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

Consumption of Petcoke 2,971.32 1,313.65

Consumption of Furnace Oil 3,438.56 2,384.68

Consumption of Husk 655.12 451.40

Consumption of Coal 5,682.27 2,681.44

Consumption of LDO/Kerosene/Diesel 712.58 544.74

13,459.85 7,375.91
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noteS to tHe StAndAlone FInAnCIAl StAteMentS 
For tHe YeAr ended 31St MArCH, 2022 (Contd.)

note 32 CHAngeS In InVentorIeS oF FInISHed goodS,worK-In-progreSS And StoCK-In-trAde

` in Lakhs
For the year ended 

31st March, 2022
For the year ended 

31st March, 2021
1. Finished Goods

a. Opening Stock: 8,217.61 9,439.46
b. Closing Stock: 7,336.46 8,217.61

881.15 1,221.85
2. Work-in-progress

a. Opening Stock: 3,409.87 3,292.50
b. Closing Stock: 2,649.79 3,409.87

760.08  (117.37)
Total Decrease / (Increase) 1,641.22 1,104.48

note 33 eMploYee BeneFItS eXpenSe

` in Lakhs
For the year ended 

31st March, 2022
For the year ended 

31st March, 2021
Salaries & Wages 2,848.01 2,282.68
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 178.58 155.75
Staff Welfare Expenses 171.78 188.76

3,198.37 2,627.19

note 34 FInAnCe CoStS

` in Lakhs
For the year ended 

31st March, 2022
For the year ended 

31st March, 2021
Interest Expense 1,458.63 1,754.01
Interest on Others 235.14 211.31
Unwinding	of	Interest/Discount	on	Financial	Instruments 343.58 271.06
Other Borrowing Costs 338.01 236.55
Preference Dividend 76.64  - 

2,452.00 2,472.93

note 35 power CoSt

` in Lakhs
For the year ended 

31st March, 2022
For the year ended 

31st March, 2021
Power Charges 3,623.59 2,479.23

3,623.59 2,479.23

note 36 MAnuFACturIng eXpenSeS

` in Lakhs
For the year ended 

31st March, 2022
For the year ended 

31st March, 2021
Equipment Hire Charges 693.40 640.66
Consumption of Stores & Spares 1,642.86 1,629.18
Repairs & Maintenance - Buildings 221.36 113.01
Repairs & Maintenance - P & M 802.38 664.80
Labour costs 1,416.06 717.51
Factory/Godown Maintenance 608.39 424.51
Effluent Disposal Expenses 2,061.48 1,810.51
Goods Movement Charges 691.44 655.48

8,137.37 6,655.66
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noteS to tHe StAndAlone FInAnCIAl StAteMentS 
For tHe YeAr ended 31St MArCH, 2022 (Contd.)

note 37 SellIng & AdMInIStrAtIVe eXpenSeS

` in Lakhs
For the year ended 

31st March, 2022
For the year ended 

31st March, 2021
Labour costs 43.22 29.22
Insurance 280.81 253.10
Packing Charges 2,362.38 1,705.09
Shipping & forwarding Charges 6,069.06 3,389.98
Other Selling Cost 360.03 313.00
Rent 719.31 735.78
Rates & Taxes 121.41 97.75
Bank Charges 125.09 113.93
Net Loss on Foreign Currency Transaction & Translation  - 119.39
Travelling, Vehicle Maintenance & Conveyance 338.97 194.19
Professional & Consultancy Charges 284.58 207.91
Security Charges 89.11 79.03
Miscellaneous Expenses 367.35 272.78

11,161.32 7,511.15

disclosures:
Payment to statutory auditors

` in Lakhs
For the year ended 

31st March, 2022
For the year ended 

31st March, 2021
The details of payment to statiutory auditors included in Professional & Consultancy 

charges above, are given below
a. As an auditor - Statutory audit fee  13.50  11.50 
b. For taxation matters & Tax audit fee  4.25  2.50 
c. For comapany law matters  -    -   
d. For other services  3.60  2.60 
e. For reimbursement of expenses  -    -   

 21.35  16.60 

note 38 CorporAte SoCIAl reSponSIBIlItY eXpenSeS

` in Lakhs
For the year ended 

31st March, 2022
For the year ended 

31st March, 2021
CSR Expenses 43.27 113.87

43.27 113.87
a. Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 43.27 35.51
b. Amount Spent during the year on the above 43.27 113.87
c. Shortfall at the end of the year - -
d. Total of previous year shortfall  -    -   
e. Reason for shortfall  Not Appliable  Not Appliable 
f. Nature of CSR activities  * note below  * note below 
g. Details of related party tranactions  -    -   

 Contribution to a trust controlled by the Company in relation to Company 322.86 113.00
(i) Applicable for the current year 43.27  -   
(ii) Excess amount contributed for future settoff 280.24  -   

h. where a povision is made with respect to laibility incurred-movement in the provision 

needs to be disclosed separately

 -    -   

* note:
Construction of old-age home through Krishna Foundation, a registered public charitable Trust
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note 39 tAX eXpenSeS

` in Lakhs

For the year ended 
31st March, 2022

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

a. Current tax 2053.12 386.74

b. Tax pertaining to earlier period  (5.26)  (136.84)

c. MAT reversal  -   785.86

d. Deferred tax prior period  -    (1,328.51)

e. Deferred tax 333.93 243.58

2,381.79  (49.17)

note 40 ContIngent lIABIlItIeS And CoMMItMentS (to tHe eXtent not proVIded For): 

` in Lakhs

As on  
31st March, 2022

As on  
31st March, 2021

Contingent liabilities:

a. Claims against company not acknowledged as debt

I.  Claims arising from disputes not acknowledged as debts-Sales Tax Act (against 

which Pre-deposit of ` 146.79 Lakhs made (P.Y. Pre-deposit ` 146.79 Lakhs)

187.51 187.51

II.  Claims arising from disputes not acknowledged as debts-Service Tax (against 

which Pre-deposit of ` 17.55 Lakhs made (P.Y. Pre-deposit ` 17.55 Lakhs)

652.62 652.62

Commitments:

a.  Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account 

and not provided for (Net of Advances)

143.51 289.30

note 41 SegMent reportIng:

 Operating segment is defined as a component of an entity which earns revenue, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by Chief 

Operating Decision Maker and for which discrete financial information is available. The Chairman and Managing Director of the Company, 

who regularly reviews the entity’s operating results to make decisions about allocation of resources and assessment of performance has 

been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker of the Company. As the Company is engaged in manufacture and sale of chemicals, 

the same has been identified as the sole operating segment.

details of revenue from manufacture and sale of chemicals by location of Customers:

` in Lakhs

geographic location 2021-22 2020-21

Domestic 47,194.47 28,760.21

Overseas 43,251.93 27,997.61

details of non-Current Assets

` in Lakhs

geographic location As on  
 31st March, 2022

As on 
31st March, 2021

Domestic 38,888.64 37,482.25

Overseas - -

 *Non-current assets exclude financial instruments, deferred tax assets, post-employment benefit assets and rights under insurance contracts.

noteS to tHe StAndAlone FInAnCIAl StAteMentS 
For tHe YeAr ended 31St MArCH, 2022 (Contd.)
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note 42 relAted pArtY dISCloSureS:

a) details of related parties:

Sl no name of the related party nature of relationship
1 Mr. Ch. Krishna Murthy Chairman and Managing Director, Key Managerial Personnel
2 Mrs. Ch. Manjula Non-Executive Director
3 Mr. Ch. Siddartha Joint	Managing	Director,	Key	Managerial	Personnel
4 Mr. P. Anjaneyulu Chief Financial Officer, Key Managerial Personnel
5 Mr. Kishore Kathri Company Secretary, Key Managerial Personnel
6 Mr. Pradip Saha Independent Director (retired on 9th  November, 2021)
7 Mr. Tirthankar Mitra Independent Director
8 Mr. Chetan Shah Independent Director
9 Mr. T.S Appa Rao Independent	Director	(retired	on	28th		June,	2020)
10 Mr. S. Saranathan Independent Director (retired on 2nd   February, 2021)
11 Mr. V. Vimalanand Independent Director (appointed on 31st  December, 2021)
12 M/s. Vasantha Transport Corporation Concern in which Key Managerial Personnel is interested
13 M/s. K.M.S. Infrastructure Private Limited Concern in which Key Managerial Personnel are interested
14 M/s. Vishnu Life Sciences Limited Concern in which Key Managerial Personnel is interested
15 M/s. Vishnu Barium Private Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary
16 M/s. Vishnu South Africa (Pty) Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary
17 M/s. Krishna Foundation Trust in which directors are Trustees and the company is the settlor

b) details of transactions:

` in Lakhs

nature of transaction Key Managerial 
personnel

 Subsidiary Concerns in which Key 
Managerial personnel 

are Interested

particulars 2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21

expenses      

Remuneration 189.48 157.18 - - - -

Rent 72.24 49.47 - - 10.00 19.50

Maintenance Charges - - - - - 8.76

Transportation Charges - - - - 1946.24 2152.44

Purchases - - 1006.24 372.79 225.82 -

Sales - - 129.56 241.79 111.73 -

Hire Charges 4.80 4.80 - - 119.25 112.40

Interest Expense - - 46.96 128.31 - -

Contract Service Charges - - - - - 37.58

Income

Interest Income recognised by way of 
amortisation on Loan given to Subsidiary

- - 83.58 76.24 - -

Rental Income - - - - - -

Management Services rendered - - 120.00 120.00

receipts & payments, payables & receivables 
outstanding at year end

Unsecured	Loan	from	Promoter	Directors	during	
the year (net)

208.28 35.00 - - - -

Unsecured	 Loans	 from	 Promoter	 Directors	
outstanding at year end

3015.13 2810.80 - - - -

noteS to tHe StAndAlone FInAnCIAl StAteMentS 
For tHe YeAr ended 31St MArCH, 2022 (Contd.)
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` in Lakhs

nature of transaction Key Managerial 
personnel

 Subsidiary Concerns in which Key 
Managerial personnel 

are Interested

particulars 2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21

Loan to Subsidiary (at amortised cost) - - 951.59 868.00 - -

Advances from Subsidiary against sales - - 196.87 73.83 - -

Loan from subsidiary - - - 1189.00 - -

Interest payable on Loan - - 356.93 314.67 - -

Payables to KMP and Concerns in which KMP are 
interested.

16.31 13.38 - - 66.04 28.38

   Note: The details of the transactions during the year as reported above are net of GST, where applicable.

   As the future liability for gratuity and leave encashment is provided on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, the amount 

pertaining to the Key Management personnel is not ascertainable and, therefore, not included above.

  During the year, the company has paid directors sitting fees to Non-executive director and Independent directors as under:

Sl. no. director name 2021-22 2020-21

1 Mrs. Ch. Manjula 1.00 0.60

2 Mr.  Pradip Saha 1.40 1.60

3 Mr.  Tirthankar Mitra 2.00 1.00

4 Mr. Chetan Shah 2.00 0.20

5 Mr. T.S.Appa Rao - 0.40

6 Mr. S. Saranathan - 0.20

7 Mr. V. Vimalanand 0.60 -

total 7.00 4.00

   An amount of ` 322.86 Lakhs (Previous Year: ` 113.00 Lakhs) has been contributed to Krishna Foundation during the year towards 

Corporate Social Responsibility.

   The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding 

balances at the year-end are unsecured.

note 43 The paid-up share capital of the Company as on financial year ended 31st March, 2022 and financial year ended 31st March, 

2021 is ` 8,858.35 Lakhs divided into 1,19,46,020 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each and 7,66,37,500 7% Cumulative Redeemable 

Preference Shares of ` 10/- each. The Public Shareholding in equity capital as on 31st March, 2022 and as on 31st March, 2021 

is 25%. 

The preference shareholders have given their consent to forego 6% preference dividend of the eligible 7% preference dividend 

amounting ̀  459.83 Lakhs for the financial year 2021-22 and Preference shareholders forego 7% preference dividend amounting 

` 536.46 Lakhs for the financial year 2020-21

note 44 eMploYee BeneFItS:

1. defined Contribution plan:

 The company makes contributions towards provident fund and employee state insurance regularly at the applicable rates based on the 

salaries of the eligible employees. The obligation of the Company is limited to making the contributions and there is no further contractual 

or constructive obligation. The following are the details of contributions made during the year which are debited to Statement of Profit and 

Loss

noteS to tHe StAndAlone FInAnCIAl StAteMentS 
For tHe YeAr ended 31St MArCH, 2022 (Contd.)
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` in Lakhs
particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Contribution to Provident Fund 98.01 85.38
Contribution to Employee State Insurance 3.02 7.51

2. defined benefit plans as per actuarial valuation as on 31st March, 2022

` in Lakhs
gratuity gratuity
(Funded) (Funded)
2021-22 2020-21

1 Assumptions
Discount Rate 7.14% 6.57%
Salary Escalation 3.00% 3.00%

2 reconciliation of opening and closing balances of defined Benefit obligation
Present value of obligations at beginning of year 375.87 379.09
Interest Cost 23.85 24.10
Current Service Cost 35.57 34.34
Benefits Paid (29.83) (36.29)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligation 55.79 (25.37)
Present Value of obligation at end of year 461.24 375.87

3 reconciliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of plan assets 
Opening fair value of plan asset 118.12 56.81
Adjustment to opening Fair Value of Plan Asset (1.91) (2.37)
Return on Plan Assets excl. interest income 1.11 1.76
Interest Income 7.95 3.74
Contributions by Employer 145.00 94.47
Benefits paid (29.83) (36.29)
Fair Value of plan Assets at end 240.44 118.12

4 net defined benefit asset/ (liability) recognised in the balance sheet 
Present value of defined benefit obligation 461.24 375.87
Fair Value of plan Assets at end of period 240.44 118.12
Net Asset/(liability) recognised in the balance sheet. (220.80) (257.75)

5 net defined benefit expense (recognised in the Statement of profit and loss for the year) and loss
Current service cost 35.57 34.35
Net interest 15.89 20.35
Expense recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss 51.46 54.70

6 remeasurement (gain)/ loss recognised in other comprehensive income (oCI)
Actuarial gain/(loss) recognised for the period 55.79 (25.37)
Return on plan assets excluding net interest (1.11) (1.76)
Total actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised in OCI 54.68 (27.13)

Sensitivity Analysis:
` in Lakhs

31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

discount rate Salary escalation rate
+1% (1%) +1% (1%)

Present Value of Obligations 431.17 495.09 494.44 431.17

Categories of plan Assets:

` in Lakhs
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Gratuity Fund managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India 240.44 118.12

noteS to tHe StAndAlone FInAnCIAl StAteMentS 
For tHe YeAr ended 31St MArCH, 2022 (Contd.)
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note 45 eArnIngS per SHAre (epS)

2021-22 2020-21
Net Profit after Tax (` in Lakhs) (a) 6,523.90 2,275.33
Weighted Average no. of Shares-Basic & Diluted (b) 1,19,46,020 1,19,46,020
Nominal value of equity share (in ` per share) 10 10
Earnings per Share - Basic & Diluted (`) (a)/(b) 54.61 19.05

note 46 dISCloSureS purSuAnt to SCHedule V oF SeBI (lIStIng oBlIgAtIonS And dISCloSure reQuIreMentS) 
regulAtIonS, 2015 And SeCtIon 186(4) oF tHe CoMpAnIeS ACt, 2013

Loans and advances in the nature of loans to Subsidiaries:

` in Lakhs

name of the Subsidiary Company Amount outstanding  
as at

Maximum amount 
outstanding during the year

31st March, 
2022

31st March, 
2021

2021-22 2020-21

Vishnu Barium Private Limited (at amortised cost) 951.59 868.00 951.59 868.00 

The above loans are given to the Subsidiary Companies on interest free basis for general corporate purposes.

note 47 AddItIonAl InForMAtIon purSuAnt to SeCtIon 129 oF tHe CoMpAnIeS ACt, 2013

Salient features of the financial statements of the subsidiaries:

Sl. no. particulars

1 name of the Subsidiary Vishnu Barium 
private limited

Vishnu South 
Africa (pty) limited

2 Percentage of Shareholding 100% 100%

3 Reporting Currency of the Subsidiary ` in Lakhs Rand

Summary of the Financial Information:

1 Share Capital 8,727.49 1,000.00

2 Reserves & Surplus (1,879.92) (2000.00)

3 Total Assets 16,819.42 -

4 Total Liabilities 9,971.85 1,000.00

5 Total Revenue for the Year 17,533.61 -

6 Net Profit / (Loss) for the Year (including OCI) 1,599.87 (150.00)

note 48 unHedged ForeIgn CurrenCY eXpoSure:

The details of foreign currency exposure at the end of the year which are not hedged by any derivative instruments are given below:

` in Lakhs
particulars Currency 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Amount in 
Foreign Currency

Amount in Indian 
rupees

Amount in 
foreign currency

Amount in Indian 
rupees

Trade receivables USD 1,52,74,266 11,576.75 88,66,783 6,482.51
Trade receivables EURO 7,81,959 658.57 14,63,677 1,255.10
Trade payables USD (24,09,286) (1826.06) (62,49,843) (4,569.26)
Secured loans USD (1,05,64,569) (8,007.15) (23,83,234) (1,742.38)
Secured loans EURO - - (10,59,005) (908.10)

noteS to tHe StAndAlone FInAnCIAl StAteMentS 
For tHe YeAr ended 31St MArCH, 2022 (Contd.)
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note 49 AnAlYtICAl rAtIoS:

Sl. 
no

ratio numerator denominator 2022 2021 Variance remarks

1 Current Ratio (in times) Total Current Assets Total Current 
Liabilities

1.13 1.06 6.48% -

2 Debt-equity ratio (in 
times)

Total Debt Shareholders Equity 1.45 2.18 (33.40%) Increase was primarly on account 
of increase in profits

3 Debt service coverage 
ratio (in times)

Earnings before debt 
service = Net profit 

after taxes + non Cash 
operating expenses 

+Interest + Other non-
cash adjustments (like 

loss on sale of fixed 
assets etc)

Debt service 
= Interest & 

lease payments 
+ principle 
repayments

2.35 1.43 64.45% Increase was primarly on account 
of increase in profits

4 Return on equity ratio 
(in %)

Profit for the year Average total 
Equity

35.08% 16.34% 114.61% Increase was primarly on account 
of increase in profits

5 Inventory Turnover ratio 
(in times)

Revenue from 
operations

Average total 
inventory

5.54 3.11 78.29% Increase was primarly on account 
of increase in revenue

6 Trade receivables 
turnover ratio (in times)

Revenue from 
operations

Average trade 
receivables

6.59 6.26 5.38% -

7 Trade payables turnover Raw material purchases 
+ Fuel purchase+Other 

expenses

Average trade 
payables

5.31 3.68 44.35% Increase was primarly on account 
of increase in raw material and 
other related expenses with 
proportionate revenue than 
average trade payables

8 Net capital turnover 
ratio 

Revenue from 
operations

Average working 
capital (ie., Total 
current assets 

less Total current 
liabilities)

29.44 31.61 (6.88%) -

9 Net profit ratio (in %) Profit for the year Revenue from 
operations

7.20% 3.97% 81.23% Increase was primarly on account 
of increase in profits than increase 
in revenue 

10 Return on capital 
employed (in %)

Earning before tax and 
finance cost

Capital employed = 
Net worth + Debt 

+ Deferred tax 
Liabilities

19.08% 7.91% 141.05% Increase was primarly on account 
of increase in profits

11 Return on Investment Income generated  From 
invested Funds

Average invested 
funds in treasury 

investments

859.20% 624.45% 37.59% Increase was primarly both on 
account of increase in revenue as 
well as profit of the subsidiary

note 50 Figures for the previous year have been regrouped, rearranged, and reclassified, wherever considered necessary, to conform to 

the classification/ presentation of the current year.

noteS to tHe StAndAlone FInAnCIAl StAteMentS 
For tHe YeAr ended 31St MArCH, 2022 (Contd.)

As per our report of even date
For Jampani & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016581S

sd/- sd/- sd/-
trinadha rao Marisetty Ch. Krishna Murthy Ch. Manjula
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Director
Membership No. 207990 DIN: 00030274 DIN: 01546339

sd/- sd/-
Place: Hyderabad p. Anjaneyulu Kishore Kathri 
Date: 16th May, 2022 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary & AGM-Legal

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16th May, 2022
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Independent AUdItOR’S RepORt

tO tHe MeMBeRS OF VISHnU CHeMICALS LIMIted

RepORt On tHe AUdIt OF tHe COnSOLIdAted FInAnCIAL 
StAteMentS

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements of Vishnu Chemicals Limited (hereinafter referred to 
as the ‘Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company 
and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which 
comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, and 
the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss, the consolidated 
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of 
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated 
financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated 
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair in 
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed 
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and 
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 
consolidated state of affairs of the Group, as at March 31, 2022, and 
their consolidated profit, their consolidated total comprehensive 
income, their consolidated cash flows and their consolidated 
changes in equity for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by ICAI, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements of the current year. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and 
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have 
determined the matters described below to be the key audit 
matters to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone 

financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and 
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have 
determined the matters described below to be the key audit 
matters to be communicated in our report.

Aspects determined as KAM

1. trade Receivables:

  Trade receivables comprise almost half of the current assets 

and also form a sizeable component of the total assets of 

the company. Management’s judgement in assessing their 

recoverability and estimating possible provision for any 

credit loss would involve consideration of facts from a multi-

dimensional perspective like, among others, contractual 

terms, credit history of the customers, past payment patterns, 

any identifiable rejection possibilities and the like.

  Audit Measures adopted to validate KAM included the 

following:

	 •	 	Assessing	 the	 appropriateness	 in	 validation	of	 certain	

overdue receivables basis the past payment history, 

current transactional issues and long-term binding 

contracts in place and correspondence with the 

customers.

	 •	 	Testing	the	operational	efficacy	of	relevant	controls	with	

respect to recognition and realizability of receivables 

and their application on a consistent basis.

	 •	 	Undertook	 a	 substantive	 testing	 to	 ascertain	 any	

inconsistent realization patterns that would give raise 

to any impairment provisioning;

  Basis the above stated measures, no significant exceptions 

were noted in valuation of trade receivables requiring any 

provision.

2. Contingent Liabilities and disputed Liabilities:

  The provisioning for Contingent and disputed liabilities 

involves significant judgment to determine the possible 

outcome and their treatment in the books of accounts. These 

judgments could eventually lead to making an appropriate 

disclosure or might even require some provisioning to be 

made in the financial statements depending on whether 

an obligation requiring outflow of resources would arise in 

future or not.

  As part of audit procedures, we sought the source documents 

as well as the correspondence and other material pertaining 

to each issue. We reviewed to validate the appropriateness 

of the management’s judgment in arriving at a decision 

of disclosure / provision and see if they are adequate and 

comprehensive to the extent possible.
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emphasis of Matter

The preference shareholders of the company, who are also the 
promoters, have given an undertaking foregoing 6% of the eligible 
7% dividend amounting to ` 459.83 Lakhs, receivable by them for 
the financial year 2021-22 as mentioned in Note 43 of Notes to 
Accounts.

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information other than the Financial Statements and 
Auditor’s Report thereon:

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation 
of the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, 
Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, but does 
not include the consolidated financial statements, standalone 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not 
cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information, 
compare with the financial statements of the subsidiaries, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information submitted with regard 
to unaudited financial statements of an overseas subsidiary is 
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements 
or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is 
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required 
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with 
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 
that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, 
consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of 
the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified 
under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors 
of the companies included in the Group are responsible for 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been 
used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective 
Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are 
responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in 
the Group are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting 
process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the 
audit. We also:

•	 	Identify	and	assess	the	risks	of	material	misstatement	of	the	
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 
or the override of internal control.

•	 	Obtain	 an	 understanding	 of	 internal	 control	 relevant	 to	
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate	 in	 the	 circumstances.	 Under	 section	 143(3)
(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company 
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

	 •	 	Evaluate	 the	 appropriateness	 of	 accounting	 policies	
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.
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	 •	 	Conclude	on	the	appropriateness	of	management’s	use	

of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 

that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the 

Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 

that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 

draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 

disclosures in the consolidated financial statements 

or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 

opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 

report. However, future events or conditions may cause 

the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

	 •	 	Evaluate	the	overall	presentation,	structure	and	content	

of the consolidated financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial 

statements represent the underlying transactions and 

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

	 •		 	Obtain	sufficient	appropriate	audit	evidence	regarding	

the financial information of the entities or business 

activities within the Group to express an opinion on the 

consolidated financial statements. We are responsible 

for the direction, supervision and performance of 

the audit of the financial statements of such entities 

included in the consolidated financial statements of 

which we are the independent auditors. We remain 

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone 

financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes 

it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 

knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. 

We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in 

(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the 

results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 

misstatements in the financial statements

We communicate with those charged with governance of 

the Holding Company and such other entities included in the 

consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent 

auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 

our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement 

that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 

to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with 

governance, we determine those matters that were of most 

significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements 

of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. 

We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 

regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 

in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 

should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements / financial information 

of Vishnu South Africa (Pty) Limited, overseas subsidiary of 

the Holding Company, whose financial statements / financial 

information reflect total assets of ` NIL Lakhs as at 31st March, 

2022, total revenues of ` Nil and net cash outflows amounting 

to ` NIL Lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in 

the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements/ 

financial information are unaudited and have been furnished to us 

by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial 

statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures 

included in respect of this subsidiary and our report in terms of sub-

sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to 

the aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on such unaudited financial 

statements / financial information. In our opinion and according to 

the information and explanations given to us by the Management, 

these financial statements / financial information are not material 

to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our 

report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is 

not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our 

reliance on the financial statements / financial information certified 

by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent 

applicable, that:

(a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and 

explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 

were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 

consolidated financial statements.

(b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law 

relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial 

statements have been kept so far as it appears from our 

examination of those books.

(c)  The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated 

Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 

income),	 Consolidated	 Statement	 of	 Changes	 in	 Equity	

and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow dealt with 
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by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of 

account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the 

consolidated financial statements.

(d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial 

statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 

under Section 133 of the Act.

(e)  On the basis of the written representations received from the 

directors of the Holding Company as on 31st March, 2022 

taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding 

Company, none of the directors of the Group companies is 

disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being appointed as 

a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f )  With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls 

over financial reporting of the Group and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report 

in Annexure A. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion 

on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal 

financial controls over financial reporting.

(g)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the 

Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of 

section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

  In our opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration 

paid by the Group to its directors during the year is in 

accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

(h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the 

Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 

(Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the 

best of our information and according to the explanations 

given to us:

 i.  The consolidated financial statements disclose the 

impact of pending litigations on the consolidated 

financial position of the Group.

 ii.   The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses 

on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

 iii.   There were no amounts which were required to be 

transferred	 to	 the	 Investor	 Education	 and	 Protection	

Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary 

company incorporated in India.

 iv. a.  The respective managements of the parent 

company and its subsidiaries, those incorporated 

in India, whose financial statements were audited 

under the Act, have represented that, to the best 

of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are 

material either individually or in the aggregate) 

have been advanced or loaned or invested (either 

from borrowed funds or share premium or any 

other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding 

company or any such subsidiaries to or in any 

other person(s) or entities, including foreign 

entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding 

whether recorded in writing or not, that the 

intermediary shall whether directly or indirectly 

lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 

in any manner by or on behalf of the holding 

company	 or	 any	 such	 subsidiaries	 (Ultimate	

Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security 

or the like on behalf of ultimate beneficiaries.

  b.  The respective managements of the parent 

company and its subsidiaries, those incorporated 

in India, whose financial statements were audited 

under the Act, have represented that, to the 

best of their knowledge and belief, no funds 

(which are material either individually or in the 

aggregate) have been received by the Holding 

company or any such subsidiaries from any 

person(s) or entities, including foreign entities 

(“Funding parties”), with the understanding, 

whether recorded in writing or not, that the 

Holding company or any such subsidiaries shall 

whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in 

other persons or entities identified in any manner 

by	or	on	behalf	of	 the	Funding	parties	 (Ultimate	

Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security 

or the like on behalf of ultimate beneficiaries.

  c.  Based on the audit procedures performed, we 

report that nothing has come to our notice that 

has caused us to believe that the representations 

given under sub-clause (i) and (ii) by the 

management contain any material mis-statement.

 v.  In our opinion Company has complied with section 123 

of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to dividend 

declared/paid during the year.

For Jampani & Associates
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No. 016581S)

sd/-

trinadha Rao Marisetty
Partner

Place: Hyderabad  (Membership No.207990)

Date:	16th	May	2022		 UDIN:22207990AJSAIC5264		
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We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 

reporting of VISHnU CHeMICALS LIMIted (hereinafter referred 

to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary company (Holding 

Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”) 

incorporated in India as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our 

audit of the financial statements of the Holding Company for the 

year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and 

its subsidiary company incorporated in India are responsible for 

establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 

the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 

such companies considering the essential components of internal 

control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the 

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 

orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 

to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 

the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 

and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 

Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial 

controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based 

on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 

Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, 

issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) 

of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 

internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal 

Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 

require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 

was established and maintained and if such controls operated 

effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 

evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 

AnneXURe A tO tHe Independent AUdItOR’S RepORt:
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”):

system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. 

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting 

included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 

over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 

exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 

procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 

the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 

internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 

statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to 

consolidated financial statements is a process designed to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 

reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements 

for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls 

with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those 

policies and procedures that

1)  Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 

detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 

dispositions of the assets of the company;

2)  Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 

as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 

and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 

made only in accordance with authorisations of management 

and directors of the company; and

3)  Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 

detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of 

the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 

financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls 

over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion 

or improper management override of controls, material 
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misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. 

Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 

over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that 

the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 

of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group has, in all material respects, an adequate 

internal financial controls system over financial reporting and 

such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 

operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal 

control over financial reporting criteria established by the Group 

considering the essential components of internal control stated 

in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 

over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India.

For Jampani & Associates
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No. 016581S)

sd/-

trinadha Rao Marisetty
Partner

Place: Hyderabad (Membership No.207990)

Date:	16th	May	2022		 UDIN:22207990AJSAIC5264
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` in Lakhs
particulars note no. As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
 I ASSetS

(1)  non-current assets
(a)	 Property,	Plant	and	Equipment 2 46,324.58 38,746.20
(b) Capital work-in-progress 2 541.43 2,396.44
(c) Intangible Assets 2 0.39 0.18

46,866.40 41,142.82
(d) Financial Assets

Investments 3 22.49 28.69
(e) Other non-current assets 4 2,847.30 1,206.93

49,736.19 42,378.44
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 5 16,775.88 19,074.94
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 6 246.39 72.30
(i) Trade Receivables 7 19,083.27 11,569.15
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 8 33.52 32.42
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 9 1,499.97 1,036.50
(v) Other financial assets 10 78.82 74.46

(c) Other current assets 11 3,847.84 3,048.62
(d) Assets classified as held for sale 12 190.00  - 

41,755.69 34,908.39
total Assets 91,491.88 77,286.83
II eQUItY And LIABILItIeS 

eQUItY
(a)	 Equity	Share	capital 13 1,194.60 1,194.60
(b)	 Other	Equity 14 26,492.73 18,419.52

27,687.33 19,614.12
LIABILItIeS
(1) non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
 (i) Borrowings 15 20,637.00 17,490.85
 (ii) Lease liabilities 16 82.58  - 
(b) Provisions 17 267.58 400.33
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 18 4,297.75 3,670.62
(d) Other Non-Current Liabilities 19 1,523.76 3,338.22

26,808.67 24,900.02
(2) Current liabilities
 (a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 20 15,698.54 16,061.23
(ii) Trade payables
	 -	 Due	to	MSME	entities 21 28.59 60.74

- 	 -	 Other	than	MSME	entities 21 17,121.33 13,640.25
(iii) Lease liabilities 22 62.66  - 
(iii) Other financial liabilities 23 142.38 1,331.79

 (b) Other current liabilities 24 2,202.31 1,348.40
 (c) Provisions 25 44.95 49.38
 (d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 26 1,695.12 280.90

36,995.88 32,772.69
total equity and Liabilities 91,491.88 77,286.83

Accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements

COnSOLIdAted BALAnCe SHeet 
AS At 31St MARCH, 2022

As per our report of even date
For Jampani & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016581S
sd/- sd/- sd/-
trinadha Rao Marisetty Ch. Krishna Murthy Ch. Manjula
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Director
Membership No. 207990 DIN: 00030274 DIN: 01546339

sd/- sd/-
Place: Hyderabad p. Anjaneyulu Kishore Kathri 
Date: 16th May, 2022 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary & AGM-Legal

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16th May, 2022



119 AnnUAL RepORt 2021-22

financial statements

COnSOLIdAted StAteMent OF pROFIt And LOSS 
FOR tHe peRIOd ended 31St MARCH, 2022

` in Lakhs
note no. For the year ending 

31st March, 2022
For the year ending 

31st March, 2021
1 InCOMe

a. Revenue from Operations 27 1,06,900.18 67,868.09
b. Other Income 28 575.75 282.30

total Income 1,07,475.93 68,150.39
2 eXpenSeS

a. Cost of Materials Consumed 29 39,979.25 27,559.51
b. Purchase of stock in trade 1,506.72  - 
c. Cost of Consumables 30 15,487.02 8,467.18
d. Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-in-Progress 31 1,458.58 1,217.49
e. Employee	Benefit	Expenses 32 4,149.70 3,428.81
f. Finance Costs 33 2,609.52 2,597.15
g. Depreciation	and	Amortisation	Expense 2 2,298.44 2,029.77
h. Power Cost 34 4,541.94 3,136.24
i. Manufacturing	Expenses 35 9,578.64 7,424.20
j. Selling	&	Administrative	Expenses 36 14,566.27 8,750.88
k. Corporate social responsibility expenses 37 66.52 138.87

total expenses 96,242.60 64,750.10
3 profit Before tax 11,233.34 3,400.29
4 tax expense 38

a. Current Tax 2,458.55 386.74
b. Tax Pertaining to earlier years  (5.26)  (136.84)
c. MAT Reversal  - 785.86
d. Deferred Tax reversal due to change in tax rate  -  (1,328.51)
e. Deferred Tax current year 640.78 243.58

3,094.07  (49.17)
5 profit / (Loss) For the period from Continuing Operations 8,139.27 3,449.46
6 Other Comprehensive Income/ expense  (70.19) 22.65

Less: Tax on above  (13.76) 6.83
7 Other Comprehensive Income/ expense (net of taxes)  (56.43) 15.83
8 total Comprehensive Income for the period (5+7) 8,082.84 3,465.29
9 earnings per Share 

Basic & Diluted (in `)  68.13  28.88 
(Annualised) (Annualised)

Accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date
For Jampani & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016581S

sd/- sd/- sd/-
trinadha Rao Marisetty Ch. Krishna Murthy Ch. Manjula
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Director
Membership No. 207990 DIN: 00030274 DIN: 01546339

sd/- sd/-
Place: Hyderabad p. Anjaneyulu Kishore Kathri 
Date: 16th May, 2022 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary & AGM-Legal

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16th May, 2022
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` in Lakhs

For the year ended 
31st March, 2022

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

profit before tax  11,233.34  3,400.29 

Cash flows used in / from operating activities

Adjustments for :

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  2,298.44  2,029.77 

Profit	on	sale	of	Property	Plant	and	Equipment  (0.50)  (12.40)

Profit on sale of Investments  (3.64)  (0.77)

Interest income  (66.07)  (81.67)

Unwinding	of	Interest	on	Interest	free	Security	deposits	received	from	Suppliers  5.17  (4.19)

Interest expenses  2,265.94  2,317.19 

Unwinding	of	interest	expenses	on	Loan	from	Promoter	Directors.  220.05  185.46 

Amortisation of Processing Fees of Long Term Loans.  5.85  8.90 

Fair value (Gain)/ Loss on investments (net)  (20.63)  (28.20)

Obsolete Stock provision  16.80  16.55 

Re-measurement of defined employee benefit plans  (70.19)  22.65 

Advances and bad debts written back (Net)  -    52.64 

Operating profit before working capital changes  15,884.56  7,906.22 

Movement in working capital:

(Increase)/Decrease in inventories  2,282.26  1,674.87 

(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables  (7,514.12)  (2,481.41)

(Increase) / Decrease in Financial & Non Financial Assets  (3,081.51)  (61.97)

(Decrease)/ Increase in trade payables  3,448.93  (118.68)

Increase/(Decrease) in Financial & Non Financial Liabilities & Provisions  (1,008.39)  483.19 

Cash generated from operations  10,011.73  7,402.22 

Income tax paid  (1,039.06)  (665.56)

net cash flows used in / from operating activities (A)  8,972.67  6,736.66 

Cash flows used in / from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, including capital work in progress less 

Capital Advances

 (8,329.82)  (5,445.93)

Proceeds	from	Sale	of	Property	Plant	&	Equipment  118.30  20.10 

Investments in mutual funds  (182.10)  (10.99)

Proceeds from Sale of investments in mutual funds  212.57  60.19 

Interest received  66.07  194.69 

net cash flows used in / from investing activities (B)  (8,114.97)  (5,181.94)

CASH FLOw StAteMent 
FOR tHe YeAR ended 31St MARCH, 2022
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` in Lakhs

For the year ended 
31st March, 2022

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

net cash flows used in / from financing activities

(Decrease)/Increase in Long Term Borrowings  3,518.12  1,513.47 

(Decrease)/Increase in Short Term Borrowings  (815.33)  (988.88)

Interest Paid  (2,265.94)  (2,317.19)

Dividend Paid  (1,293.45)  (119.46)

net cash flows used in/from financing activities (C)  (856.60)  (1,912.06)

net decrease in cash and cash equivalents  (A+B+C)  1.10  (357.34)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  32.42  389.77 

Cash and cash equivalents at the year end  33.52  32.42 

Components of cash and cash equivalents:

Cash on hand  27.45  3.68 

Balances with banks  6.07  28.74 

total cash and cash equivalents  33.52  32.42 

CASH FLOw StAteMent 
FOR tHe YeAR ended 31St MARCH, 2022 (COntd.)

As per our report of even date
For Jampani & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016581S

sd/- sd/- sd/-
trinadha Rao Marisetty Ch. Krishna Murthy Ch. Manjula
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Director
Membership No. 207990 DIN: 00030274 DIN: 01546339

sd/- sd/-
Place: Hyderabad p. Anjaneyulu Kishore Kathri 
Date: 16th May, 2022 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary & AGM-Legal

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16th May, 2022
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note 13
a  equity Share Capital
equity shares of ` 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid-up number of shares ` in Lakhs 

31st March, 
2022

31st March, 
2021

31st March, 
2022

31st March, 
2021

Balance as at the beginning of the year  1,19,46,020  1,19,46,020 1,194.60 1,194.60
Changes in share capital during the year  -    -    -    -   
Balance as at the end of the year  1,19,46,020  1,19,46,020 1,194.60 1,194.60

note 14

b. Other equity

For the year ended 31st March, 2022
` in Lakhs

Reserves and Surplus Items of Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

total

Capital 
Reserve

General 
Reserve

Retained 
earnings

effect of Amortisation 
of Interest free loans 

from promoter 
directors

Remeasurement 
of net defined 
Benefit plans

 Balance as at 1st April, 2021 982.88 659.07 15,749.88 1,036.88  (9.19) 18,419.52
Add/(less)  Profit for the year (Net of Taxes) 8,139.27 8,139.27
Add/(less)  Changes during the year (net)  -   109.93 109.93
Add/(less)  Other Comprehensive Income 
for the year (net of taxes)

 -    (56.53)  (56.53)

Less: Dividend 119.46 119.46
Less: Corporate dividend tax  -   
Less :Transfer to general reserve  -   
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 982.88 659.07 23,769.69 1,146.81  (65.72) 26,492.73

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
` in Lakhs

Reserves and surplus Items of Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

total

Capital 
Reserve

General 
Reserve

Retained 
earnings

effect of Amortisation 
of Interest free loans 

from promoter 
directors 

Remeasurement 
of net defined 
Benefit plans

 Balance as at 1st April, 2020 982.88 659.07 12,419.88 768.04  (25.01) 14,804.86
Add/(less)  Profit for the year 3,449.46 3,449.46
Add/(less)  Changes during the year (net) 268.84 268.84
Add/(less) Other Comprehensive Income 
for the year (net of taxes)

15.83 15.83

Add/(Less) Adjustment on account of 
discontinution of foreign operations 

 -   

Less: Dividend 119.46 119.46
Less: Corporate dividend tax  -   
Less :Transfer to general reserve  -    -    -   
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 982.88 659.07 15,749.88 1,036.88  (9.19) 18,419.52

COnSOLIdAted StAteMent OF CHAnGeS In eQUItY 
AS At 31St MARCH, 2022 

As per our report of even date
For Jampani & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016581S

sd/- sd/- sd/-
trinadha Rao Marisetty Ch. Krishna Murthy Ch. Manjula
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Director
Membership No. 207990 DIN: 00030274 DIN: 01546339

sd/- sd/-
Place: Hyderabad p. Anjaneyulu Kishore Kathri 
Date: 16th May, 2022 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary & AGM-Legal

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16th May, 2022
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A. Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

a) Statement of Compliance

  The financial statements have been prepared in accordance 

with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under 

Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) 

Rules, 2016 and other relevant provisions of the Act, as 

applicable.

b) description of the Group

  The consolidated financial statements comprise financial 

statements of Vishnu Chemicals Limited (the ‘Company’), 

BASIS OF pRepARAtIOn OF FInAnCIAL StAteMentS And 
SIGnIFICAnt ACCOUntInG pOLICIeS:

its subsidiaries and step-down subsidiary (collectively, the 

‘Group’) for the year ended 31st March, 2022. The Company 

is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated 

under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable 

in	 India.	 The	 Company’s	 shares	 are	 listed	 on	 BSE	 Limited	

and	National	 Stock	 Exchange	of	 India	 Limited	 in	 India.	The	

registered office of the Company is located at:

	 	Plot	No.	C-23,	Road	No.	8,	Film	Nagar,	Jubilee	Hills,	Hyderabad	

– 500 096

  The consolidated financial statements were authorised for 

publication in accordance with a resolution of the directors 

on 16th May, 2022.

 The Group has the following investments in subsidiaries –

name of the entity principal place of 
business and Country of 

Incorporation

Investee relationship proportion of ownership 
interest

31st March, 
2022

31st March, 
2021

31st March, 
2022

31st March, 
2021

Vishnu Barium Private Limited India Subsidiary Subsidiary 100% 100%
Vishnu South Africa (Pty.) Limited South Africa Subsidiary Subsidiary 100% 100%

  As required under Consolidation of Financial Statements 
standards, the financial statements of the Group have been 
prepared in accordance with Ind AS, Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 and other 
relevant provisions of the Act, as applicable.

c) Basis of preparation

  The financial statements of the Group have been prepared 
in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind 
AS’), under the historical cost except for certain financial 
instruments which are measured at fair values at the end 
of each reporting period as explained in the accounting 
policies below, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
(‘the Act’) (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by 
the	Securities	and	Exchange	Board	of	India	(SEBI).	The	Ind	AS	
are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 
3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter. The 
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a 
historical cost except for certain financial instruments that are 
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, 
as explained in accounting policies below.

  The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees and 
all values are rounded to the nearest Lakhs, except otherwise 
indicated.

 Basis of consolidation

  The Consolidated financial statements comprise the financial 
statements of the Group as at 31st March, 2022 and 31st 
March, 2021.

  Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, 

to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and 

has the ability to affect those returns through its power over 

the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if 

and only if the Group has:

	   Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it 

the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the 

investee)

	 	 	Exposure,	 or	 rights,	 to	 variable	 returns	 from	 its	

involvement with the investee, and

	   The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its 

returns.

  Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting 

rights result in control. To support this presumption and 

when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or 

similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant 

facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power 

over an investee, including:

	   The contractual arrangement with the other vote 

holders of the investee

	   Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

	   The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

  The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee 
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to 
one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation 
of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over 
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control 
of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses 



124Vishnu ChemiCals limiTeD

nOteS tO tHe COnSOLIdAted FInAnCIAL StAteMentS 
FOR tHe YeAR ended 31St MARCH, 2022 (COntd.)

of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are 
included in the consolidated financial statements from the 
date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases 
to control the subsidiary.

d) Current versus non-current classification

  The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet 
based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is 
treated as current when it is:

 -  expected to be realised or intended to be sold or 
consumed in normal operating cycle,

 -  held primarily for the purpose of trading,

 -  expected to be realised within twelve months after the 
reporting period, or

 -  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being 
exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period.

 All other assets are classified as non-current.

 A liability is current when:

 -  it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

 -  it is held primarily for the purpose of trading, it is due 
to be settled within twelve months after the reporting 
period, or

 -  there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement 
of the liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting period.

 The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current 
assets and liabilities.

  The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of 
assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash 
equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its 
operating cycle.

e) Use of estimates and Judgments

  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
Ind AS requires the Management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities as on 
the date of the financial statements and the income and 
expenditure for the reporting year. Though, these estimates 
and assumptions are based on the information available at 
that point of time, the actual results could differ from these 
estimates.

  Critical estimates and judgments in applying 
accounting policies

	 	Estimates	 and	 judgments	 made	 in	 applying	 accounting	
policies that have significant effect on the amounts 
recognised in the financial statements are as follows:

 i) property, plant and equipment

   The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is 

derived after estimating the asset’s expected useful life 

and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The 

depreciation method, useful lives and residual values of 

Group’s assets are estimated by management at the 

time the asset is acquired and reviewed during each 

financial year.

 ii) employee Benefit plans

	 	 	Employee	 defined	 benefit	 plans	 and	 long	 term	

benefit plans are measured on the basis of actuarial 

assumptions. However, any changes in these 

assumptions may have impact on the reported amount 

of obligation and expenses.

B. Significant Accounting policies:

a) property, plant and equipment

  Property, plant and equipment are stated in the Balance Sheet 

at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment losses, if any. Cost includes purchase price (net 

of reimbursable taxes), attributable expenditure incurred in 

bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended 

use and cost of borrowing till the date of capitalisation in the 

case of assets involving material investment and substantial 

lead time.

  Depreciation is provided on Straight Line Method in respect 

of	assets	situated	at	Bhilai,	Jeedimetla	(API),	Corporate	Office	

and	Vizag	Units	and	on	Written	down	value	Method	in	respect	

of	assets	situated	at	Kazipally	Unit,	by	considering	the	useful	

life of the assets as specified in Schedule II of the Companies 

Act, 2013.  Depreciation is provided on Straight line method 

for Vishnu Barium Private Limited. No assets exist for Vishnu 

South Africa (Pty) Limited.

  Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values 

are reviewed in each financial year and changes, if any, are 

accounted for prospectively. Leased assets are depreciated 

over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless 

it is reasonably certain that the Group will obtain ownership 

by the end of the lease term. Freehold land is not depreciated.

b) Intangible Assets

  Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial 

recognition at cost.  Following initial recognition, intangible 

assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation 

and accumulated impairment losses.

  Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the 

useful economic life, reviewed regularly, and are assessed 

for impairment whenever there is an indication that the 

intangible asset may be impaired.
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 	Expenditure	 on	 research	 activities	 is	 recognised	 in	 the	

statement	 of	 profit	 and	 loss	 as	 incurred.	 Expenditure	 on	

development activities is capitalised only if the expenditure 

can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically 

and commercially feasible future economic benefits are 

probable and the Group intends to and has sufficient 

resources to complete development and to use or sell the 

asset.

c) Leases

  The Group evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease 

as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of a 

lease requires significant judgment. A contract is, or contains, 

a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use 

of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for 

consideration. The determination of whether an arrangement 

is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the 

arrangement at the inception of the lease.

  At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company 

recognises	a	right-of-use	asset	(“ROU”)	and	a	corresponding	

lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, 

except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-

term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term 

and low value leases, the Company recognises the lease 

payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis 

over the term of the lease.

  The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which 

comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for 

any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement 

date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease 

incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less 

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

  Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement 

date on a straight-line basis over the lease term and useful 

life of the underlying asset. The lease liability is initially 

measured at amortised cost at the present value of the 

future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted 

using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily 

determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the 

country	of	domicile	of	 these	 leases.	Lease	 liability	and	ROU	

asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet.

d) Financial Instruments

 Financial instruments are classified as:

	 •	 	Financial	assets,	measured	at	(a)	amortised	cost	and	(b)	

fair value through Profit and Loss (“FVTPL”)

	 •	 Financial	liabilities	are	carried	at	amortised	cost.

  All financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. 

Transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of 

the financial asset (other than financial assets recorded at fair 

value through profit or loss) are included in the fair value of 

the financial assets.

 Subsequently, financial assets are measured as follows:

 i) Amortised Cost

   A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if 

both of the following conditions are met:

	 	 •	 	the	financial	asset	is	held	within	a	business	model	

whose objective is to hold financial assets in order 

to collect contractual cash flows; and

	 	 •	 	the	 contractual	 terms	of	 the	 financial	 asset	 give	

rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payment of principal and interest on the principal 

amount outstanding.

   Financial assets under this category are measured 

initially at fair value plus transaction costs and 

subsequently carried at amortised cost using the 

effective interest method, less any impairment loss.

 ii) Fair Value through profit and Loss Account

   Financial instruments classified in this category are 

subsequently carried at fair value with changes 

recorded in the statement of profit or loss. Directly 

attributable transaction costs are recognised in Profit 

and Loss account as incurred.

   Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at 

amortised cost using effective interest method.

 e)  derivative financial instruments and hedge 
accounting

  Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

   Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised 

at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract 

is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair 

value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when 

the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when 

the fair value is negative.

   The purchase contracts that meet the definition of 

a derivative under Ind AS 109 are recognised in the 

statement of profit and loss. Commodity contracts 

that are entered into and continue to be held for the 

purpose of the receipt or delivery of a non-financial 

item in accordance with the expected purchase, sale or 

usage requirements are held at cost.

   Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair 

value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, 

except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, 

which is recognised in OCI and later reclassified to 

profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or 
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loss or treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast 

transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a 

non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

   For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are 

classified as:

  (i)   Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to 

changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or 

liability or an unrecognised firm commitment.

  (ii)  Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to 

variability in cash flows that is either attributable 

to a particular risk associated with a recognised 

asset or liability or a highly probable forecast 

transaction or the foreign currency risk in an 

unrecognised firm commitment.

  (iii)  Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation.

   Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge 

accounting are accounted for, as described below:

 i)  Fair value hedges

   The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument 

is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as 

finance costs. The change in the fair value of the 

hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded 

as part of the carrying value of the hedged item and is 

also recognised in the statement of profit and loss as 

finance costs.

   For fair value hedges relating to items carried at 

amortised cost, any adjustment to carrying value is 

amortised through profit or loss over the remaining term 

of	 the	 hedge	 using	 the	 EIR	method.	 EIR	 amortisation	

may begin as soon as an adjustment exists and no later 

than when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted 

for changes in its fair value attributable to the risk  

being hedged.

   If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair 

value is recognised immediately in profit or loss. When 

an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a 

hedged item, the subsequent cumulative change in the 

fair value of the firm commitment attributable to the 

hedged risk is recognised as an asset or liability with a 

corresponding gain or loss recognised in profit and loss.

 ii) Cash flow hedges

   The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging 

instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash flow hedge 

reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised 

immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

   The ineffective portion relating to foreign currency 

contracts is recognised in finance costs and the 

ineffective portion relating to commodity contracts is 

recognised in other income or expenses.

   Amounts recognised as OCI are transferred to profit or 

loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, 

such as when the hedged financial income or financial 

expense is recognised or when a forecast sale occurs. 

When the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial 

asset or nonfinancial liability, the amounts recognised 

as OCI are transferred to the initial carrying amount of 

the non-financial asset or liability.

   If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated 

or exercised without replacement or rollover (as part of 

the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge 

is revoked, or when the hedge no longer meets the 

criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or 

loss previously recognised in OCI remains separately 

in equity until the forecast transaction occurs or the 

foreign currency firm commitment is met.

f) Impairment of Assets

 i) non-Financial Assets

   The carrying amount of cash generating units is 

reviewed at each reporting date where there is any 

indication of impairment. An impairment loss is 

recognised in the statement of profit and loss where 

the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount 

of the cash generating units. Recoverable amount is the 

higher of cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs of 

disposal and its value in use.

   An impairment loss is reversed if there has been 

a change in the estimates used to determine the 

recoverable amount.

 ii) Financial Assets

   The loss allowance in respect of trade receivables is 

at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. 

The loss allowance in respect of all other financial 

assets is measured at an amount equal to lifetime 

expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial 

instrument has increased significantly since initial 

recognition. Otherwise, the loss allowance is measured 

at an amount equal to 12 month expected credit losses.

g) Inventories

  Inventories are valued at lower of cost, determined on First-

in-First-Out (FIFO) basis, or net realisable value. Inventories 

comprise of raw materials, stores, spares & consumables 

and finished goods. Cost of Inventories comprises all cost 

of purchase (net of reimbursable taxes), cost of conversion 

and other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their 

present location and condition.
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  Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in 

the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 

completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the 

sale.

h) Revenue Recognition

  Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable 

that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the 

revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the 

payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair 

value of the consideration received or receivable, net of 

returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates 

after taking into account contractually defined terms of 

payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of 

the government.

  The Group recognises revenue in accordance with Ind AS 115 

“Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. The core principle 

of the standard is that an entity should recognise revenue to 

depict the transfer of control of promised goods or services 

to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to 

which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those 

goods or services.

  Other income is comprised primarily of interest income, 

dividend income, gain/loss on investments and exchange 

gain/loss on forward and options contracts and on translation 

of other assets and liabilities. Interest income is recognised 

using the effective interest method. Claims for export 

incentives/ duty drawbacks, duty refunds and insurance are 

accounted when the right to receive payment is established.

i) provisions

  Provisions are recognised if, as a result of a past event, the 

Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can 

be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of 

economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

  Where the effect of time value of money is material, provisions 

are determined and maintained by discounting the expected 

future cash flows, wherever applicable.

j) Borrowing Costs

  Borrowing costs attributable to a qualifying asset are 

capitalised as a part of the cost of such assets and other 

borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year of 

incurrence.

k) employee Benefits

  The Group’s contribution to Provident and Pension fund for 

the employees is covered under defined contribution plan 

and is recognised as employee benefit expense in statement 

of profit and loss in the periods during which services are 

rendered by employees.

  The Group’s Gratuity scheme for its employees is a defined 

benefit retirement benefit plan. The liability recognised in the 

balance sheet in respect of defined benefit plan is the present 

value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the 

reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined 

benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent 

actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

 Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

	 •	 service	cost

	 •	 net	interest	expense	or	income;	and

	 •	 re-measurement

  The Group presents the first two components of defined 

benefit	 costs	 in	 profit	 and	 loss	 in	 the	 line	 item	‘Employee	

benefit expenses’.

  Re-measurements comprising actuarial gains and losses 

as well as the difference between the return on plan 

assets and the amounts included in net interest on the 

net defined benefits liability (asset) are recognised in other 

comprehensive income, net of income tax.

  Other long-term employee benefits comprise of leave 

encashment which is provided for based on the actuarial 

valuation carried out as at the end of the year. Liability is 

measured at the present value of the estimated future cash 

outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect of 

services provided by employees up to the reporting date. 

Re-measurements and other expenses related to long term 

benefit plans are recognised in statement of profit and loss/ 

other comprehensive income as applicable.

l) Foreign Currency transactions and balances

  The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented 

in Indian rupees, which is also the parent company’s 

functional currency. For each entity, the Group determines 

the functional currency and items included in the financial 

statements of each entity are measured using that functional 

currency. The Group uses the direct method of consolidation 

and on disposal of a foreign operation the gain or loss that 

is reclassified to profit or loss reflects the amount that arises 

from using this method.

  Transactions in foreign currency are translated into the 

respective functional currencies using the exchange rates 

prevailing at the dates of the respective transactions. Foreign 

exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of 

such transactions and from the translation at the exchange 

rates prevailing at reporting date of monetary assets and 

liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised 

in the statement of profit and loss and reported within 

foreign exchange gains / (losses).
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  Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign 

currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the 

exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction.

m) earnings per Share

  Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit 

or loss after tax by the weighted average number of equity 

shares outstanding during the year including any potential 

dilution resulting in issue of additional equity shares based 

on contractual terms and obligations. Diluted earnings per 

share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax as 

adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense 

or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the 

dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average 

number of equity shares considered for deriving basic 

earnings per share.

n) Statement of Cash Flows

  Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, 

whereby profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of 

transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals 

of past or future cash receipts or payments. Cash flows for 

the year are classified by operating, investing and financing 

activities.

o) taxes on Income

  Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax 

expense is recognised in the statement of profit and loss 

except to the extent it relates to items directly recognised in 

equity or in other comprehensive income.

 i) Current income tax

   Current income tax for the current and prior periods 

are measured at the amount expected to be recovered 

from or paid to the taxation authorities based on the 

taxable income for the period.

   The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the current 

tax amount are those that are enacted or substantively 

enacted by the reporting date and applicable for the 

period. The Group offsets current tax assets and current 

tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to 

set off the recognised amounts and where it intends 

either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and 

liability simultaneously.

 ii) deferred income tax

   Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable 

temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are 

recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the 

carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax 

losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent 

that it is probable that taxable profit will be available 

against which the deductible temporary differences, 

and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused 

tax losses can be utilised.

   The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed 

at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that 

it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will 

be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset 

to	be	utilised.	Unrecognised	deferred	tax	assets	are	re	

assessed at each reporting date and are recognised 

to the extent that it has become probable that future 

taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be 

recovered.

   Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the 

tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when 

the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based 

on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 

substantively enacted at the reporting date.

   Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit 

or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in 

other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax 

items are recognised in correlation to the underlying 

transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

   Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset 

if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax 

assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred 

taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same 

taxation authority.

nOteS tO tHe COnSOLIdAted FInAnCIAL StAteMentS 
FOR tHe YeAR ended 31St MARCH, 2022 (COntd.)
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Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule for the year ending 31st March, 2022 & 31st March, 2021

` in Lakhs
 Amount in CwIp for a period of  total 

Less than 
 1 Year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
 years

As on 31st March, 2022
Projects in Process  541.43  541.43 
Projects temporarily suspended  -    -    -    -    -   
As on 31st March, 2021
Projects in Process  1,410.17  645.41  340.86  -    2,396.44 
Projects temporarily suspended  -    -    -    -    -   

nOte 3 nOn CURRent FInAnCIAL ASSetS - InVeStMentS

` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
1. non trade Investments - Unquoted (At Fair Value)

i Investment in equity Instruments of other Companies
a. 	Equity	Shares	in	Koganti	Power	Limited		

60,000 (60,000) Nos. each ` 10/- Fully paid up, acquired at a cost of ` 6,00,000  
(` 6,00,000)-Net of impairment recognised.

0.00 0.00

b. Equity	Shares	in	Sireen	Drugs	Private	Limited
 1,000 (1,000) Nos. each ` 10/- Fully paid up, acquired at a cost of ` 10,000 
(`10,000) - Net of impairment recognised.

0.00 0.00

ii Investments in Mutual Funds - Quoted (At fair value)
a. LMRG-Union	 Large	 &	Midcap	 Fund	 Regular	 Plan	 -	 Growth	 -	 49,900	 (49,990)	

Units,	Cost	` 5,00,000 (` 5,00,000)
8.01 6.53

b. UBI	 -Union	 Balanced	 advantage	 fund	 regular	 plan	 -	 growth-	 60,339	 (60,339)	
Units,	Cost	` 6,35,373 (` 6,35,373)

9.00 8.41

c. UBI-Union	 Equity	 Savings	 Fund	 Regular	 Plan	 -	 19,990	 (19,990)	 Units,	 
Cost ` 1,99,990 (` 1,99,990)

2.64 2.48

d. Nippon (Reliance) Balanced Advantage Fund - Growth Plan - 2,352 (2,352) 
Units,	Cost	` 2,00,000 (` 2,00,000)

2.84 2.57

e. SBI	Life	Smart	Wealth	Builder	-	Nil	(45,085.23)	Units,	Cost		` Nil (` 7,00,000)  - 8.70
22.49 28.69

disclosures:
` in Lakhs

As at  
31st March, 2022

As at  
31st March, 2021

Aggregate amount of Cost of Quoted Investments 15.35 22.35
Aggregate amount of market value of quoted investments 22.49 28.69
Aggregate	amount	of	Cost	of	Unquoted	Investments	` 100 (` 100) 0.00 0.00

nOte 4 OtHeR nOn-CURRent ASSetS

` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
Unsecured, Considered Good:
a. Capital Advances 1,374.10 493.00
b. Deposits 770.53 713.93
c. CSR	expenses	-	Excess	spent 190.19  - 
d. Other Long Term Advances 512.48  - 

2,847.30 1,206.93
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nOte 5 InVentORIeS

` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
Valued at Cost or net Realisable Value, whichever is lower
a. Raw Materials 3,264.61 4,351.03
b. Work-in-progress 2,988.37 3,615.19
c. Finished Goods 7,456.43 8,288.18
d. Stock-in-trade (goods acquired for trading) 288.57 288.57
e. Stores, Spares & Packing 2,849.13 2,586.39
f. Provision for obsolescence of non-moving stores (71.23) (54.42)

2,777.90 2,531.97
16,775.88 19,074.94

nOte 6 CURRent FInAnCIAL ASSetS - InVeStMentS

` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
Valued at Cost or net Realisable Value, whichever is lower
a. UBI	 Union	 Dynamic	 Bond	 Fund-	 Growth	 at	 	 fair	 value	 1,35,521.388	 units	 

(PY 1,35,521.388 units) - Cost ` 22,00,000/-(PY ` 22,00,000/-)
26.06 25.38

b. UBI	 Union	 Small	 Cap	 Fund	 Regular	 plan-	 Growth	 at	 	 fair	 value	 1,76,120.314	 units	 
(PY 1,76,120.314 units)  - Cost ` 23,33,906.58/- (PY ` 23,33,906.58/-)

51.07 37.27

c. UBI	 Union	 Flexi	 Cap	 Fund	 Growth	 plan-	 Growth	 at	 	 fair	 value	 48,645.340	 units	 
(PY	35,029.634	Units)	-	Cost	` 11,99,875/- (PY ` 7,99,900/- )

15.96 9.39

d. UBI	 Union	 Large	 Cap	 Fund	 Regular	 plan-	 Growth	 at	 	 fair	 value	 1,876.173	 units	 
(PY 1,876.173 units)  - Cost ` 20,000/- (PY ` 20,000/-)

0.31 0.26

e. UBI	Union	Corporate	Bond	Fund	Regular	Plan	Growth	at	fair	Value	4,20,412.194	Units	
(PY NIL) - Cost ` 51,03,344/- (PY ` NIL)

52.59  -   

f. UBI-Union	Corporate	Bond	Fund	Regular	plan	-	8,02,715	(Nil)	Units,	Cost	` 1,00,00,000 
(` Nil)

100.40  -   

246.39 72.30

disclosures:
` in Lakhs

As at  
31st March, 2022

As at  
31st March, 2021

Aggregate amount of Cost of Quoted Investments 208.57 53.54
Aggregate amount of market value of quoted investments 246.39 72.30

Investments	in	UBI	-	Union	corporate	bond	fund	-	regular	plan	(8,02,715)	units	is	under	lien	with	union	bank	of	india	against	BG/LC	issued	

nOte 7 CURRent FInAnCIAL ASSetS -tRAde ReCeIVABLeS

` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
a. Trade Receivables Considered Good; secured - -
b. Trade Receivables Considered Good; unsecured 19,083.27 11,569.15
c. Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk  -  - 
d. Trade Receivables - Credit impaired  -  - 

Less:  Allowance for expected credit losses - -
19,083.27 11,569.15
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trade receivables ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2022
` in Lakhs

Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment
Less than 

6 months*
6 months 
to 1year

1year to  
2 years

2 years to  
3 years

More than  
3 years

total

Undisputed	trade	receivables	
a. Considered good 18,866.11 81.10 79.94  - 56.12 19,083.27
b. Which have significant increase in credit risk  -  -  -  -  -  - 
c. Credit impaired  -  -  -  -  -  - 

trade receivables ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2021
` in Lakhs

Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment
Less than 

6 months*
6 months 
to 1year

1year to  
2 years

2 years to  
3 years

More than  
3 years

total

Undisputed	trade	receivables	
a. Considered good 11,051.59 478.41 11.84 27.31  - 11,569.15
b. Which have significant increase in credit risk  -  -  -  -  -  - 
c. Credit impaired  -  -  -  -  -  - 

*Includes amounts not yet due for payment

nOte 8 CURRent FInAnCIAL ASSetS - CASH And CASH eQUIVALentS

` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
a. Cash on Hand 6.07 3.68
b. Cheques, drafts on hand  -  - 
c. Balances with Banks 27.45 28.74
d. Others  -  - 

33.52 32.42

nOte 9 CURRent FInAnCIAL ASSetS - BAnK BALAnCeS OtHeR tHAn ABOVe

` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
a. Margin Money Deposit in Banks against LCs & BGs 1,489.96 1,023.97
b. Unpaid	Dividend	Accounts 10.01 12.53

1,499.97 1,036.50

nOte 10 CURRent FInAnCIAL ASSetS - OtHeR FInAnCIAL ASSetS

` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
a. Salary and other Advances recoverable in cash or kind 39.90 29.25
b. Interest Receivable 28.88 36.21
c. Derivative Financial Instruments - Asset  - 0.12
d. TDS Receivable from NBFCS 10.04 8.88

78.82 74.46

nOte 11 OtHeR CURRent ASSetS

` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
a. Advances to Suppliers 2,034.50 1,712.36
b. Balances with Government Authorities 1,140.83 1,233.97
c. Prepaid	Expenses 539.22 102.29
d. CSR	Expenses	-	Excess	spent 133.29  - 

3,847.84 3,048.62
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nOte 12 ASSetS CLASSIFIed AS HeLd FOR SALe

` in Lakhs

As at  
31st March, 2022

As at  
31st March, 2021

Assets classified as held for sale 190.00  -   

190.00  -   

disclosures:

The Group intends to dispose off freehold land, it no longer utilises in the next 12 months. No impairment loss have been recognised on 

reclassification of such assets as held for sale, as the Company expects that the fair value less costs to sell is higher than the related carrying 

value.

nOte 13 eQUItY SHARe CApItAL

` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
Authorised Share Capital

1,50,00,000 of equity shares of ` 10 par value 1,500.00 1,500.00
1,500.00 1,500.00

Issued, Subscribed and Fully paid-up Capital
At the beginning of the year
1,19,46,020 of equity shares of ` 10 par value 1,194.60 1,194.60
At the end of the year
1,19,46,020 of equity shares of ` 10 par value 1,194.60 1,194.60

1,194.60 1,194.60

disclosures:

1.  The Company has only one class of equity shares at a par value of ̀  10. All the equity shares carry equal rights and obligations including 
for dividend and with respect to voting rights.

2. Names of shareholders holding more than 5% of the Share capital and their shareholding.

 eQUItY SHAReS

As at  
31st March, 2022

As at  
31st March, 2021

1 Sri. Ch. Krishna Murthy - No of Shares  62,19,790  62,19,790 
     - % held 52.07%  52.07% 

2 Smt. Ch. Manjula  - No of Shares  16,14,048  16,14,048 
     - % held 13.51% 13.51%

3 Sri. Ch. Siddartha  - No of Shares  11,25,668  11,25,668 
     - % held 9.42% 9.42%

3. promoters’ Shareholding

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year % change during 
the yearS. no. name of the promoter no of shares % of total shares

1 Sri. Ch. Krishna Murthy 62,19,790 52.07% Nil
2 Smt. Ch. Manjula 16,14,048 13.51% Nil
3 Sri. Ch. Siddartha 11,25,668 9.42% Nil
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nOte 15 nOn-CURRent FInAnCIAL LIABILItIeS - BORROwInGS

` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
A. Secured: 
1. Term Loans:

 From Banks 10,031.15 7,324.18
2. Long Term Maturities of Finance Lease Obligations:

 From Banks 196.34 164.46
B. Unsecured: 
1. Business Loans

 From Banks 3.10 5.27
 From NBFC'S 42.87  -   
Loans and Advances from Related parties:

2. Loans from promoter directors (at amortised cost) 2,699.79 2,231.34
3. Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares 7,663.75 7,663.75

76637500, 7% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of ` 10/- par value each 
4. Inter corporate Deposits  -   101.85

20,637.00 17,490.85

disclosures:
I. Loans of Holding Company:
A. Secured
 (i) term loans from Banks

S. 
no.

name of the 
Lender

period of 
maturity

Loan 
amount 

outstanding

no. of 
instalments 
outstanding

Rate of 
Interest

Overdue 
amount 

and period

Security

1 State Bank of 
India (FCTL) 

Nov-2023 1,460.71 7 SOFR Plus 3% 
p.a.

- Term Loans from banks represents 
loans from Consortium of Bankers - 
State Bank of India, Indian Overseas 
Bank	 and	 Union	 Bank	 of	 India.	 Term	
Loans are secured by charge on the 
assets acquired out of the term loan 
and charge on entire existing movable/ 
immovable assets of the Company. 
The above loans are further secured 
by personal guarantee of promoter 
directors and others. All the above 
securities rank in all respects pari passu 
amongst the consortium of bankers.

2 Union	Bank	of	
India (TL-III)

Feb-2024 500.78 8 1 Yr MCLR 
Plus 3% p.a.

-

3 Union	Bank	of	
India (e-AB - 
FCTL )

Mar-2024 1,281.84 8 SOFR Plus 
3.31% p.a.

-

4 Union	Bank	of	
India (FCTL)

Feb-2024 862.42 8 SOFR Plus 
3.31% p.a.

-

5 State Bank of 
India	(ECLGS	2.0)	

Jan-2026 1,447.39 46 6 Months 
MCLR Plus 1% 

p.a.

-

6 State Bank of 
India  
(ECLGS	2.0	Ext)	

Nov-2027 875.87 48 6 Months 
MCLR Plus 1% 

p.a.

- For	 Emergency	Credit	 Line	Guarantee	
System	-2	(ECLGS-2)	term	loans	availed	
from Consortium of Bankers - State 
Bank of India, Indian Overseas Bank and 
Union	 Bank	 of	 India.	 Term	 Loans	 are	
secured by 2nd charge on the current 
assets and fixed assets of the comapny. 
The above loans are further secured 
by personal guarantee of promoter 
directors and their personal assets i.e. 
land, plots, building and shares etc.,. All 
the above securities rank in all respects 
pari passu amongst the consortium of 
bankers.

7 Union	Bank	of	
India	(ECLGS	2.0)

Nov-2025 1,342.58 44 1 Yr MCLR 
Plus 0.60% 

p.a.

-

8 Union	Bank	of	
India	(ECLGS	2.0	
Ext)

Nov-2027 1,328.00 48 1 Yr MCLR 
Plus 0.60% 

p.a.

-

9 Indian Overseas 
Bank	(ECLGS	2.0)

Dec-2025 445.31 45 1 Yr MCLR 
Plus 1% p.a.

-

10 Indian Overseas 
Bank	(ECLGS	2.0	
Ext)	

Nov-2027 237.00 48 1 Yr MCLR 
Plus 1% p.a.

-

 (ii)  ‘Hire purchase Loans (Holding and Subsidiary Companies)

   The hire purchase loans are secured against the assets purchased out of those loans. The net carrying amount  of  assets acquired 

on hire purchase as on 31st March, 2022 is ` 352.04 Lakhs (31st March, 2021: ` 312.58 Lakhs). The Company had capitalised the 
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assets at their fair value considering that the hire purchase agreements are in the nature of Finance Lease. The details are as 

follows:-

` in Lakhs
particulars As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
Minimum Lease payments outstanding 

Within one Year  157.74  122.03 
Later than one year and not later than five years  225.61  176.23 

Future Interest on outstanding Lease payments
Within one Year  25.14  17.36 
Later than one year and not later than five years  29.26  11.77 

present Value of Minimum Lease payments
Within one Year  132.60  104.67 
Later than one year and not later than five years  196.35  164.46 

B) Unsecured Loans:
 Loans from promoter directors:
  The loans from promoter Directors are interest-free and unsecured in nature. There are no specified terms and conditions, however the 

same are amortised using effective interest rate.

C) Cumulative Redeemable preference Shares
  During the financial year 2017-18, the Company has issued and allotted 7,66,37,500 7% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares 

(CRPS) of face value of ` 10/- each aggregating ` 76,63,75,000/- to the existing 7% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shareholders in 
lieu of their existing 4,75,00,000 7% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of face value of ̀  10/- each aggregating ̀  47,50,00,000/- 
and the outstanding accumulated dividend thereon up to 31st March, 2017 amounting to ` 29,13,75,000. The redemption tenure has 
also been extended from 10 to 15 years and are now redeemable by 31st March, 2033. During the year, preference shareholders have 
given their consent to forego entire 6% preference dividend amounting ` 4,59,82,500/- for the financial year 2021-22

As at  
31st March, 2022

As at  
31st March, 2021

1 Sri. Ch. Krishna Murthy - No of Shares  7,11,21,750  7,11,21,750 
     - % held 92.80% 92.80%

2 Smt. Ch. Manjula  - No of Shares  52,71,250  52,71,250 
     - % held 6.88% 6.88%

3 Sri. Ch. Siddartha   - No of Shares  2,44,500  2,44,500 
     - % held 0.32% 0.32%

II. Loans of Subsidiary Company:

A. Secured loans:

 (i) term loans from Banks

S. 
no.

name of the 
Lender

period of 
maturity

Loan 
amount 

outstanding

no. of 
instalments 
outstanding

Rate of 
Interest

Overdue 
amount 

and period

Security

1 Union	Bank	of	
India  (TL- `) 

May-2022 9.64 1 1 Yr MCLR 
Plus 4% p.a.

 -   The above loans are secured primarily 
by equitable mortgage on the fixed 
assets including land & buildings, plant 
and machinery and furniture & fittings 
of the Company and the loan has been 
guaranteed by personal guarantees of 
Mr. Ch. Siddartha, Managing Director 
and	 Mrs.	 Ch.	 Manjula,	 Executive	
Director of the Company and Mr. 
Ch. Krishna Murthy, Director of the 
holding Company-Vishnu Chemicals 
Limited. Further, the loan has been 
secured by pledge of 3,44,000 shares 
of Vishnu Chemicals Limited held by  
Mr. Ch. Krishnamurthy.

2 Union	Bank	of	
India (TL - FCTL) 

May-2022 36.60 1 SOFR Plus 
4.5% p.a.

 -   

3 Union	Bank	of	
India (TL- `) 

Dec-2028 1,229.15 24 1 Yr MCLR 
Plus 4% p.a.

 -   

4 Union	Bank	of	
India (TL - FCTL) 

Dec-2028 2,052.94 24 SOFR Plus 3% 
p.a.

 -   
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B. Unsecured loans:

 i) Business loans:

  (i)  The above unsecured business loans from various NBFC’s, carries interest rate ranging from  17.00% to 18.00% p.a. The loans 
are repayable in 18/24 monthly equal installments and the last installment of loan is in the month of August 2023. The 
aggregate amount of installments outstanding (including current maturities presented in Note 20 below) as on 31st March, 
2022 is ` 193.54 Lakhs (31st March, 2021 ` 139.09 Lakhs). There are no overdue installments or interest payable.

  (ii)  The above unsecured business loans from HDFC bank and IDFC First bank, carry interest rate of 17.60% and 16.50% p.a. The 
loans are repayable in 24/36 monthly equal installments and the last installment of respective loans fall due in the month 
of	 and	 June	 2022	 and	 January,	 2023.	The	 aggregate	 amount	 of	 installments	 outstanding	 (including	 current	maturities	
presented in Note 20 below) as on 31st March, 2022 is ` 66.88 Lakhs (31st March, 2021 ` 40.93 Lakhs). There are no overdue 
installments or interest payable.

nOte 16 LeASe LIABILItIeS

` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
Lease	liabilities	on	ROU	assets 82.58  -   

82.58  -   

nOte 17 nOn-CURRent pROVISIOnS

` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
Provision	for	Employee	Benefits	(Net	of	Fund	Assets) 267.58 400.33

267.58 400.33

nOte 18 deFeRRed tAX LIABILItIeS (net)

` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
1. deferred tax Liability

Property,	Plant	and	Equipment 4,358.59 3,750.08
2. deferred tax Assets

Provisions allowable on payment basis 60.84 79.46
Net Deferred Tax Liability 4,297.75 3,670.62

disclosures:

The Company has provided for Deferred Tax in accordance with the Accounting Standard on “Income Taxes” (Ind AS 12) issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

The gross movement in the deferred income tax account for the financial years ended 31st March, 2022 and 31st March, 2021, is as follows -

` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
a. Net deferred tax liability at the beginning  3,670.62  3,962.86 
b. Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes  656.69  228.67 
c. Provisions allowable on payment basis  (15.80)  14.91 
d. Temporary differences on Other Comprehensive Income  (13.76)  6.83 
e. Deferred tax liability (net) reversal due to new tax rate adoption  -    (1,328.51)
f. MAT	Credit	Entitlement  -    785.86 
net deferred tax liability at the end  4,297.75  3,670.62 
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` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
Security Deposits 1,523.76 3,338.22

1,523.76 3,338.22

nOte 20 CURRent FInAnCIAL LIABILItIeS - BORROwInGS

` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
A. Secured:

Loans repayable on demand
From Banks 
a. Working capital - Cash Credit 11,981.98 12,449.25

B. Unsecured:
a. Loans from Promoter Directors 6.14 160.14
b. Inter Corporate Deposits 329.01 327.55
c. Other Short Term obligations  - 195.51

 Current maturities of long term debt 3,034.36 2,685.02
 Current maturities of finance lease obligations 347.05 243.76

15,698.54 16,061.23

disclosures:

I. Loans of Holding Company:

A) Secured Loans:

 1.  The Rate of interest for loans repayable on demand from consortium of banks ranges from MCLR+2.75% to +5.00%. The rate of 

Interest on convertible FCNRB demand loan ranges from Libor+250 to 400 basis points per annum.

 2. Interest rate for the Bill Discounting facility ranges from 6.65% to 7.50%

 3. Security:

	 	 	Working	Capital	Loans	from	Consortium	Bankers	consisting	of	State	Bank	of	India,	Union	Bank	of	India,	Indian	Overseas	Bank	and	

Andhra Bank are secured by first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation of inventories, book debts and other current assets 

of the Company, and second pari passu charge on the fixed assets of the Company. The directors have extended their personal 

assets as securities i.e. land, plots, buildings, shares etc.

 4. Guarantees:

  All the above loans are guaranteed by the Promoter Directors.

B) Unsecured Loans:

  Loans from Promoter Directors disclosed here are short term in nature. There are no specified terms and conditions.

II. Loans of Subsidiary Company

 A) Secured loans:

  Cash Credit:

	 a)	 	The	above	cash	credit	from	Union	Bank	of	India	is	repayable	on	demand	and	carries	interest	rate	of	1	year	MCLR+2.80%.

 b)  The cash credit is secured by hypothecation of all stocks and book debts of the Company and the loan has been guaranteed by 

personal	guarantee	of	Mr.	Ch.	Siddartha,	Managing	Director	and	Mrs.	Ch.	Manujula	Executive	Director	of	the	Company	and	Mr.	

Ch. Krishna Murthy Director of the holding Company Vishnu Chemicals Limited. Further, the loan has been secured by pledge of 

3,44,000 shares of Vishnu Chemicals Limited held by Mr. Ch. Krishna Murthy.

nOteS tO tHe COnSOLIdAted FInAnCIAL StAteMentS 
FOR tHe YeAR ended 31St MARCH, 2022 (COntd.)
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nOte 21 CURRent FInAnCIAL LIABILItIeS - tRAde pAYABLeS

` in Lakhs

As at  
31st March, 2022

As at  
31st March, 2021

Trade	payables	-	Due	to	Micro	Small	and	Medium	Enterprises 28.59 60.74

Trade payables - Other parties 17,023.27 13,600.53

Trade payables - Related parties 98.06 39.72

17,149.92 13,700.99

disclosures:

 The principal amount remaining unpaid as at 31st March, 2022 in respect of enterprises covered under the Micro, Small and Medium 

Enterprises	Development	Act,	2006	(MSMED)	is	` 28.39 Lakhs (31st March, 2021 ` 56.25 Lakhs). The interest amount computed based on the 

provisions	under	Section	16	of	the	MSMED	is	` 0.20 Lakhs (31st March, 2021 ` 4.49 Lakhs)

	The	list	of	undertakings	covered	under	MSMED	was	determined	by	the	Company	on	the	basis	of	information	available	with	it	after	getting	

confirmation from Suppliers.

trade paybles ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2022

` in Lakhs

Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment

Less than 1 
year*

1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than  
3 years

total

Undisputed	trade	payables

a. MSME  28.42  -    0.18  -   28.60

b. Others 16,571.43 542.18 7.71  -   17,121.32

c. Disputed	dues	-	MSME  -    -    -    -    -   

d. Disputed dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -   

trade paybles ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2021

` in Lakhs

Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment

Less than 1 
year*

1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than  
3 years

total

Undisputed	trade	payables

a. MSME  40.18  20.56  -    -   60.74

b. Others 13,221.16 310.43 6.59  2.07 13,540.25

c. Disputed	dues	-	MSME  -    -    -    -    -   

d. Disputed dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -   

*Includes amounts not yet due for payment

nOte 22 LeASe LIABILItIeS

` in Lakhs

As at  
31st March, 2022

As at  
31st March, 2021

Lease	liabilities	on	ROU	assets 62.66  -   

62.66  -   

nOteS tO tHe COnSOLIdAted FInAnCIAL StAteMentS 
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nOte 23 OtHeR CURRent FInAnCIAL LIABILItIeS

` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
Cumulative	Unpaid	Preference	Dividend 76.64 332.50
Dividend Distribution Tax on Preference Dividend  -   676.61
Interest on Dividend Distribution Tax Payable  -   238.99
Interest Payable to others 0.49  -   
Unclaimed	dividends 10.00 12.53
Derivative Financial Instruments - Liability 55.25 71.16

142.38 1,331.79

nOte 24 OtHeR CURRent LIABILItIeS

` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
Advance from Customers 1,186.70 621.29
Creditors	for	Capital	Expenditure 338.99 213.36
Advances received against sale of Capital Assets 410.00 210.00
Advance from others 6.99 7.23
Statutory dues Payable 259.63 296.52

2,202.31 1,348.40

nOte 25 CURRent pROVISIOnS

` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
Provision	for	Employee	Benefits	(Net	of	Fund	Assets) 44.95 49.38

44.95 49.38

nOte 26 CURRent tAX LIABILItIeS

` in Lakhs
As at  

31st March, 2022
As at  

31st March, 2021
Provision for Income Tax (Net of TDS) 1,695.12 280.90

1,695.12 280.90

nOteS tO tHe COnSOLIdAted FInAnCIAL StAteMentS 
FOR tHe YeAR ended 31St MARCH, 2022 (COntd.)
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nOte 27 ReVenUe FROM OpeRAtIOnS

` in Lakhs
For the year ended 

31st March, 2022
For the year ended 

31st March, 2021
1. Sale of Products 1,06,587.61 67,176.15
2. Other Operating Revenues

a. Sale of Scrap 158.22 140.31
b. Testing Charges 44.25 53.49
c. Export	Incentives 110.10 498.14

312.57 691.94
1,06,900.18 67,868.09

nOte 28 OtHeR InCOMe

` in Lakhs
For the year ended 

31st March, 2022
For the year ended 

31st March, 2021
1. Interest Income

a. Interest Income on bank and other deposits 66.08 81.67
b. Amortised Interest on Deposits/Loans 118.36 89.78

2. Other Non-Operating Income
a. Insurance Claim Received 17.79 12.72
b. Profit on Sale of Investments (net) 3.64 0.77
c. Net Loss on Foreign Currency Transaction & Translation 348.19 39.02
d. Other Income 0.56 3.66
e. Fair value gain on Investments (net) 20.63 28.20
f. Profit on Sale of property, plant and equipment 0.50 26.48

575.75 282.30

nOte  29 COSt OF MAteRIAL COnSUMed

` in Lakhs

For the year ended 
31st March, 2022

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

Opening Stock 4,351.03 5,049.76

Add: Purchase 38,892.83 26,860.78

total 43,243.86 31,910.54
Less: Closing Stock 3,264.61 4,351.03

39,979.25 27,559.51

nOte  30 COSt OF COnSUMABLeS

` in Lakhs

For the year ended 
31st March, 2022

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

 Consumption of Petcoke 3,561.25 1,598.14

 Consumption of Furnace Oil 3,638.85 2,459.53

 Consumption of Husk 655.28 539.40

 Consumption of Coal 6,802.98 3,269.46

 Consumption of LDO/Kerosene 828.66 600.65

15,487.02 8,467.18

nOteS tO tHe COnSOLIdAted FInAnCIAL StAteMentS 
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nOte 31 CHAnGeS In InVentORIeS OF FInISHed GOOdS,wORK-In-pROGReSS And StOCK-In-tRAde

` in Lakhs

For the year ended 
31st March, 2022

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

1. Finished Goods

a. Opening Stock: 8,288.18 9,635.99

b. Closing Stock: 7,456.43 8,288.18

831.75 1,347.81

2. work-in-progress

a. Opening Stock: 3,615.19 3,484.87

b. Closing Stock: 2,988.36 3,615.19

626.83  (130.32)

3 Stock-in-trade

a. Opening Stock: 288.57 288.57

b. Closing Stock: 288.57 288.57

 -    -   

Total Decrease / (Increase) 1,458.58 1,217.49

nOte 32 eMpLOYee BeneFItS eXpenSe

` in Lakhs

For the year ended 
31st March, 2022

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

Salaries & Wages 3,683.08 2,968.95

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 252.45 224.81

Staff	Welfare	Expenses 214.17 235.05

4,149.70 3,428.81

nOte 33 FInAnCe COStS

` in Lakhs

For the year ended 
31st March, 2022

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

Interest	Expense 1,641.81 1,904.10

Interest on Others 208.92 184.24

Unwinding	of	Interest/Discount	on	Financial	Instruments 343.58 272.26

Other Borrowing Costs 338.57 236.55

Preference Dividend 76.64  -   

2,609.52 2,597.15

nOte 34 pOweR COSt

` in Lakhs

For the year ended 
31st March, 2022

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

Power Charges 4,541.94 3,136.24

4,541.94 3,136.24

nOteS tO tHe COnSOLIdAted FInAnCIAL StAteMentS 
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nOte 35 MAnUFACtURInG eXpenSeS

` in Lakhs

For the year ended 
31st March, 2022

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

Equipment	Hire	Charges 777.69 694.94

Consumption of Stores & Spares 2,495.19 2,099.11

Repairs & Maintenance - Buildings 237.78 119.73

Repairs & Maintenance - P & M 836.92 688.76

Labour costs 1,821.10 906.16

Factory/Godown Maintenance 616.01 429.60

Effluent	Disposal	Expenses 2,061.48 1,810.51

Goods Movement Charges 732.47 675.39

9,578.64 7,424.20

nOte 36 SeLLInG & AdMInIStRAtIVe eXpenSeS

` in Lakhs

For the year ended 
31st March, 2022

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

Labour costs 43.22 29.22

Insurance 352.83 288.79

Packing Charges 2,596.44 1,877.03

Shipping & forwarding Charges 8,719.25 4,110.66

Other Selling Cost 464.47 374.07

Rent 787.60 805.77

Rates & Taxes 144.59 124.89

Bank charges 192.24 131.16

Net Loss on Foreign Currency Transaction & Translation  -   119.39

Travelling, Vehicle Maintenance & Conveyance 406.45 211.90

Professional & Consultancy Charges 331.13 253.23

Security Charges 112.99 100.66

Miscellaneous	Expenses 415.06 324.11

14,566.27 8,750.88

disclosures:

Payment to statutory auditors

` in Lakhs

For the year ended 
31st March, 2022

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

The details of payment to statiutory auditors included in Professional & Consultancy 

charges above, are given below 

a. As an auditor - Statutory audit fee  16.50  13.50 

b. For taxation matters & Tax audit fee  5.25  3.50 

c. For comapany law matters  -    -   

d. For other services  4.60  3.45 

e. For reimbursement of expenses  -    -   

 26.35  20.45 

nOteS tO tHe COnSOLIdAted FInAnCIAL StAteMentS 
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nOte 37 CORpORAte SOCIAL ReSpOnSIBILItY eXpenSeS

` in Lakhs
For the year ended 

31st March, 2022
For the year ended 

31st March, 2021
CSR	Expenses	 66.52 138.87

66.52 138.87
a. Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 66.52 55.68
b. Amount Spent during the year on the above 66.52 138.87
c. Shortfall at the end of the year  -    -   
d. Total of previous year shortfall Nil Nil
e. Reason for shortfall  Not Appliable  Not Appliable 
f. Nature of activity  * see note below  * see note below 
g. Details of related party tranactions

 Contribution to a trust controlled by the Company in relation to Company 389.36 138.00
(i) Applicable for the current year 66.52  -   
(ii)	 Excess	amount	contributed	for	future	settoff	 323.48  -   

h. where a povision is made with respect to laibility incurred-movement in the provision 

needs to be disclosed separately

 -    -   

* Note: 

Construction of old-age home through Krishna Foundation, a registered public charitable Trust

nOte 38 tAX eXpenSe

` in Lakhs

For the year ended 
31st March, 2022

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

a. Current Tax  2,458.55  386.74 

b. Tax Pertaining to earlier years  (5.26)  (136.84)

c. MAT Reversal  -    785.86 

d. Deferred Tax Prior period  -    (1,328.51)

e. Deferred Tax current year  640.78  243.58 

 3,094.07  (49.17)

nOte 39 GROUp:

Vishnu Chemicals Limited has two 100% wholly owned subsidiaries – Vishnu Barium Private Limited in India and Vishnu South Africa (Pty) 

Limited in South Africa. Vishnu South Africa (Pty) Limited, incorporated in financial year 2017-18 is yet to commence operations. Vishnu 

Chemicals Limited invested Rand 1,000 in equity share capital during the financial year 2019-20.

nOteS tO tHe COnSOLIdAted FInAnCIAL StAteMentS 
FOR tHe YeAR ended 31St MARCH, 2022 (COntd.)



144Vishnu ChemiCals limiTeD

nOteS tO tHe COnSOLIdAted FInAnCIAL StAteMentS 
FOR tHe YeAR ended 31St MARCH, 2022 (COntd.)

nOte 40 COntInGent LIABILItIeS And COMMItMentS (tO tHe eXtent nOt pROVIded FOR): 

` in Lakhs

S. 
no.

particulars As on  
31st March, 2022

As on  
31st March, 2021

1 Contingent Liabilities:   

Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debt   

a.  Claims arising from disputes not acknowledged as debts-Sales Tax (against 

which Pre-deposit of ` 146.79 Lakhs made (P.Y. Pre-deposit ` 146.79 Lakhs)

204.52 204.52

b.  Claims arising from disputes not acknowledged as debts-Service Tax (against 

which Pre-deposit of ` 17.55 Lakhs made (P.Y. Pre-deposit ` 17.55 Lakhs)

652.62 652.62

c.  Fuel surcharge adjustment expense pertaining to the period from April, 2008 

to March, 2010 was not recognised as the collection of the same was stayed by 

Honorable High Court of Andhra Pradesh, which is still pending for disposal.

27.38 27.38

d.	 	The	 Recovery	 Officer,	 Employee	 State	 Insurance	 Corporation,	 has	 raised	 a	

demand to pay arrears along with interest. A writ petition was filed against the 

same in the Honorable High court of Andhra Pradesh and is contesting the 

aforesaid matter.

  Based on internal assessment and legal advice, the Management strongly 

believes that matter will be decided in its favour.

21.48 21.48

e.	 	The	Assistant	Commissioner	 (CT),	LTU,	Chittoor	Division,	Andhra	Pradesh	has	

raised a demand of `	7.51	Lakhs	for	the	period	June	2017	towards	excess	Input	

Tax Credit availed and an equivalent amount towards penalty (against which 

pre-deposit of ` 0.94 Lakhs made)

15.02 15.02

f. Guarantees excluding financial guarantees 66.48 21.79

2 Commitments:   

a.	 	Estimated	amount	of	contracts	remaining	to	be	executed	on	capital	account	

and not provided for

2,241.55 1,609.58

nOte 41 SeGMent RepORtInG:

As the Group is engaged in manufacture and sale of chemicals, the same has been identified as the sole operating segment.

Details of Revenue from manufacture and sale of chemicals by location of Customers:

` in Lakhs

Geographic Location 2021-22 2020-21

Revenue Revenue

Domestic 52,079.70 33,118.75

Overseas 54,507.91 34,057.40

Details of Non-Current Assets*

` in Lakhs

Geographic Location As on  
31st March, 2022

As on  
31st March, 2021

Domestic 49,713.70 42,349.75

Overseas - -

*Non-current assets exclude financial instruments, deferred tax assets, post-employment benefit assets and rights under insurance contracts.
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nOte 42 ReLAted pARtY dISCLOSUReS:

a) details of Related parties:
Sl no name of the Related party nature of Relationship
1 Mr. Ch. Krishna Murthy Chairman and Managing Director, Key Managerial Personnel
2 Mrs. Ch. Manjula Non-executive	Director	(Executive	Director	in	Subsidiary	Vishnu	Barium	Private	Limited)
3 Mr. Ch. Siddartha Joint	Managing	Director,	Key	Managerial	Personnel
4 Mr. P. Anjaneyulu Chief Financial Officer, Key Managerial Personnel
5 Mr. Kishore Kathri Company Secretary, Key Managerial Personnel
6 Mr. Pradip Saha Independent Director (retired on 9th  November, 2021)
7 Mr. Tirthankar Mitra Independent Director  (Non-executive director in Subsidiary Vishnu Barium Private Limited)
8 Mr. Chetan Shah Independent Director (appointed on 12th February, 2021)
9 Mr. V. Vimalanand Independent Director (appointed on 31st  December, 2021)
10 Mr. S. Saranathan Independent Director (retired on 2nd February, 2021)
11 Santanu Mukherjee Independent Director (retired on 8th October, 2021) in Subsidiary Vishnu Barium Private Limited
12 M/s. Vasantha Transport Corporation Concern in which Key Managerial Personnel is interested
13 M/s. K.M.S. Infrastructure Private Limited Concern in which Key Managerial Personnel are interested
14 M/s. Vishnu Life Sciences Limited Concern in which Key Managerial Personnel is interested
15 M/s. Vishnu Barium Private Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary
16 M/s. Vishnu South Africa (Pty) Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary
17 M/s. Krishna Foundation Trust in which directors are Trustees and the Company is the settlor

b) details of transactions:
` in Lakhs

nature of transaction Key Managerial 
personnel

Concerns in which Key 
Managerial personnel are 

Interested
2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21

expenses
Remuneration 286.83 229.18
Rent	Expenses 72.24 49.47 10.00 19.50
Maintenance Charges - 8.76
Transportation, CHA services and hire charges 2,394.75 2,392.68
Purchases 225.82 -
Sales 111.73 -
Hire Charges 4.80 4.80 119.25 112.40
Contract Service Charges - 37.58
Receipts & payments, payables & Receivables Outstanding at year end
Unsecured	Loan	from	Promoter	Directors	during	the	year 208.28 35.00 - -
Unsecured	Loans	from	Promoter	Directors	outstanding	at	year	end 3,015.13 2,810.80 - -
Payables to KMP and Concerns in which KMP are interested 22.21 17.38 75.85 61.01

Note: The details of the transactions during the year as reported above are net of GST, where applicable.

As post-employment benefits are actuarially determined on overall basis, the amount pertaining to the Key Management personnel is not 

ascertainable and, therefore, not included above.

During the year, the Group has paid directors sitting fees to non-executive director and independent directors as under:

Sl. no. director name 2021-22 2020-21
1 Mrs. Ch. Manjula 1.00 0.60
2 Mr.  Pradip Saha 1.40 1.60
3 Mr.  Tirthankar Mitra 2.80 1.80

4 Mr. Chetan Shah 2.00 0.20
5 Mr. T.S.Appa Rao - 0.40
6 Mr. S. Saranathan - 0.20
7 Mr.Santanu Mukherjee 0.60 0.80
8 Mr. Vimalanand 0.60 -

total 8.40 5.60
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An amount of ` 389.36 Lakhs (Previous Year: ` 138.00 Lakhs) has been contributed to Krishna Foundation during the year towards Corporate 
Social Responsibility.

The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances 

at the year-end are unsecured.

nOte 43 The paid-up share capital of the Company as on financial year ended 31st March, 2022 and financial year ended 31st March, 2021 is  
`	8,858.35	Lakhs	divided	into	1,19,46,020	Equity	Shares	of	` 10/- each and 7,66,37,500 7% Cumulative Redeemable Preference 
Shares of `10/- each. The Public Shareholding in equity capital as on 31st March, 2022 and as on 31st March, 2021 is 25%.

The preference shareholders have given their consent to forego 6% preference dividend of the eligible 7% preference dividend 
amounting ` 459.83 Lakhs for the financial year 2021-22 and The preference shareholders have given their consent to forego 
7% preference dividend amounting ` 536.46 Lakhs for 2020-21.

nOte 44 eMpLOYee BeneFItS:

1. defined Contribution plan:

  The group makes contributions towards provident fund and employee state insurance regularly at the applicable rates based on the 
salaries of the eligible employees. The obligation of the group is limited to making the contributions and there is no further contractual or 

constructive obligation. The following are the details of contributions made during the year which are debited to Statement of Profit & Loss:

` in Lakhs
2021-22 2020-21

Contribution to Provident Fund 132.96 118.96
Contribution	to	Employee	State	Insurance 4.73 10.64

2. defined Benefit plan – Gratuity:

  The Parent Company and the Subsidiary Company (Vishnu Barium Private Limited) has identified the gratuity plan as the Defined Benefit 
Plan. The plan is funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India in the form of qualifying group gratuity insurance policies. The details 
of present value of obligation, fair value of plan assets, expense recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss and Other Comprehensive 

Income are given below:

` in Lakhs

Gratuity Gratuity
(Funded) (Funded)
2021-22 2020-21

1 Assumptions   

 Discount Rate 7.14%-7.36% 6.57%-6.74%

 Escalation 3%-5.50% 3%-5.50%

2 Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of defined Benefit 
obligation

 

 Present value of obligations at beginning of year 526.10 514.91

 Interest Cost 33.84 33.27

 Current Service Cost 49.08 46.21

 Benefits Paid (37.16) (44.95)

 Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligation 67.38 (23.33)

 Present Value of obligation at end of year 639.24 526.10

3 Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of plan assets  

 Opening fair value of plan asset 149.80 71.96

 Adjustment to opening Fair Value of Plan Asset (1.15) (2.37)

 Return on Plan Assets excl. interest income (1.37) 1.29

 Interest Income 10.46 5.14

 Contributions	by	Employer 194.66 118.73

 Benefits paid (37.16) (44.95)

 Fair Value of plan Assets at end 315.24 149.80

nOteS tO tHe COnSOLIdAted FInAnCIAL StAteMentS 
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` in Lakhs

Gratuity Gratuity
(Funded) (Funded)
2021-22 2020-21

4 net defined benefit asset/ (liability) recognised in the balance sheet   

 Present value of defined benefit obligation 639.24 526.10

 Fair Value of plan Assets at end of period 315.23 149.80

 Net Asset/(liability) recognised in the balance sheet. (324.01) (376.31)

5 expenses recognised in the statement of profit and Loss
 Current service cost 49.08 46.22

 Net interest 23.37 28.12

 Expense	recognised	in	the	statement	of	Profit	and	Loss 72.45 74.34

6 Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Actuarial gain/(loss) recognised for the period 67.38 (23.33)

Return on plan assets excluding net interest 1.37 (1.29)

Total actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised in OCI 68.75 (24.62)

 Sensitivity Analysis:

` in Lakhs

particulars 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

discount Rate Salary escalation Rate

+1% (1%) +1% (1%)

Present Value of Obligation 592.76 692.18 691.64 592.40

Categories of plan Assets:

` in Lakhs

particulars 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Gratuity Fund managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India 315.23 149.80

nOte 45 eARnInGS peR SHARe:

2021-22 2020-21
Net Profit after Tax (` in Lakhs) (a) 8,139.27 3,449.46

Weighted Average no. of Shares - Basic & Diluted (b) 1,19,46,020 1,19,46,020

Nominal value of equity share (in ` per share) 10 10

Earnings	per	Share	-	Basic	&	Diluted	(`) (a)/(b) 68.13 28.88

nOte 46 Un-HedGed FOReIGn CURRenCY eXpOSURe:

The details of foreign currency exposure at the end of the year which are not hedged by any derivative instruments are given below:

` in Lakhs

particulars Currency 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Amount in 

Foreign Currency
Amount in 

 Indian Rupees
Amount in 

foreign currency
Amount in  

Indian Rupees
Trade receivables USD 1,69,36,654 12,836.72 95,96,375 7,015.91

Trade receivables EURO 9,87,591 831.75 17,83,376 1,529.24

Trade payables USD (24,09,286) (1,826.06) (62,49,843) (4,569.26)

Secured loans USD (1,19,18,882) (9,033.62) (23,83,234) (1,742.38)

Secured loans EURO (8,27,400) (696.84) (16,67,958) (1,430.28)

nOteS tO tHe COnSOLIdAted FInAnCIAL StAteMentS 
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nOte 47 AnALYtICAL RAtIOS:

Sl. 
no

Ratio numerator denominator 2022 2021 Variance Remarks

1 Current Ratio (in 
times)

Total Current Assets Total Current 
Liabilities

1.13 1.07 5.96% -

2 Debt-equity ratio (in 
times)

Total Debt Shareholders	Equity 1.32 1.71 (22.97%) Increase was primarly on 
account of increase in profits

3 Debt service coverage 
ratio (in times)

Earnings	before	Debt	
service = Net profit 

after taxes + non Cash 
operating expenses 

+Interest + Other non 
cash adjustments (like loss 
on sale of fixed assets etc)

Debt service = 
Interest & lease 

payments + principle 
repayments

2.54 1.61 57.84% Increase was primarly on 
account of increase in profits

4 Return on equity ratio 
(in %)

Profit for the year Average	total	Equity 34.41% 19.37% 77.65% Increase was primarly on 
account of increase in profits

5 Inventory Turnover 
ratio (in times)

Revenue from operations Average total 
inventory

5.96 3.41 75.04% Increase was primarly on 
account of increase in revenue

6 Trade receivables 
turnover ratio (in times)

Revenue from operations Average trade 
receivables

6.97 6.57 6.23% -

7 Trade payables 
turnover

Raw material purchases 
+ Fuel purchase + Other 

expenses

Average trade 
payables

5.35 3.97 34.77 Increase was primarly on account 
of increase in raw material and 
other related expenses with 
proportionate revenue than 
average trade payables

8 Net capital turnover 
ratio 

Revenue from operations Average working 
capital (ie., Total 
current assets 

less Total current 
liabilities)

31.01 34.67 (10.58%) -

9 Net profit ratio (in %) Profit for the year Revenue from 
operations

7.61% 5.08% 49.80% Increase was primarly on 
account of increase in profits 
than increase in revenue 

10 Return on capital 
employed (in %)

Earning	before	tax	and	
finance cost

Capital employed = 
Net worth + Debt 

+ Deferred tax 
Liabilities

25.26% 13.00% 94.33% Increase was primarly on 
account of increase in profits

11 Return on Investment Income generated From 
invested Funds

Average 
invested funds in 

treasuryninvestments

859.20% 624.45% 37.59% Increase was primarly both on 
account of increase in revenue 
as well as profit of the subsidiary

nOte 48 AddItIOnAL InFORMAtIOn pURSUAnt tO pARAGRApH 2 OF dIVISIOn II OF SCHedULe III tO tHe COMpAnIeS 
ACt, 2013-‘GeneRAL InStRUCtIOnS FOR tHe pRepARAtIOn OF COnSOLIdAted FInAnCIAL StAteMentS’:

31st March, 2022 
` in Lakhs

S. 
no.

name of the entity net Assets Share in profit/ (Loss) Share in other 
comprehensive income

Share in total 
comprehensive income

As % of 
Consolidated 

net Assets

Amount As % of 
consolidated 
profit/ (loss)

Amount As % of 
consolidated 

other 
comprehensive 

income

Amount As % of 
consolidated 

total 
comprehensive 

income

Amount

1 Holding Company
Vishnu Chemicals 
Limited

78.07% 21,616.48 80.15% 6,523.90 72.51% 40.92 80.21% 6,482.98

2 Subsidiaries:
Indian Subsidiaries
Vishnu Barium Private 
Limited

24.73% 6,847.57 19.85% 1,615.38 27.49% 15.51 19.79% 1,599.87

Foreign Subsidiary
Vishnu South Africa 
(Pty) Limited

0.00% (0.04) 0.00% (0.01) 0.00% - 0.00% (0.01)

Less: Consolidation 
Adjustments

(2.80%) (777.67) 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% -

tOtAL 100.00% 27,687.34 100.00% 8,139.27 100.00% 56.43 100.00% 8,082.84
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financial statements

nOteS tO tHe COnSOLIdAted FInAnCIAL StAteMentS 
FOR tHe YeAR ended 31St MARCH, 2022 (COntd.)

31st March, 2021

` in Lakhs
S. 
no.

name of the entity net Assets Share in profit/ (Loss) Share in other 
comprehensive income

Share in total 
comprehensive income

As % of 
Consolidated 

net Assets

Amount As % of 
consolidated 
profit/ (loss)

Amount As % of 
consolidated 

other 
comprehensive 

income

Amount As % of 
consolidated 

total 
comprehensive 

income

Amount

1 Holding Company
Vishnu Chemicals 
Limited

77.21% 15,143.13 65.96% 2,275.32 128.29% 20.30 66.25% 2,295.62

2 Subsidiaries:
Indian Subsidiaries
Vishnu Barium Private 
Limited

26.75% 5,247.70 34.03% 1,173.96 (28.29%) (4.48) 33.75% 1,169.48

Vishnu Renewable 
Energy	Private	Limited

- - (0.02%) (0.77) - - (0.02%) (0.77)

Foreign Subsidiary
Vishnu South Africa 
(Pty) Limited

0.00% (0.04) (0.00%) (0.05) - - (0.00%) (0.05)

Less: Consolidation 
Adjustments

(3.96%) (776.67) 0.00% 1.00 - - 0.03% 1.00

tOtAL 100.00% 19,614.12 100.00% 3,449.46 100.00% 15.83 100.00% 3,465.29

nOte 49 Previous year’s figures are regrouped and reclassified wherever considered necessary to conform to the classification/

presentation of the current year.

As per our report of even date
For Jampani & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016581S

sd/- sd/- sd/-
trinadha Rao Marisetty Ch. Krishna Murthy Ch. Manjula
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Director
Membership No. 207990 DIN: 00030274 DIN: 01546339

sd/- sd/-
Place: Hyderabad p. Anjaneyulu Kishore Kathri 
Date: 16th May, 2022 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary & AGM-Legal

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16th May, 2022
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NOTICE is hereby given that the Twenty Ninth (29th) Annual 

General Meeting (AGM) of the members of Vishnu Chemicals 

Limited (‘VCL’) will be held on Friday, 15th July, 2022 at 2.30 P.M. IST 

via two-way video conferencing (‘VC’) facility or other audio visual 

means (‘OAVM’) to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. a)  To receive, consider and adopt the Audited 
Standalone Financial Statements of the Company 
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, 
together with the Reports of the Board of 
Directors and Auditors thereon.

 b)  To receive, consider and adopt the Audited 
Consolidated Financial Statements of the 
Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 
2022, together with the Report of the Auditors 
thereon.

2.  To declare dividend of ` 2/- per equity share of ` 10/- 
each (i.e. 20%) for the financial year ended 31st March, 
2022.

3.  To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Ch. Manjula (DIN: 
01546339), who retires by rotation and being eligible, 
offers herself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4.  To appoint Mr. Veeramachaneni Vimalanand (DIN: 
02693721) as an Independent Director of the Company.

  To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without 

modification(s), the following resolution as a Special 
Resolution:

   “RESOLVED THAT Mr. Veeramachaneni Vimalanand  

(DIN: 02693721) who was appointed as an Additional 

Director (for Non-Executive & Independent category) of the 

Company with effect from 31st December, 2021 by the Board 

and who holds office up to the date of the ensuing Annual 

General Meeting of the Company in terms of Section 161(1) 

and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 

2013 (‘the Act’) and Articles of Association of the Company, 

who is eligible for appointment, be and is hereby appointed 

as a Director of the Company.

CIN: L85200TG1993PLC046359

Regd. Off: Plot No. C-23, Road No. 8, Film Nagar, Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad – 500 096

Tel: 040-23396817, 23327723/ 29; Fax: 040-23314158

Website: www.vishnuchemicals.com; Email id: vishnu@vishnuchemicals.com

NOTICE OF TWENTY NINTH (29TH) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING  
OF VISHNU CHEMICALS LIMITED

  RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions 

of Sections 149 and 152 read with Schedule IV and other 

applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, the Companies 

(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, 

and Regulation 25(2A) and other applicable provisions, if any, 

of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) [including any 

statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof ] and 

the Articles of Association of the Company, the appointment 

of Mr. Veeramachaneni Vimalanand (DIN: 02693721), who 

has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria of 

independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and 

Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the 

Listing Regulations, as amended, and who is eligible for 

appointment as an Independent Director of the Company, 

not liable to retire by rotation, for a term of two (2) years with 

effect from 31st December, 2021 till 30th December, 2023 

(both days inclusive), be and is hereby approved.

  RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of 

the Company be and are hereby authorised to do all acts, 

deeds and things including filings and take steps as may be 

deemed necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this 

Resolution and matters incidental thereto”.

5.  To appoint Mrs. Sita Vanka (DIN: 07016012) as an 
Independent Director of the Company.

  To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without 

modification(s), the following resolution as a Special 
Resolution:

  “RESOLVED THAT Mrs. Sita Vanka (DIN: 07016012) who 

was appointed as an Additional Director (for Non-Executive 

& Independent category) of the Company with effect from 

16th May, 2022 by the Board and who holds office up to the 

date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company 

in terms of Section 161(1) and other applicable provisions, if 

any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), who is eligible 

for appointment, be and is hereby appointed as a Director  

of the Company.

  RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions 

of Sections 149 and 152 read with Schedule IV and other 

applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, the Companies 

http://www.vishnuchemicals.com


151 ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

Notice

NOTICE (CONTD.)

(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, 
and Regulation 25(2A) and other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) [including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof ] and 
the Articles of Association of the Company, the appointment 
of Mrs. Sita Vanka (DIN: 07016012), who has submitted a 
declaration that she meets the criteria of independence 
as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and Rules framed 
thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations, 
as amended, and who is eligible for appointment as an 
Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by 
rotation, for a term of three (3) years with effect from 16th 
May, 2022 till 15th May, 2025 (both days inclusive), be and is 
hereby approved.

  RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of 
the Company be and are hereby authorised to do all acts, 
deeds and things including filings and take steps as may be 
deemed necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this 
Resolution and matters incidental thereto”.

6.  To approve re-appointment of Mr. Tirthankar Mitra 
(DIN: 02675454) as an Independent Director of the 
Company.

  To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as a Special 
Resolution:

  “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Sections 149, 152 and any other applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 
read with Schedule IV to the Act and Regulation 25(2A) 
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) 
thereof for the time being in force), Mr. Tirthankar Mitra 
(DIN: 02675454), Independent Director of the Company, 
who has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria 
of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act 
and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 
who is eligible for reappointment, be and is hereby re-
appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to 
hold office for second term of three (3) consecutive years 
with effect from 14th August, 2022 till 13th August, 2025 
(both days inclusive) and whose office shall not be liable to  

retire by rotation.

  RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of 

the Company be and are hereby authorised to do all acts, 

deeds and things including filings and take steps as may be 

deemed necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this 

Resolution and matters incidental thereto”.

7.  To approve re-appointment of Mr. Chetan Navinchandra 
Shah (DIN: 08038633) as an Independent Director of 
the Company.

  To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as a Special 
Resolution:

  “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 

Sections 149, 152 and any other applicable provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the Companies 

(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 read 

with Schedule IV to the Act and Regulation 25(2A) and other 

applicable provisions, if any, of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including 

any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for 

the time being in force) Mr. Chetan Shah (DIN: 08038633), 

Independent Director of the Company, who has submitted 

a declaration that he meets the criteria of independence as 

provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) 

of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 and who is eligible for reappointment, 

be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director 

of the Company to hold office for second term of two (2) 

consecutive years with effect from 12th February, 2023 till 

11th February, 2025 (both days inclusive) and whose office 

shall not be liable to retire by rotation.

  RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of 

the Company be and are hereby authorised to do all acts, 

deeds and things including filings and take steps as may be 

deemed necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this 

Resolution and matters incidental thereto”.

8.  To approve increase in remuneration of Mr. Ch. Krishna 
Murthy (DIN: 00030274), Managing Director of the 
Company.

  To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 

modification(s), the following Resolution as a Special 
Resolution:

  “RESOLVED THAT supplement to the special resolution 
passed at 27th Annual General Meeting of the Company held 
on August 14, 2020 for re-appointment of Mr. Ch. Krishna 
Murthy as Managing Director of the Company and pursuant 
to the provisions of Sections 196, 197 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Schedule V to the Act and the rules made thereunder and 
Regulations 17(6)(e) and other applicable provisions, if any, 
of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) [including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof ] and 
pursuant to the recommendation of the Board of Directors of 
the Company, the approval of the members of the Company, 
be and is hereby accorded for increase in remuneration of 
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Mr. Ch. Krishna Murthy (DIN:00030274), Managing Director of 
the Company from ` 96.00 Lakhs (Rupees Ninety Six Lakhs 
only) per annum to ` 192.00 Lakhs (Rupees One Crore Ninety 
Two Lakhs only) per annum with effect from 1st June, 2022 
and the said increased remuneration paid/ to be paid during 
any financial year may exceed the limits prescribed under the 
provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulations 17(6)(e) of the Listing Regulations, as amended 
from time to time however the same shall not exceed the 
limits prescribed under Schedule V to the Companies Act, 
2013 in case of no profits/ inadequacy of profits during the 
any financial year.

  RESOLVED FURTHER THAT save and except as aforesaid, all 
other existing terms and conditions of re-appointment of Mr. 
Murthy as a Managing Director of the Company as approved 
by way of special resolution at 27th Annual General Meeting 
of the Company held on 14th August, 2020, shall continue to 
remain in full force and effect.

  RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby 
authorised to vary and /or revise the remuneration of Mr. 
Murthy within limits as approved by the aforesaid resolution 
and to do all such acts, deeds and things and execute all such 
documents, instruments and writings as may be required to 
give effect to the aforesaid Resolution.”

9.  To approve variation of terms of 7,66,37,500 7% 
Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of the 
Company.

  To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as a Special 
Resolution:

  “RESOLVED THAT in addition to the special resolutions 
dated 26th January, 2018 for further issue of 7% Cumulative 
Redeemable Preference Shares (CRPS) of ` 10/- (Rupees 
Ten only) each & 27th June, 2019 for extension of tenure 
of redemption from 10 (Ten) years to 15 (Fifteen) years 
and pursuant to Sections 48, 55 and all other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, corresponding 
rules thereof and the Articles of Association of the Company, 
considering the consent of the preference shareholders of 
the company vide their letters dated 31st December, 2021, 
approval of the members be and is hereby accorded for 
variation of terms of the existing 7,66,37,500 7% Cumulative 
Redeemable Preference Shares (CRPS) of ` 10/- (Rupees Ten 
only) each, which are unlisted, of the company for further 
extension of term of redemption from 15 (Fifteen) years to 
20 (Twenty) years thereby due date for redemption of said 
shares is extended from 31st March, 2033 to 31st March, 2038 
and all other terms and conditions of the said CRPS shall  
remain the same.

  RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the 
Company be and is hereby authorised, empowered and 

directed to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as may 
be considered requisite, desirable, appropriate or necessary 
to give effect to the aforesaid resolution and to effectively 
implement the aforesaid resolution and to accept such 
modifications, amendments, limitations and/or conditions 
as may be required for the purpose of resolving any doubts 
or difficulties that may arise in giving effect to the aforesaid 
resolution.”

10.  To ratify payment of remuneration to the Cost  
Auditors for 2021-22.

  To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without 

modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

  “RESOLVED THAT in supersession to the resolution 

passed at previous Annual General Meeting held on 12th 

July, 2021 and pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) 

and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 

Rules, 2014 [including any statutory modification(s) or re-

enactment(s) thereof ], the Company hereby ratifies the 

maximum remuneration of ` 1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh 

only) plus taxes, travel and out-of-pocket expenses incurred 

in connection with the cost audit payable to M/s. Sagar & 

Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 000118), 

Hyderabad, who were appointed as Cost Auditors in casual 

vacancy caused due to the death of Mr. N.V.S. Kapardhi, Cost 

Auditor, by the Board of Directors of the Company to conduct 

audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial 

year ending 31st March, 2022.

  RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby 

authorised to vary and /or revise the remuneration of the Cost 

Auditors within limits as approved by the aforesaid resolution 

and to do all such acts, deeds and things and execute all such 

documents, instruments and writings as may be required to 

give effect to the aforesaid Resolution.”

11.  To ratify payment of remuneration to the Cost Auditors 
for 2022-23.

  To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without 

modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

  “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 

148(3) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and 

Auditors) Rules, 2014 [including any statutory modification(s) 

or re-enactment(s) thereof ], the Company hereby ratifies the 

maximum remuneration of ` 1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh 

only) plus taxes, travel and out-of-pocket expenses incurred 

in connection with the cost audit payable to M/s. Sagar & 

Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 000118), 
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Hyderabad, who were appointed as Cost Auditors of the by 

the Board of Directors of the Company to conduct audit of 

the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending 

31st March, 2023.

  RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby 

authorised to vary and /or revise the remuneration of the Cost 

Auditors within limits as approved by the aforesaid resolution 

and to do all such acts, deeds and things and execute all such 

documents, instruments and writings as may be required to 

give effect to the aforesaid Resolution.”

NOTES:

1.  In view of the continuing COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry 

of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) vide its Circular nos. 14/2020 

and 17/2020 dated 8th April, 2020 and 13th April, 2020 

respectively, in relation to “Clarification on passing of ordinary 

and special resolutions by companies under the Companies 

Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder on account of the 

threat posed by Covid-19”, Circular no. 20/2020 dated 5th 

May, 2020 in relation to “Clarification on holding of Annual 

General Meeting (AGM) through video conferencing (VC) or 

other audio visual means (OAVM)” and Circular nos. 02/2021, 

21/2021 and 02/2022 dated 13th January, 2021, 14th 

December, 2021 and 5th May, 2022 respectively in relation 

to “Clarification on holding of Annual General Meeting (AGM) 

through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means 

(OAVM)” (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) permitted 

the holding of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through 

VC / OAVM, without the physical presence of the Members at 

a common venue; in line with the MCA Circulars, Securities 

and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) vide its Circular no. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/ CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12th May, 2020, 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated 15th January, 

2021 and SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated 13th 

May, 2022 (collectively referred to as “SEBI Circulars”) relaxed 

the requirement of sending physical copies of annual 

report to shareholders under the provisions of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the 

AGM of the members of the Company is being held through 

VC / OAVM. The registered office of the Company shall be 

deemed to be the venue for the AGM.

2.  Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to 

attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy 

to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need 

not be a member of the Company. Since this AGM is being 

held pursuant to the MCA circulars through VC/OAVM, the 

requirement of physical attendance of members has been 

dispensed with. Accordingly, in terms of the MCA circulars 

and the SEBI circulars, the facility for appointment of proxies 

by the members will not be available for this AGM and hence 

the proxy form, attendance slip and route map of the AGM 

venue are not annexed to this notice.

3.  The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the 

Act setting out material facts concerning the business 

under Item Nos. 4 to 11 of the Notice is annexed hereto. The 

relevant details pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the Listing 

Regulations and Secretarial Standards on General Meetings 

(SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of 

India (ICSI), in respect of Directors seeking appointment/re-

appointment at this AGM are also annexed. Mr. Ch. Krishna 

Murthy, Mrs. Ch. Manjula and Mr. Ch. Siddartha are relatives of 

each other as defined under Section 2(77) of the Companies 

Act, 2013.

4.  The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 

15 minutes before & after the scheduled time of the 

commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure 

mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the 

AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to atleast 

1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not 

include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more 

shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, 

Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit 

Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are 

allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account 

of first come first served basis. The detailed instructions 

for joining the Meeting through VC/OAVM forms part of  

this notes.

5.  Institutional / Corporate shareholders (i.e. other than 

individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a scanned 

copy (PDF / JPG Format) of their respective Board or 

governing body Resolution / Authorisation etc., authorising 

their representative to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM 

on their behalf and to vote through remote e-Voting. The said 

Resolution / Authorisation shall be sent to the Scrutiniser by 

e-mail on its registered e-mail address to ldreddy2016@gmail.

com with a copy marked to investors@vishnuchemicals.com

6.  The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through 

VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the 

quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

7.  In line with aforementioned MCA and SEBI Circulars, the Notice 

of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2021-22 is being 

sent only through e-mail, to those Members whose e-mail 

addresses are registered with the Company/ Registrar & Share 

Transfer Agent (RTA)/ Depository Participant/ Depositories as 

at the end of the day on Friday, 17th June, 2022. The Notice 

convening the 29th AGM has been uploaded on the website 

of the Company at www.vishnuchemicals.com and may 

NOTICE (CONTD.)

mailto:ldreddy2016@gmail.com
mailto:ldreddy2016@gmail.com
mailto:investors@vishnuchemicals.com
http://www.vishnuchemicals.com
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also be accessed from the relevant section of the websites 

of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and the National 

Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and  

www.nseindia.com respectively.

8.  Process for registering/ updating e-mail address and 
mobile number:

  The following procedure shall be followed in case shares are 

held in physical form:

 a)  Visit the link: https://www.bigshareonline.com/

InvestorRegistration.aspx

 b) Select the company name from the drop down box

 c)  Enter your name as per the share certificate, physical 

folio number and PAN details. In the event the PAN 

details are not available on record for Physical Folio, 

Member to enter one of the share certificate numbers; 

and the above system also provides a facility to the 

Members holding shares in physical form to upload a 

self-attested copy of their PAN Card, if the PAN details 

are not updated in accordance with the requirements 

prescribed by SEBI.

 d)  Also enter your valid e-mail address and mobile 

number and click on generate OTP, an OTP shall be 

sent to mobile number for verification. Once OTP is 

validated, the details can be submitted by verifying the 

declaration.

 e)  The system will then confirm the successful registration 

of email id and mobile number.

  The above submitted email id and mobile number shall 

be used for sending notices, annual report and all other 

correspondence from time to time to the shareholders 

including for participating in e-voting of this AGM.

  In case of shares held in electronic/demat form, the 

shareholders are requested to update/ register their email id 

and mobile no. with their respective depository participants. 

However, for the limited purpose of receiving the company’s 

29th Annual Report and notice of 29th Annual General 

Meeting and to participate in e-voting, the Company enabled 

the process of updating/ modifying and changing their email 

id and mobile no. on temporary basis by following the above 

procedure as provided to physical shareholders.

  After successful submission of the e-mail address, on request 

from the shareholder, RTA will e-mail a copy of this AGM 

Notice and Annual Report for 2021-22. In case of any queries, 

members may write to bsshyd1@bigshareonline.com or 

investors@vishnuchemicals.com.

  Further, those Members who have already registered their 

e-mail addresses are requested to keep their e-mail addresses 

validated/updated from time to time with their respective 

DPs/ RTA to enable servicing of notices/documents/Annual 

Reports and other communications electronically to their 

e-mail address in future.

  Alternatively, Members may also send an e-mail request 
to bsshyd1@bigshareonline.com or to investors@
vishnuchemicals.com along with the following 
documents for registration of e-mail addresses for 
e-voting for the resolutions set out in this 29th AGM 
Notice:

 l  In case shares are held in physical form, please provide 

Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the 

share certificate (front and back), self-attested scanned 

copy of PAN Card, self-attested scanned copy of 

Aadhaar Card.

 l  In case shares are held in demat form, please provide 

DP ID-Client ID (8 digit DP ID + 8 digit Client ID or 16 

digit Beneficiary ID), name, client master or copy of 

consolidated account statement, self-attested scanned 

copy of PAN card, self-attested scanned copy of Aadhaar 

Card. Please note that the registration of email id and 

mobile no. for shareholders holding shares in Demat 

will be used only for limited purpose of 29th AGM.

9. Record Date, Book Closure and Dividend:

 a)  The Company has fixed Friday, 8th July, 2022 as 

the ‘Record Date’ for determining entitlement of 

members to dividend for the financial year ended 31st 

March, 2022, if approved at the AGM.

 b)  The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books 

of the Company will be closed from Saturday, 9th July, 

2022 to Friday, 15th July, 2022 (both days inclusive).

 c)  If the dividend, as recommended by the Board of 

Directors, is approved at the AGM, payment of such 

dividend subject to deduction of tax at source will be 

made within 30 days from the date of AGM as under:

  i.  To all Beneficial Owners in respect of shares held 

in dematerialised form as per the data as may 

be made available by the National Securities 

Depository Limited (“NSDL”) and the Central 

Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”), 

collectively “Depositories”, as of end of day on 

Friday, 8th July, 2022;

  ii.  To all Members in respect of shares held in physical 

form after giving effect to valid transmission or 

transposition requests lodged with the Company 

as of the closure of business hours on Friday, 8th 

July, 2022.

NOTICE (CONTD.)
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10.  As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, 

securities of listed companies shall be transferred only in 

dematerialised form with effect from, 1st April, 2019, except 

in case of request received for transmission or transposition 

and relodged transfers of securities. Further, SEBI vide its 

circular no. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/RTAMB/CIR/P/2020/236 dated 

2nd December, 2020 had fixed 31st March, 2021 as the cut-

off date for re-lodgement of transfer deeds and the shares 

that are re-lodged for transfer shall be issued only in demat 

mode. In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated 

with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, 

members holding shares in physical form are requested to 

consider converting their holdings to dematerialised form. 

Members can contact the Company or Company’s Registrar 

and Share Transfer Agent, M/s. Bigshare Services Private 

Limited (BSPL), 306, Right Wing, 3rd Floor, Amrutha Ville, Opp.

Yashoda Hospital, Somajiguda, Raj Bhavan Road, Hyderabad 

– 500082, India, Email Id: bsshyd1@bigshareonline.com, 

www.bigshareonline.com (“RTA” or “Registrar”) for assistance 

in this regard. Members may also refer to Frequently Asked 

Questions (“FAQs”) on Company’s Website https://www.

vishnuchemicals.com/investors/#1571313077497-a1a918a7-

6e88

11.  Pursuant to Finance Act 2020, dividend income is taxable 

in the hands of shareholders w.e.f. 1st April, 2020 and 

the Company is required to deduct tax at source from 

dividend paid to shareholders at the prescribed rates. For 

the prescribed rates for various categories, please refer to 

the Finance Act, 2020 and the amendments thereof. The 

shareholders are requested to update their PAN with the 

Depository Participant (if shares held in electronic form) and 

Company / RTA (if shares held in physical form). A Resident 

individual shareholder with PAN and who is not liable to pay 

income tax can submit a yearly declaration in Form No. 15G 

/ 15H, to avail the benefit of non-deduction of tax at source 

by e-mail to investors@vishnuchemicals.com/ bsshyd1@

bigshareonline.com by 11:59 p.m. IST on 30th June, 2022. 

Shareholders are requested to note that in case their PAN 

is not registered, the tax will be deducted at a higher rate 

of 20%. Non-resident shareholders [including Foreign 

Institutional Investors (FIIs) / Foreign Portfolio Investors (FPIs)] 

can avail beneficial rates under tax treaty between India and 

their country of tax residence, subject to providing necessary 

documents i.e. No Permanent Establishment and Beneficial 

Ownership Declaration, Tax Residency Certificate, Form 10F, 

any other document which may be required to avail the tax 

treaty benefits. For this purpose the shareholder may submit 

the above documents (PDF / JPG Format) by e-mail to 

investors@vishnuchemicals.com/ bsshyd1@bigshareonline.

com. The aforesaid declarations and documents need to 

be submitted by the shareholders by 11:59 p.m. IST on 30th 

June, 2022. For further details and formats of declaration, 

please refer to FAQs on Taxation of Dividend Distribution 

available on the Company’s website at ‘Communication on 
Tax Deduction on Dividend’.

12.  The Members holding shares in physical form are informed 

that as per SEBI circular SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/

CIR/2021/655 and SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD RTAMB/P/

CIR/2021/687 dated 13th November, 2021 and 14th 

December, 2021 respectively, SEBI has notified simplified 

norms for processing investor’s service request by RTA and 

mandatory furnishing of PAN, KYC details and Nomination by 

holders of physical securities.

  In this regard, it is mandatory for all the physical shareholders 

to furnish the following documents/ details with the 

Company/ RTA and the non updation of the same on or 

before 1st April, 2023 shall result into freezing of folios:

 a. Form ISR-1 (Request for registering PAN, KYC details)

 b.  Form ISR-2 (Confirmation of Signature of securities 

holder by the Banker)

 c. Either,

  l SH-13 (Nomination Form); or

  l Form ISR-3 (Declaration to opt-out Nomination)

  The physical shareholders are requested to furnish the 

above documents on or before 31st March, 2023 so as to 

avoid freezing of folios. The shareholders can download the 

relevant forms from the website of the company at Investor 

Relations> Investor Information> Forms or from the website 

of RTA https://www.bigshareonline.com/Resources.aspx.

13.  Members are also requested to intimate changes, if any, 

pertaining to their name, postal address, e-mail address, 

telephone/mobile numbers, PAN, registering of nomination, 

power of attorney registration, Bank Mandate details, etc. to 

Registrar/respective DPs as may be applicable.

14.  Updation of bank mandate for receiving dividends directly 

in bank account through Electronic Clearing System or any 

other electronic means in a timely manner:

  Shares held in physical form: Members are requested to 

send a scanned copy of the following details/ documents at 

bsshyd1@bigshareonline.com/ investors@vishnuchemicals.

com latest by 30th June, 2022:

 a)  signed request letter mentioning their name, folio 

number, complete address and following details 

relating to bank account in which the dividend is to be 

received:

NOTICE (CONTD.)
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  i)  Bank Name and Branch of Bank, Bank Account 

type and 11 digit IFSC Code;

  ii)  Bank Account Number & Type allotted by the Bank 

after implementation of Core Banking Solutions;

 b)  self-attested scanned copy of cancelled cheque bearing 

the name of the Member or first holder, in case shares 

are held jointly;

 c) self-attested scanned copy of the PAN Card; and

 d)  self-attested scanned copy of any document (such as 

Aadhaar Card, Driving Licence, Election Identity Card, 

Passport) in support of the address of the Member as 

registered with the Company.

  Shares held in electronic form: Members may please 

note that their bank details as furnished by the respective 

Depositories to the Company will be considered for 

remittance of dividend as per the applicable regulations of 

the Depositories and the Company will not entertain any 

direct request from such Members for change/addition/

deletion in such bank details. Accordingly, the Members 

holding shares in demat form are requested to update their 

Electronic Bank Mandate with their respective Depository 

Participants (DP).

  Further, please note that instructions, if any, already given by 
Members in respect of shares held in physical form, will not 
be automatically applicable to the dividend paid on shares 
held in electronic form.

15.  The Members who are unable to receive the dividend directly 
in their bank accounts through Electronic Clearing Service 
or any other electronic means, due to non-registration of 
the Electronic Bank Mandate or other technical reasons like 
change in IFSC, inactive account etc., the Company shall 
dispatch the dividend warrant/ bankers’ cheque/demand 
draft to such members through postal or courier services to 
their registered address.

16.  Members are requested to note that dividends that are not 
claimed within seven years from the date of transfer to the 
Company’s Unpaid Dividend Account, shall, as per Section 
124 of the Act, be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund (IEPF). Further, shares on which the 
dividends remain unclaimed for seven consecutive 
years will also be transferred to the IEPF as per Section 
124 of the Act, and the applicable rules. Hence, members 
who have not claimed/ encashed their dividend warrant 
for respective financial years are requested to write to the 
Company/Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) at least a 

month before the due dates mentioned hereunder:

S.No. Dividend Accounts Date of declaration Date on which unclaimed dividend become 
due to be transferred to IEPF

1 Unpaid Dividend Account 2014-15 29.06.2015 03.08.2022
2 Unpaid (interim) Dividend Account 2015-16 16.03.2016 20.04.2023
3 Unpaid Dividend Account 2017-18 24.09.2018 29.10.2025
4 Unpaid Dividend Account 2018-19 27.06.2019 07.08.2026
5 Unpaid Dividend Account 2019-20 14.08.2020 22.09.2027
6 Unpaid Dividend Account 2020-21 12.07.2021 20.08.2028

17.  Members seeking any information with regard to the 

financial statements or any matter to be placed at the AGM, 

are requested to write to the Company on or before 5th July, 

2022 through e-mail on investors@vishnuchemicals.com The 

same will be replied by the Company suitably.

18.  To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised 

to exercise due diligence and notify the Company of any 

change in address or demise of any Member as soon as 

possible. Members are also advised not to leave their demat 

account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings 

should be obtained from the concerned DPs and holdings 

should be verified from time to time.

19.  Details of Unclaimed Shares: The Company doesn’t have 

any shares remaining unclaimed in the unclaimed suspense 

account.

20.  INTRUCTIONS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING & E-VOTING 
DURING AGM AND JOINING MEETING THROUGH VC/
OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

A. VOTING THORUGH ELETRONIC MEANS:

 i.  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act 

read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management 

and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and 

Regulation 44 of Listing Regulations (as amended) and 

the MCA Circulars, the Company is providing facility 

of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the 

business to be transacted at the 29th AGM. For this 

purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement 

with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) 

for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the 

authorised e-Voting agency. The facility of casting votes 

by a Member using remote e-voting system as well as 

e-voting during the AGM will be provided by CDSL.

 ii.  The remote e-voting period commences on 
Monday, 11th July, 2022 at 9.00 a.m. (IST) and 
ends on Thursday, 14th July, 2022 at 5.00 p.m. 
(IST). The remote e-voting module shall be disabled 

NOTICE (CONTD.)
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by CDSL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a 
resolution is cast by the Member, the Member shall not 
be allowed to change it subsequently. The voting rights 
of the Members shall be in proportion to their share of 
the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on 
the cut-off date i.e. as of the close of business hours on 
Friday, 8th July, 2022.

 iii.  Members of the Company holding shares either in 
physical form or in electronic form as of the closure of 
business hours on Friday, 8th July, 2022 i.e. cut-off 
date may cast their vote by remote e-voting. A person 
who is not a Member as on the cut-off date should 
treat this Notice for information purpose only. A person 
whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or 
in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the 
depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled 
to avail the facility of e-voting before the AGM as well as 
remote e-voting during the AGM.

   Any person who acquires shares of the Company 
and becomes a Member of the Company after the 
dispatch of the Notice and holds shares as on the 
cut-off date i.e. as of the closure of business hours on 
Friday, 8th July, 2022, may obtain a copy of AGM Notice 
by sending a request to bsshyd1@bigshareonline.
com or can also be downloaded from the Company’s 
website www.vishnuchemicals.com and participate in 
remote e-voting or e-voting at AGM by following the 
instructions provided herein.

 iv.  Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and 
Custodians – Remote Voting

  l  Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than 
Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are 
required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and 
register themselves in the “Corporates” module.

  l  A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing 
the stamp and sign of the entity should be 
emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

  l  After receiving the login details a Compliance 
User should be created using the admin login and 
password. The Compliance User would be able to 
link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

  l  The list of accounts linked in the login will be 
mapped automatically & can be delink in case of 
any wrong mapping.

  l  A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and 
Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued 
in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be 

uploaded in PDF format in the system for the 
scrutiniser to verify the same.

  l  Alternatively Non-Individual shareholders are 
required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ 
Authorization letter etc. together with attested 
specimen signature of the duly authorised 
signatory who are authorised to vote, to the 
Scrutiniser and to the Company at the email 
address viz; investors@vishnuchemicals.com 
(designated email address by company), if they 
have voted from individual tab & not uploaded 
same in the CDSL e-voting system for the 
scrutiniser to verify the same.

 v.  The Members who have cast their vote by remote 
e-voting prior to the AGM may attend / participate in 
the AGM through VC / OAVM but shall not be entitled 
to cast their vote on such resolution again. Members 
who have voted on some of the resolutions during 
the said voting period are also eligible to vote on the 
remaining resolutions during the AGM.

 vi.  M/s. L.D.Reddy & Co., Company Secretaries, Hyderabad 
has been appointed as the Scrutiniser(s) to scrutinise 
the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner 
and they have communicated their willingness to be 
appointed and will be available for same purpose.

   The details of the process and manner for remote 
e-voting are explained herein below:

  I)  Login method for remote e-voting and 
joining virtual meeting for individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode.

    Pursuant to SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/ CFD/CMD/
CIR/P/2020/242 dated 9th December, 2020 on 
“e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies”, 
e-Voting process has been enabled to all the 
individual demat account holders, by way of 
single login credential, through their demat 
accounts / websites of Depositories / DPs in order 
to increase the efficiency of the voting process. 
Individual demat account holders would be able 
to cast their vote without having to register again 
with the e-voting service provider (ESP) thereby 
not only facilitating seamless authentication but 
also ease and convenience of participating in 
e-voting process.

    Shareholders are advised to update their mobile 
number and e-mail ID with their DPs in order to 
access e-voting facility.

NOTICE (CONTD.)
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Type of shareholders  Login Method

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
Demat mode with 
CDSL

1)  Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing 
user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any 
further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.
com/myeasi/home/login or visit www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select 
New System Myeasi.

2)  After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for 
eligible companies where the e-voting is in progress as per the information provided by 
company. On clicking the e-voting option, the user will be able to see e-voting page of 
the e-voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-voting period 
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there are also links 
provided to access the system of all e-voting service providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/
LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-voting service providers’ website directly.

3)  If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at https://web.
cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

4)  Alternatively, the user can directly access e-voting page by providing Demat Account 
Number and PAN No. from the e-voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page 
or by clicking on https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin. The system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the 
Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-voting option 
where the e-voting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-voting  
service providers.

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with 
NSDL

1)  If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website of 
NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either 
on a personal computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, 
click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. 
A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful 
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” 
under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service 
provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting.

2)  If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://
eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS” Portal or click at https://eservices.
nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3)  Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the 
home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 
under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your 
User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number held with NSDL), Password/OTP and 
a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be 
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service 
provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting.

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities 
in demat mode) 
login through 
their Depository 
Participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository 
Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After successful login, you will be 
able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/
CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click 
on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

    Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 

Password option available at abovementioned website.

NOTICE (CONTD.)
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    Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 
through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders holding securities in Demat 

mode with CDSL
Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 

helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 
or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33.

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Demat 

mode with NSDL
Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 

helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll 

free no.: 1800 1020 990 or 1800 22 44 30

  II)  Login method for e-voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode & shareholders holding securities in physical mode:

   1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

   2) Click on “Shareholders” module.

   3) Now enter your User ID

    a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID.

    b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

    c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

   4) Next enter the image verification as displayed and click on Login.

   5)  If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-voting 

of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

   6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form other than individual and Physical Form
PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both 

demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

l  Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are 

requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.
Dividend Bank 

Details OR 

Date of Birth 

(DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat 

account or in the company records in order to login.

l  If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the member 

id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field.

   7)  After entering these details appropriately, 

click on “SUBMIT” tab.

   8)  Shareholders holding shares in physical 

form will then directly reach the Company 

selection screen. However, shareholders 

holding shares in demat form will now reach 

‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are 

required to mandatorily enter their login 

password in the new password field. Kindly 

note that this password is to be also used by 

the demat holders for voting for resolutions 

of any other company on which they are 

eligible to vote, provided that company 

opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. 

It is strongly recommended not to share 

your password with any other person and 

take utmost care to keep your password 

confidential.

   9)  For shareholders holding shares in physical 

form, the details can be used only for 

e-voting on the resolutions contained in this 

Notice.

   10)  Click on the EVSN of Vishnu Chemicals 

Limited

   11)  On the voting page, you will see 

“RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against 

the same the option “YES/NO” for voting. 

NOTICE (CONTD.)
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Select the option YES or NO as desired. The 

option YES implies that you assent to the 

Resolution and option NO implies that you 

dissent to the Resolution.

   12)  Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you 

wish to view the entire Resolution details.

   13)  After selecting the resolution, you have 

decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A 

confirmation box will be displayed. If you 

wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else 

to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and 

accordingly modify your vote.

   14)  Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the 

resolution, you will not be allowed to modify 

your vote.

   15)  You can also take a print of the votes cast by 

clicking on “Click here to print” option on the 

Voting page.

   16)  If a demat account holder has forgotten 

the login password then enter the User ID 

and the image verification code and click 

on Forgot Password & enter the details as 

prompted by the system.

   17)  There is also an optional provision to upload 

BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made 

available to scrutiniser for verification.

B.  INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING 
THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING 
MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

 1)  The procedure for attending meeting & e-voting on the 

day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned 

above for remote e-voting.

 2)  The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be 

available where the EVSN of Company will be displayed 

after successful login as per the instructions mentioned 

above for Remote e-voting.

 3)  Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-voting 

will be eligible to attend the meeting. However, they 

will not be eligible to vote at the AGM except on the 

resolutions which couldn’t be voted during the remote 

e-voting.

 4)  Members may join the Meeting through laptops, 

smartphones, tablets and iPads for better experience. 

Further, Members will be required to use Internet with 

a good speed/ band to avoid buffering/ disconnections 

during the Meeting. Please note that participants 

connecting from mobile devices or tablets or through 

laptops connecting via mobile hotspot may experience 

audio/video loss due to fluctuation in their respective 

network. It is therefore recommended to use stable Wi-

Fi or LAN connection to mitigate any glitches.

 5)  Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask 

questions during the meeting may register themselves 

as a speaker by sending their request in advance at 

least seven (7) days prior to meeting mentioning their 

name, demat account number/folio number, email id, 

mobile number at investors@vishnuchemicals.com. 

The shareholders who do not wish to speak during 

the AGM but have queries may send their queries in 

advance seven (7) days prior to meeting mentioning 

their name, demat account number/folio number, 

email id, mobile number at investors@vishnuchemicals.

com. These queries will be replied to by the company 

suitably by email.

 6)  Those shareholders who have registered themselves as 

a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask 

questions during the meeting.

 7)  Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM 

through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their 

vote on the Resolutions through remote e-voting and 

are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible 

to vote through e-voting system available during  

the AGM.

 8)  If any votes are cast by the shareholders through the 

e-voting available during the AGM and if the same 

shareholders have not participated in the meeting 

through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such 

shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility 

of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the 

shareholders attending the meeting.

 9)  During the AGM remote e-voting module will be 

enabled for e-voting and the same will be open for 15 

minutes after conclusion of the meeting.

  If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM 

& e-voting from the CDSL e-voting System, you can write an 

email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll 

free no. 1800 22 55 33.

  All grievances connected with the facility for voting by 

electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, 

Sr. Manager, (CDSL) Central Depository Services (India) 

Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill 

Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 

400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 

or call on toll free no. 1800 22 55 33.

NOTICE (CONTD.)
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Other instructions:

1.  The Scrutiniser shall, immediately after the conclusion of 

voting at the AGM, unblock the votes cast during the AGM 

and votes cast through remote e-voting and make, not later 

than 2 working days of conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated 

Scrutiniser’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, 

if any, to the Chairman or a person authorised by him in 

writing, who shall countersign the same.

2.  The result declared along with the Scrutiniser’s Report shall 

be placed on the Company’s website www.vishnuchemicals.

com. The Company shall simultaneously forward the results 

to National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited, 

where the shares of the Company are listed.

3.  The resolutions proposed will be deemed to have been 

passed on the date of the AGM subject to receipt of the 

requisite number of votes in favour of the resolutions.

        By Order of the Board

        sd/-

Kishore Kathri
Hyderabad     Company Secretary & AGM-Legal
16th May, 2022        FCS - 9895

Registered Office:
Plot No. C-23, Road No. 8,

Film Nagar, Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad – 500 096

Tel: 040-23396817, 23327723/ 29;

Email ID: vishnu@vishnuchemicals.com

Website: www.vishnuchemicals.com

NOTICE (CONTD.)
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As required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 

(hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) the following explanatory 

statement set out all material facts relating to the business 

mentioned under Item nos. 4 - 11 of the accompanying Notice  

of AGM.

Item Nos. 4 & 5:

It is informed that based on the recommendations of Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee (NRC), Mr. Veeramachaneni 

Vimalanand (DIN: 02693721) & Mrs. Sita Vanka (DIN: 07016012) 

were appointed as Additional Directors (for Independent Director 

category) of the Company by the Board at its meetings held on 31st 

December, 2021 & 16th May, 2022 respectively, with immediate 

effect under the provisions of section 161 (1) and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and are entitled 

to hold office up to the date of 29th Annual General Meeting  

of the Company.

The Company has received consent from Mr. Vimalanand &  

Mrs. Sita, in writing to act as a director in Form DIR-2 pursuant 

to Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of 

Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time along with a 

declaration stating their eligibility to be appointed as Independent 

Directors and confirming the criteria of Independence as 

prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

under the Regulation 16(i)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from 

time to time (“Listing Regulations”). Mr. Vimalanand & Mrs. Sita 

are not disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of 

Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. In opinion of the Board, 

both fulfill the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 

& Listing Regulations and are independent of the management. 

Further, NRC is of the opinion that the experience & expertise 

of Mr. Vimalanand in the field of law as an advocate meets the 

requirement of the Company to assess and have a check on 

regulatory/ legal concerns and also the experience of Mrs. Sita in 

academia as a professor of management studies will be relevant to 

improve the governance aspects through advising and monitoring 

functions. Summary of profiles of Mr. Vimalanand & Mrs. Sita are 

made part of disclosures under the Annexure to this notice.

In terms of the provisions of section 152 read with section 149 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 every director shall be appointed by the 

Company in general meeting and further as per Regulation 25(2A) 

of the Listing Regulations appointment of Independent Director 

shall be approved by the shareholders by way of special resolution.

The names of companies and the committees in which the director 

is a director/member, the letter of appointments and terms and 

conditions of the appointments are available for inspection at 

the registered office of the company during normal business 

hours (9:30 am to 5:00 pm) on any working day, except Saturday, 

ExPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

up to and including the date of AGM of the Company. Disclosure 

under Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial 

Standard-2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India 

(ICSI) are set out in the Annexure to the Explanatory Statement.

Except the director (including relatives) being appointed in terms 

of the said resolutions, none of the other Directors and/or Key 

Managerial Personnel (KMP) or relatives of directors and KMP 

is concerned or interested, either financially or otherwise, in the 

Resolution at Item No. 4 & 5 of the accompanying Notice.

The Board recommends the Special Resolutions set out at Item No. 

4 & 5 of the Notice for approval of the Members.

Item No. 6 & 7:

Mr. Tirthankar Mitra and Mr. Chetan Navinchandra Shah were 

appointed as an Independent Directors of the Company by the 

members at the 28th Annual General Meeting of the Company 

held on 12th July, 2021 for a term of two (2) consecutive years from 

14th August, 2020 to 13th August, 2022 and 12th February, 2021 to 

11th February, 2023 respectively.

Based on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee (NRC) and in terms of the provisions of Sections 149, 

152 read with Schedule IV and any other applicable provisions 

of the Act and Regulation 25(2A) of the Listing Regulations, 

Mr. Tirthankar Mitra and Mr. Chetan Navinchandra Shah, being 

eligible for re-appointment as an Independent Directors and 

offering themselves for re-appointment, are proposed to be re-

appointed as an Independent Directors for second term of three 

(3) consecutive years from 14th August, 2022 till 13th August, 2025 

and two (2) consecutive years from 12th February, 2023 to 11th 

February, 2025 respectively.

The Company has received a declaration from Mr. Mitra and Mr. 
Shah on them being eligible for re-appointment as Independent 
Director. Further, they have provided consent in writing to continue 
to act as Independent Directors of the Company, if so appointed by 
the members. The Company has also received a declaration from 
both of them confirming the criteria of Independence as prescribed 
under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and under the 
Regulation 16(i)(b) of the Listing Regulations, as amended from 
time to time. Mr. Mitra & Mr. Shah are not disqualified from being 
appointed as Directors in terms of Section 164 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. In opinion of the Board, both fulfill the conditions 
specified in the Companies Act, 2013 & Listing Regulations for their 
re-appointment as Independent Directors of the Company and are 
independent of the management.

The Board considered that their continued association would be of 
immense benefit to the Company and it is desirable to continue to 
the services of Mr. Mitra & Mr. Shah as Independent Directors of the 
Company and accordingly the Board at its meeting held 16th May, 

2022 recommended for their re-appointment.
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The names of companies and the committees in which the director 

is a director/member, the letter of appointments and terms and 

conditions of the appointments are available for inspection at 

the registered office of the company during normal business 

hours (9:30 am to 5:00 pm) on any working day, except Saturday, 

up to and including the date of AGM of the Company. Disclosure 

under Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial 

Standard-2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India 

(ICSI) are set out in the Annexure to the Explanatory Statement.

Except the directors (including relatives) being re-appointed in 

terms of the said resolutions, none of the other Directors and/or 

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) or relatives of directors and KMP 

is concerned or interested, either financially or otherwise, in the 

Resolutions at Item Nos. 6 & 7 of the accompanying Notice.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item Nos. 

6 & 7 of the Notice for approval of the Members.

Item No. 8:

Mr. Ch. Krishna Murthy (DIN: 00030274) was originally appointed 

as Managing Director on 2nd June, 2006 and subsequently he 

got re-appointed from time to time. His last re-appointment was 

approved by the shareholders of the company at their 27th Annual 

General Meeting held on 14th August, 2020 for a term of five years 

from 2nd January, 2021 upto 1st January, 2026 at such terms & 

conditions including payment of remuneration up to ` 96,00,000/- 

(Rupees Ninety Six Lakhs Only) per annum.

The members are informed that based on the recommendations 

of Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC), the Board 

at its meeting held on 16th May, 2022 approved revision in 

terms & conditions of Mr. Murthy’s re-appointment to increase 

the remuneration from ` 96.00 Lakhs (Rupees Ninety Six Lakhs 

Only) per annum to ` 192.00 Lakhs (Rupees One Crore Ninety 

Two Lakhs Only) with effect from 1st June, 2022 in line with his 

contribution for achievement of significant growth in all key 

performance parameters of the Company and also the progress 

made by the Company under his guidance and leadership during 

the previous financial years especially year 2021-22. The Board 

also acknowledged successful commencement of backward 

integration project and debottlenecking & capacity expansion of 

existing plant which increases the capacity by nearly 10,000 TPA, 

while doubling his remuneration.

In view of the above, members approval is being sought through 

a special resolution in terms of the provisions of Section 196, 197 

and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 

2013, Regulation 17(6)(e) and other applicable provisions of the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Apart from Mr. Ch. Krishna Murthy, Chairman & Managing Director 

holding 6219790 equity shares (52.07%) and Mr. Ch. Siddartha, 

Joint Managing Director holding 1125668 equity shares (9.42%) 

and Mrs. Ch. Manjula, Director holding 1614048 equity shares 

(13.51%) none of the Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel 

(KMP) or relatives of directors and KMP is concerned or interested, 

either financially or otherwise, in the Resolution at Item No. 8 of the 

accompanying notice.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the special resolution set 

forth at Item No. 8 of the Notice for approval of the Members.

Item No. 9:

The members are informed that as per the member’s approval 

vide postal ballot resolution dated 26th January, 2018 and Hon’ble 

National Company Law Tribunal Order dated 13th April, 2018 the 

Company had issued and allotted 7,66,37,500 (Seven Crore Sixty 

Six Lakh Thirty Seven Thousand Five Hundred only) 7 % Cumulative 

Redeemable Preference Shares of 10/- (Ten only) each (hereinafter 

referred as “CRPS”) for an aggregate amount of unredeemed existing 

preference paid-up share capital of ` 47,50,00,000/- (Rupees Forty 

Seven Crore and Fifty lakh only) and outstanding accumulated 

dividend of ` 29,13,75,000/- (Rupees Twenty Nine Crore Thirteen 

Lakh Seventy Five Thousand only) as on 31st March, 2017, to the 

existing preference shareholders vide Board Resolution dated 29th 

March, 2018 under Section 55 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

with rules made thereunder and as per the terms and conditions 

of the issue the term of the said CRPS is 10 (Ten) years and shall be 

redeemed by 31st March, 2028.

Further, the original term of redemption was subsequently 

extended by Five (5) years i.e. from 31st March, 2028 to 31st March, 

2033 amending the term of the issue to Fifteen (15) years by the 

Board vide its resolution dated 14th February, 2019 upon receipt 

of written consents from the Preference Shareholders holding 

100% of the preference share capital of the Company vide letters 

dated 14th February, 2019 and the same was approved by the 

members of the Company under the provisions of section 48 

read with section 55 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder at the 26th 

Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 27th June, 2019.

It is now further informed that the Company received an intimation 

from the Banks that as per the Bank’s internal guidelines any 

preference shares with an outstanding tenure of less than twelve 

(12) years will not be considered for the purpose of calculation of 

net worth of the Company accordingly the net worth of Company 

would be reduced to the extent of the preference share capital 

i.e. ` 76.63 Crores in arriving overall borrowing limits of the 

Company. The Board considered the letter received from the Banks 

and thought it is imperative to extend the term of the CRPS so 

as to have sufficient borrowing limits with the Banks. In order to 

further extend the term of redemption from 15 (Fifteen) years to 20 

(Twenty) years, the Board, at its meeting held on 31st December, 

2021, considered the consent dated 31st December, 2021 of the 

NOTICE (CONTD.)
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preference shareholders holding 100% of CRPS and approved 

further extension of term of redemption from 15 (Fifteen) years to 

20 (Twenty) years thereby due date for redemption of said shares 

from 31st March, 2033 to 31st March, 2038 and all other terms is 

extended conditions of the said CRPS shall remain the same.

The members are also informed that as per the provisions of section 

48 read with section 55 and all other applicable provisions, if any, 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, the rights 

attached to the shares of any class may be varied with the consent 

in writing of the holders of not less than three-fourths of the issued 

shares of that class or by means of a special resolution passed at a 

separate meeting of the holders of the issued shares of that class; 

Provided also that if variation by one class of shareholders affects 

the rights of any other class of shareholders, the consent of three-

fourths of such other class of shareholders or by means of a special 

resolution passed at a separate meeting of such holders, shall also 

be obtained as per the provisions of section 48 of the Companies 

Act, 2013.

In terms of the aforementioned provisions, the company received 

consent of the preference shareholders holding 100% paid-up 

preference share capital of the company vide letter dated 31st 

December, 2021 and accordingly now the approval of the equity 

shareholders is being sought by way of special resolution under 

the provisions of section 48 and all other applicable provisions, if 

any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

Mr. Ch. Krishna Murthy, Chairman & Managing Director holding 

6219790 equity shares (52.07%) and Mr. Ch. Siddartha, Joint 

Managing Director holding 1125668 equity shares (9.42%) and Mrs. 

Ch. Manjula, Director holding 1614048 equity shares (13.51%) are 

concerned and interested in the said resolution. Apart from them 

none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, 

financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.

The Board recommends the special resolution at Item No. 9 of the 

Notice for approval of the Members.

Item No. 10 & 11:

The Members are informed that as there was a casual vacancy 

in office of Cost Auditors due to a sudden demise of Mr. N.V.S. 

Kapardhi, Cost Auditor of the Company on 24th January, 2022 the 

Board, at its meeting held on 14th February, 2022, appointed M/s. 

Sagar and Associates, Cost Accountants (FRN: 000118), Hyderabad 

as Cost Auditors of the Company to conduct the audit of the 

cost records of the Company for 2021-22 on a remuneration not 

exceeding ` 1.00 Lakh (Rupees One Lakh Only) (excluding all 

applicable taxes and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses) 

and the said remuneration to be paid to M/s. Sagar and Associates, 

Cost Accountants (FRN: 000118), Hyderabad shall be ratified by 

the shareholders in terms of the provisions of section 148 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

The members are further informed that on recommendations of 

the Audit Committee, the Board, at its meeting held on 16th May, 

2022, re-appointed M/s. Sagar and Associates, Cost Accountants 

(FRN: 000118), Hyderabad as the Cost Auditors of the company to 

conduct the audit of cost records maintained by the company for 

2022-23 at a remuneration not exceeding ` 1.00 Lakh (Rupees One 

Lakh Only) (excluding all applicable taxes and reimbursement of 

out of pocket expenses).

In terms of the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 

Rules, 2014, remuneration paid to the Cost Auditor of the 

Company shall be approved by the members of the Company by 

way of ratification. Accordingly, approval of the members is being 

sought by way of ratification for payment of remuneration of  

` 1.00 Lakh (Rupees One Lakh Only) (excluding all applicable taxes 

and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses) to M/s. Sagar and 

Associates, Cost Accountants (FRN: 000118), Hyderabad for 2021-

22 and 2022-23.

None of the Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) or 

relatives of directors and KMP is concerned or interested, either 

financially or otherwise, in the Resolutions at Item Nos. 10 & 11 of 

the accompanying Notice.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolutions set out at Item 

Nos. 10 & 11 of the Notice for approval of the Members.

        By Order of the Board

          Sd/-

        Kishore Kathri
Hyderabad     Company Secretary & AGM-Legal
16th May, 2022        FCS - 9895

NOTICE (CONTD.)
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